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TENNESSEE
COMPTROLLER
OF THE TREASURY

Jason E. MUMPOWER
Comptroller

TENNESSEE STATE FUNDING BOARD
APRIL 26, 2023
AGENDA

1. Call meeting to order
2. Consideration for approval of minutes from the March 27, 2023, meeting

3. Report from the Department of Economic and Community Development for approval of funding
for the following FastTrack projects:

e 6K Energy Tennessee, LLC — Jackson (Madison County)
FastTrack Economic Development Grant $1,750,000

e Sinova Silicon LLC — Tiptonville (Lake County)
FastTrack Infrastructure Development Grant $6,499,653

e Kordsa Inc. — Chattanooga (Hamilton County)
FastTrack Economic Development Grant $1,000,000

4. Consideration for approval of “A Resolution Authorizing and Providing for the Issuance and Sale
of General Obligation Bonds of the State of Tennessee” and delegation of authority to the

Comptroller to sell and fix the details of the bonds.

5. Adjourn
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TENNESSEE STATE FUNDING BOARD
March 27,2023

The Tennessee State Funding Board (the “Board’’) met on Monday, March 27, 2023, at 2:00 p.m., in the
Volunteer Conference Center, Cordell Hull Building, 274 Floor, Nashville, Tennessee. The Honorable Jason
Mumpower, Comptroller of the Treasury, was present and presided over the meeting.

The following members were also present:

The Honorable Tre Hargett, Secretary of State
The Honorable David Lillard, State Treasurer
Commissioner Jim Bryson, Department of Finance and Administration

The following member was absent:
The Honorable Bill Lee, Governor

Mr. Mumpower opened the meeting with a request for a moment of silence to acknowledge the tragic
events that had occurred at the Covenant School in Nashville, TN, earlier in the day and for the victims and
families of those affected by the event.

Mr. Mumpower then established that a quorum was present and called the meeting to order. Mr. Mumpower
then presented the minutes from the meeting held on February 15, 2023, for consideration and approval.
Mr. Hargett made a motion to approve the minutes, and Mr. Bryson seconded the motion. The motion was
unanimously approved.

Mr. Mumpower then recognized Mr. Stuart McWhorter, Commissioner of the Tennessee Department of
Economic and Community Development (“ECD”), to present FastTrack projects for consideration and Mr.
Paul VanderMeer, Assistant Commissioner of Administration, ECD, to present the “FastTrack Report to
State Funding Board” (the “Report”). Mr. VanderMeer reported that, as of the date of the February 15,
2023, Board meeting, the FastTrack balance was $251,743,093.41. Since that time, $3,179,792.00 in new
appropriations had been added from interest earned through the month of January; $17,575.75 in funds had
been deobligated; $11,373,400.00 in new grants and loans had been approved; and $212,631.58 in funds
had been spent on FastTrack administrative expenses, which resulted in an adjusted FastTrack balance
available for funding grants and loans of $243,354,429.58 as of the date of the Report. Mr. VanderMeer
reported that total commitments had been made in the amount of $245,537,333.20, resulting in an
uncommitted FastTrack balance of $(2,182,903.62). Mr. VanderMeer reported that the amount of proposed
grants for projects to be considered at this meeting totaled $3,027,500.00, and if these projects were
approved, the uncommitted balance would be $(5,210,403.62), for a total committed balance of
$248,564,833.20, which represented 102.1% of the FastTrack balance.

Mr. VanderMeer further reported that a $40,000,000 supplemental appropriation to the FastTrack program
had been recommended in the current State Budget. Mr. VanderMeer then stated that he believed this
amount would provide ECD with the funding that would be needed through the remainder of the fiscal
year. Mr. Hargett then confirmed that ECD was allowed to commit up to 120% of the FastTrack balance.
Mr. Hargett then stated that ECD was able to overcommit the FastTrack balance because not all of the
commitments made by ECD would be utilized..



Mr. McWhorter then presented the following FastTrack projects:

e NYX, Linden LL.C — Linden (Perry County)
FastTrack Economic Development Grant $1,027,500.00

e Formulated Solutions Cleveland, LL.C — Cleveland (Bradley County)
FastTrack Economic Development Grant $ 2,000,000.00

The Board member packets included letters and FastTrack checklists signed by Commissioner McWhorter,
and incentive acceptance forms signed by company representatives. Mr. Mumpower inquired if the
companies that had signed the incentive acceptance forms fully understood the agreements, and Mr.
McWhorter responded affirmatively. Mr. Mumpower then inquired if the checklists had been completed
for each project, and Mr. McWhorter responded affirmatively. Mr. Mumpower then inquired if all the
projects included accountability agreements which would provide protection for the state in the event the
entity could not fulfill the agreement, and Mr. McWhorter responded affirmatively. Mr. Hargett made a
motion to approve the projects. Mr. Lillard seconded the motion, and it was unanimously approved.

Mr. Mumpower then stated that the next item on the agenda was the presentation of the staff analysis of
“An Economic Report to the Governor of the State of Tennessee” (the Economic report’). Mr. Mumpower
stated that at least once each year, the Board shall secure from the Tennessee econometric model a report
of the estimated rate of growth of the state's economy and that such report shall include the major
assumptions and the methodology used in arriving at such estimate. Mr. Mumpower further stated that the
Board shall make comments relating to the reasonableness of the estimate. Mr. Mumpower then stated that
the Board may also secure from the Tennessee econometric model the estimated rate of growth of the state’s
economy as measured by the forecasted change in Tennessee personal income.

Mr. Mumpower then recognized Mr. William Wood, Financial Analyst, Tennessee Comptroller of the
Treasury, who presented the staff analysis of the Economic report. Mr. Wood stated that pursuant to state
law, Tennessee Code Annotated Section § 9-4-1502, the Board’s staff is directed to comment on the
reasonableness of the estimates concerning the rate of growth of Tennessee’s economy from the Tennessee
econometric model published by the University of Tennessee’s Boyd Center for Business and Economic
Research (“CBER”) in its annual Economic Report. Mr. Wood stated that this was accomplished by
comparing estimates of the leading economic indicators in the Economic Report with economic forecasts
made by other governmental and non-governmental organizations. Mr. Wood then stated that based on this
review, the Economic Report’s forecasted estimates of Tennessee nominal personal income growth of
5.80% in fiscal year 2023, 4.90% in calendar 2023, and 4.68% in calendar year 2024, were not
unreasonable. Mr. Mumpower then stated that he agreed that the estimates did not appear to be
unreasonable. The Board acknowledged receipt of the Report. No further action was necessary.



After Mr. Mumpower requested other business and heard none, Mr. Hargett made a motion to adjourn the
meeting, and Mr. Lillard seconded the motion. The motion was unanimously approved, and the meeting

was adjourned.

Approved on this

day of

2023.

Respectfully submitted,

Sandra Thompson
Assistant Secretary



FastTrack Report to State Funding Board

4/20/2023
1. Previous FastTrack Balance, as of Last Report | 243,354,429.58 |
2. + New Appropriations: | 1,618,249.93 |
3. + Newly Deobligated Funds: | 228,151.50 |
4. + Funds Transferred to FastTrack: [ 0.00 |
5. - Funds Transferred from FastTrack: | 0.00 |
6. - FastTrack Grants or Loans Approved Greater Than $750,000: [ (3,000,000.00)|
7. - FastTrack Grants or Loans Approved Less Than $750,000: [ (367,500.00)|
8. - FastTrack Administration [ (120,673.67)|
9. Adjusted FastTrack Balance Available for Funding FastTrack Grants or Loans: m1,712,657.34
10. Total Amount of Commitments: [ 235,259,749.53 |
11. Uncommitted FastTrack: [ 6,452,907.81 |
12. Percentage Committed: [ 97.3%|
13. Amount of Proposed Grants or Loans: F9,249,653.00 |
14. Uncommitted FastTrack Balance if Proposed Grants or Loans Approved: | (2,796,745.19)J
15; Percentage Committed: r 101.2%

See next page for explanations of the above questions.

| have reviewed the above and believe it to be correct:

qw\&u\(\‘lug-—— pate: H-20-2.3

Commissioner of Economic and Community Development
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Department of Economic and Community Development

Stuart McWhorter

A Bill Lee
Commissioner

Governor

April 26, 2023

Comptroller Jason Mumpower
First Floor, State Capitol
Nashville, TN 37243

Dear Comptroller Mumpower:

The Department of Economic & Community Development (the “Department”) seeks approval by the State
Funding Board (the “Board”) pursuant to T.C.A. § 4-3-717(a) authorizing FastTrack infrastructure, training,
and economic development grants where there is a commitment by an eligible business to create or retain
private sector jobs or engage in private investment or where the Commissioner of Economic and
Community Development determines that such investment will have a direct impact on employment and
investment opportunities in the future. The following projects meet the statutory requirements, and the
Department presents these projects to the Board pursuant to the mandates of T.C.A. § 4-3-717(e), which
requires approval of grants and loans under the FastTrack Infrastructure Development Program, the
FastTrack Job Training Assistance Program, and the FastTrack Economic Development Program that
exceed $750,000 per eligible business within a three (3) year period.

1. 6K Energy Tennessee, LLC- Jackson (Madison County)

Founded in 2014 and headquartered in North Andover, Massachusetts, 6K Inc. uses microwave plasma
technology to develop materials for industries, including electric vehicle manufacturing, renewable
energy, aerospace, and consumer electronics. With the addition of the Jackson facility, 6K will employ
nearly 350 people across its operations in Massachusetts, Pennsylvania, and Tennessee.

6K Energy Tennessee, LLC will establish a full-scale battery material manufacturing plant in Jackson,
Tennessee.

6K’s new PlusCAM factory will be the world’s first UniMelt® plasma cathode plant, providing low cost,
ultra-sustainable production of battery material for localized supply chains in the U.S. A portion of the
factory will be funded by a $50 million Department of Energy grant opportunity that 6K Inc. was recently
awarded.

6K Energy Tennessee, LLC has committed to create 230 net new jobs and make a $166,388,932 capital
investment within five (5) years. The company will have an average hourly wage of $22.56 for the new
positions.

FastTrack Economic Development Grant Funds will help offset expenses such as new building
construction, acquisition of real property, and fixture improvements for a total of $1,750,000.
($1,750,000)



Department of Economic and Community Development

Stuart McWhorter

A Bill Lee
Commissioner

Governor

Total FastTrack funds for this project - $1,750,000

2. Sinova Silicon LLC — Tiptonville (Lake County)

Sinova Global, based in Canada, owns a fully permitted quartz deposit in British Columbia that has more
than 25 years of high purity quartz available. With multiple uses, the company’s quartz is an ideal material
for manufacturing the elements that make up silicon anode batteries, solar panels, and semiconductor
components, once transformed into silicon metal. Sinova’s quartz is the foundation for the creation of
silicon metal, which is an essential building block of the clean energy transformation.

Sinova Silicon LLC has chosen a site located in the Lake County Industrial Park, a Select Tennessee Certified
Site, adjacent to Port of Cates Landing, which will help facilitate direct access to Sinova’s wholly owned
quartz deposit in Golden, British Columbia. The silicon metal produced at the Tennessee plant will be

supplied to major industrial consumers and used to manufacture silicon anode batteries, solar cells,
semiconductors, and aluminum.

On December 7, 2021, Sinova Silicon LLC has committed to create 140 net new jobs and make a
$150,000,000 capital investment within five (5) years. The company will have an average hourly wage of
$29.59 for the new positions.

On December 20, 2021, the State Funding Board approved a FastTrack Economic Development Grant
Funds in the amount of $2,200,000 to offset the costs the company incurred in new construction.

Today, we are asking permission to offer the City of Tiptonville a FastTrack Infrastructure Development
Program grant to offset the costs the City of Tiptonville would incur in transportation, rail, roadway
improvements, site Improvements, water, water storage, water line extensions, sewer system, sewer line
extension, gas line, telecommunication. This additional award would increase the total FastTrack award
to $8,699,653. The current request is permission to execute a FastTrack Infrastructure Development
Program grant $6,499,653. ($6,499,653)

Total FastTrack funds for this project - $6,499,653

3. Kordsa Inc. — Chattanooga (Hamilton County)

Kordsa Inc., the U.S. subsidiary of Kordsa, develops environmentally friendly products in the tire industry
that reduce fuel consumption and provide better wet grip. Additionally, the company develops
technologies that allow for lighter cars, performing with lower fuel consumption and lower carbon
emissions in the composite industry.

Currently, the Chattanooga facility manufactures Nylon 66 yarn and ships it to North Carolina where it is
converted into tire cord fabric and sold to tire manufacturers across the U.S.



Department of Economic and Community Development

Stuart McWhorter Bill Lee
Commissioner Governor

Kordsa Inc. has committed to create 200 net new jobs and make a $50,000,000 capital investment within
five (5) years. The company will have an average hourly wage of $25.55 for the new positions.

FastTrack Economic Development Grant Funds will help offset expenses such as fixture improvements,
building improvements, building expansion and building retrofit for a total of $1,000,000. ($1,000,000)

Total FastTrack funds for this project - $1,000,000
Sincerely,

SMC o —

Stuart McWhorter

SM/js



State Funding Board FastTrack Checklist

FastTrack grants or loans exceeding seven hundred fifty thousand dollars ($750,000) per eligible business within a three-year period require state
funding board approval T.C.A. § 4-3-717(e).

Please identify the type of FastTrack funding requested and the grant or loan amount:

*ELIGIBLE BUSINESS BENEFICIARY (if different than Recipient Entity):

RECIPIENT ENTITY LOAN
TYPE OF FUNDING AMOUNT AMOUNT
TRAINING*
ocscpe A SR CityofJackson | $1,750,000
TOTAL $1,750,000

(Recipient entity must be a local government, their economic development organization, a political subdivision of the state, or an eligible

business beneficiary [for training only].)

6K Energy Tennessee, LLC

Complete the General Statutory Compliance section below and the section(s) that corresponds with the type of funding indicated above. General
Statutory Compliance items apply to all types of funding represented above.

GENERAL STATUTORY COMPLIANCE

1.

Will this new commitment cause the FastTrack appropriations to be over-committed 7.C.A. § 4-3-716(g)?

If “yes,” state funding board concurrence is required. Attach the commissioner’s rationale used to determine the
amount of actual commitments unlikely to be accepted based on historical program trends (maximum allowed is
130% of the appropriations available for new grants).

Will this new commitment place in jeopardy compliance with the iegisiative intent that actual expenditures and
obligations to be recognized at the end of the fiscal year not exceed available reserves and appropriations of the
programs T.C.A. § 4-3-716(g)?

Does this grant or loan comply with the legislative intent to distribute FastTrack funds in all areas of the state to
the extent practicable 7.C.A. § 4-3-716(f)?

Has the commissioner of economic and community development provided to the commissioner of finance and
administration (with copies transmitted to the speaker of the house of representatives, the speaker of the senate,
the chairs of the finance, ways and means committees, the state treasurer, the state comptroller, the office of
legislative budget analysis, and the secretary of state) the most recent quarterly report regarding the status of the
appropriations for the FastTrack fund 7.C.A. § 4-3-716(h)?

Identify which of the following apply:

5.

a. Does the business export more than half of their products or services outside of Tennessee
T.C.A. §4-3-717(h)(1)(A)?

b. Do more than half of the business’ products or services enter into the production of exported products
T.C.A. § 4-3-717(h)(1)(B)?

c. Does the use of business’ products primarily result in import substitution on the replacement of imported
products or services with those produced in the state T.C.A. § 4-3-717(h)(1)(C)?

d. Has the commissioner of economic and community development determined the business has other types of
economic activity that contributes significantly to community development education and has a beneficial
impact on the economy of the state T.C.A. § 4-3-717(h)(1)(D)? If “yes,” attach the commissioner’s rationale.

Applicant must answer “Yes” to a or b.

6.

a. s there a commitment by a responsible official in an eligible business for the creation or retention of private
sector jobs and investment T.C.A. § 4-3-717(a)? If “yes,” attach documentation.

b. Has the commissioner of economic and community development determined that this investment will have a
direct impact on employment and investment opportunities in the future T.C.A. § 4-3-717(a)? If “yes,” attach
the commissioner’s rationale.

O Yes X No
OYes X No
X Yes [ No
X Yes [ No
X
ad
O
O
X
O



TRAINING

7. Will the grant support the training of new employees for locating or expanding industries T.C.A. § 4-3-717(c)(1)?

8. Will the grant support the retraining of existing employees where retraining is required by the installation of new
machinery or production processes T7.C.A. § 4-3-717(c)(2)?

INFRASTRUCTURE

9. Is the land to be improved publicly owned and not subject to a purchase option by a private entity where the
purchase option covering the land may be exercised within a period of five (5) years following the date of the
infrastructure grant? T.C.A. § 4-3-717(b)(2-3)?

10. Is this grant or loan made to a local government, a local government economic development organization or other
political subdivision of the state 7.C.A. § 4-3-717(d)(1)?

11. In determining the level of assistance for infrastructure and site preparation, was consideration given to local
ability-to-pay with areas of lesser ability being eligible for higher grant rates T.C.A. § 4-3-717()?

Applicant must answer “Yes” to a or b.

12. a. Wil the grant or loan address infrastructure, such as, water, wastewater, transportation systems, line
extensions, industrial site preparation or similar items where it is demonstrated that such improvements are
necessary for the location or expansion of business or industry 7.C.A. § 4-3-717(h)(2)?

b. Has the commissioner of economic and community development determined the funds make significant
technological improvements such as digital switches or fiber optic cabling that would have a beneficial impact
on the economy of this state 7.C.A. § 4-3-717(h)(2)? If “yes,” attach the commissioner’s rationale.

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

13. s this grant or loan made to a local government, a local government economic development organization or other
political subdivision of the state 7.C.A. § 4-3-717(d)(1)?

14. |Is this grant or loan eligible for FastTrack infrastructure development or job training assistance funds
T.CA. §4-3-717(d)(1)?

15. Wil this grant or loan be used to facilitate economic development activities that include, but are not limited to,
retrofitting, relocating equipment, purchasing equipment, building repairs and improvements, temporary office
space or other temporary equipment related to relocation or expansion of a business T.C.A. § 4-3-717(d)(1)?

16. Will the funds be used in exceptional circumstances wherein the funds will make a proportionally significant
economic impact on the affected community 7.C.A. § 4-3-717(d)(1)? f “yes,” attach an explanation of the
exceptional circumstances and the proportionally significant economic impact.

17. The department of economic and community development is required to notify and provide the state funding board

a detailed written explanation of the purpose for which this economic development grant or loan is being awarded
orused T.C.A. §4-3-717(d)(2). Attach documentation.

| have reviewed this document and believe it to be correct.

H-Jo-22

Date

ioner of Economic and Community Development

[ Yes

[ Yes

[ Yes

O Yes

O Yes

X Yes

[ Yes

X Yes

X Yes

X Yes

[ No

[ No

[ No

[ No

O No

O No

X No

[ No

O No

O No



Department of Economic and Community Development

Stuart McWhorter

. Bill Lee
Commissioner

Governor

March 9, 2023
INCENTIVE ACCEPTANCE FORM

This form serves as notice that 6K Inc. intends, in good faith, to create 230 private sector jobs in Jackson,
Madison County and make a capital investment of $166,388,932 in exchange for incentives that will be
memorialized in a grant agreement between 6K Inc. and the State of Tennessee. New jobs must be in
addition to the company’s baseline of 0 jobs at the project site in Tennessee.

ECD OFFER SUMMARY
FastTrack Economic Development Grant: $ 1,750,000
Total ECD Commitment: $ 1,750,000

Please sign your name in the space below to signify 6K Inc.’s acceptance of ECD's offer set forth above
and return it by June 7, 2023 to:

Tennessee Department of Economic and Community Development
Attn: Allyson Crystal

312 Rosa Parks Avenue, 27th Floor

Nashville, TN 37243

Allyson.Crystal@tn.gov

Please note that this Incentive Acceptance Form does not give rise to any legal obligations on the
part of the State of Tennessee, any department or instrumentality of the State of Tennessee
(including ECD and the Department of Revenue) or the Company. The terms and conditions
governing the award of the incentive package described herein will be set forth in a grant
agreement, the form of which will be provided to the Company following the delivery of an
executed copy of the Incentive Acceptance Form. The incentives described in this letter are based
upon the representations made by the Company to ECD regarding the project. ECD reserves the
right to revise the incentives described in this Incentive Acceptance Form if any aspect of the
project changes after receipt of this form. Changes that could result in revision of incentives
include, but are not limited to, number of jobs, amount of capital investment, composition of
company vs. contract jobs, average wage, or location of the project. ECD reserves the right to
recover funds for this project if grant contracts are not executed within one year of the date of
signature below.

gL — Date: 4/14/2023

(Authorized Representative of Company)

Signature:

Samuel Trinch
Group President, 6K Energy



Department of Economic and Community Development

Stuart McWhorter Bill Lee
Commissioner Governor

April 26, 2023

Comptroller Jason Mumpower
First Floor, State Capitol
Nashville, TN 37243

Dear Comptroller Mumpower:

Pursuant to Tennessee Code Annotated §4-3-717 (d)(1)-(2), | am writing to inform you that the
Department of Economic and Community Development is awarding a FastTrack Economic
Development Grant to the City of Jackson for the benefit of 6K Energy Tennessee, LLC in the
amount of $1,750,000 to offset the costs 6K Energy Tennessee, LLC will incur in new building
construction, acquisition of real property, and fixture improvements. The project activities would
not be eligible for the FastTrack Infrastructure Development Program.

This project will yield a proportionately significant impact on this community due to the number
of net new, high wage jobs, and capital investment. 6K Energy Tennessee, LLC has committed to
create 230 net new jobs and make a $166,388,932 capital investment within five (5) years. The
company will have an average hourly wage of $22.56 for the new positions. This project will have
an exceptional impact on this area of the state.

Sincerely,

Sh it

Stuart McWhorter

SM/js



State Funding Board FastTrack Checklist

FastTrack grants or loans exceeding seven hundred fifty thousand dollars ($750,000) per eligible business within a three-year period require state

funding board approval T.C.A. § 4-3-717(e).

Please identify the type of FastTrack funding requested and the grant or loan amount:

TYPE OF FUNDING RECIPIENT ENTITY GRANT LOAN
: = ; 1llMOUNT : AMOUNT
TRAINING*
| SEveLOPMENT Gity of Tiptonville $2.200,000
TOTAL $8,699,653

(Recipient entity must be a local government, their economic development organization, a political subdivision of the state, or an eligible

business beneficiary [for training only].)

*ELIGIBLE BUSINESS BENEFICIARY (if different than Recipient Entity): Sinova Silicon LLC

Complete the General Statutory Compliance section below and the section(s) that corresponds with the type of funding indicated above. General
Statutory Compliance items apply to all types of funding represented above.

GENERAL STATUTORY COMPLIANCE

1.

Will this new commitment cause the FastTrack appropriations to be over-committed 7.C.A. § 4-3-716(g)?

If “yes,” state funding board concurrence is required. Attach the commissioner’s rationale used to determine the
amount of actual commitments unlikely to be accepted based on historical program trends (maximum allowed is
130% of the appropriations available for new grants).

Will this new commitment place in jeopardy compliance with the legislative intent that actual expenditures and
obligations to be recognized at the end of the fiscal year not exceed available reserves and appropriations of the
programs T.C.A. § 4-3-716(g)?

Does this grant or loan comply with the legislative intent to distribute FastTrack funds in all areas of the state to
the extent practicable T.C.A. § 4-3-716(f)?

Has the commissioner of economic and community development provided to the commissioner of finance and
administration (with copies transmitted to the speaker of the house of representatives, the speaker of the senate,
the chairs of the finance, ways and means committees, the state treasurer, the state comptroller, the office of
legislative budget analysis, and the secretary of state) the most recent quarterly report regarding the status of the
appropriations for the FastTrack fund 7.C.A. § 4-3-716(h)?

Identify which of the following apply:

5.

a. Does the business export more than half of their products or services outside of Tennessee
T.C.A. § 4-3-717(h)(1)(A)?

b. Do more than half of the business’ products or services enter into the production of exported products
T.C.A §4-3-717(h)(1)(B)?

c. Does the use of business’ products primarily result in import substitution on the replacement of imported
products or services with those produced in the state T.C.A. § 4-3-717(h)(1)(C)?

d. Has the commissioner of economic and community development determined the business has other types of
economic activity that contributes significantly to community development education and has a beneficial
impact on the economy of the state T.C.A. § 4-3-717(h)(1)(D)? If “yes,” attach the commissioner’s rationale.

Applicant must answer “Yes” toa or b.

6.

a. Is there a commitment by a responsible official in an eligible business for the creation or retention of private
sector jobs and investment T.C.A. § 4-3-717(a)? If “yes,” attach documentation.

b. Has the commissioner of economic and community development determined that this investment will have a
direct impact on employment and investment opportunities in the future 7.C.A. § 4-3-717(a)? If "yes,” attach
the commissioner’s rationale.

OvYes K No

OvYes X No

X Yes [ No

X Yes [dNo



TRAINING

7. Will the grant support the training of new employees for locating or expanding industries 7.C.A. § 4-3-717(c)(1)?

8. Wil the grant support the retraining of existing employees where retraining is required by the installation of new
machinery or production processes T.C.A. § 4-3-717(c)(2)?

INFRASTRUCTURE

9. Is the land to be improved publicly owned and not subject to a purchase option by a private entity where the
purchase option covering the land may be exercised within a period of five (5) years following the date of the
infrastructure grant? T.C.A. § 4-3-717(b)(2-3)?

10. Is this grant or loan made to a local government, a local government economic development organization or other
political subdivision of the state T.C.A. § 4-3-717(d)(1)?

11. In determining the level of assistance for infrastructure and site preparation, was consideration given to local
ability-to-pay with areas of lesser ability being eligible for higher grant rates T.C.A. § 4-3-717(f)?

Applicant must answer “Yes” to a or b.

12. a. Wil the grant or loan address infrastructure, such as, water, wastewater, transportation systems, line
extensions, industrial site preparation or similar items where it is demonstrated that such improvements are
necessary for the location or expansion of business or industry T.C.A. § 4-3-717(h)(2)?

b. Has the commissioner of economic and community development determined the funds make significant

technological improvements such as digital switches or fiber optic cabling that would have a beneficial impact
on the economy of this state T.C.A. § 4-3-717(h)(2)? If “yes,” attach the commissioner’s rationale.

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

13. Is this grant or loan made to a local government, a local government economic development organization or other
political subdivision of the state T.C.A. § 4-3-717(d)(1)?

14. s this grant or loan eligible for FastTrack infrastructure development or job training assistance funds
T.CA. §4-3-717(d)(1)?

15.  Will this grant or loan be used to facilitate economic development activities that include, but are not limited to,
retrofitting, relocating equipment, purchasing equipment, building repairs and improvements, temporary office
space or other temporary equipment related to relocation or expansion of a business 7.C.A. § 4-3-71 7(d)(1)?

16. Wil the funds be used in exceptional circumstances wherein the funds will make a proportionally significant
economic impact on the affected community 7.C.A. § 4-3-717(c)(1)? If “yes,” attach an explanation of the
exceptional circumstances and the proportionally significant economic impact.

17. The department of economic and community development is required to notify and provide the state funding board

a detailed written explanation of the purpose for which this economic development grant or loan is being awarded
orused T.C A. § 4-3-717(d)(2). Attach documentation.

| have reviewed this document and believe it to be correct.

SLNV’MM DAL Y-10-2.3
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Department of Economic and Community Development

Bob Rolfe Bill Lee

Commissioner Governor

November 30, 2021
INCENTIVE ACCEPTANCE FORM

This form serves as notice that Sinova Global Inc. intends, in good faith, to create 140 private sector jobs
in Tiptonville, Lake County and make a capital investment of $150,000,000 in exchange for incentives
that will be memorialized in a grant agreement between Sinova Global Inc. and the State of Tennessee.
New jobs must be in addition to the company’s baseline of 0 jobs at the project site in Tennessee.

ECD OFFER SUMMARY
FastTrack Economic Development Grant: $ 2,200,000
Total ECD Commitment: $2,200,000

*This incentive amount reflects an increase of 50% due to the company’s investment in a distressed
county.

Please sign your name in the space below to signify Sinova Global Inc.’s acceptance of ECD's offer set
forth above and return it by February 28, 2022 to:

Tennessee Department of Economic and Community Development
Attn: Joey Viola

312 Rosa Parks Avenue, 27th Floor

Nashville, TN 37243

Joey.Viola@tn.gov

Please note that this Incentive Acceptance Form does not give rise to any legal obligations on the
part of the State of Tennessee, any department or instrumentality of the State of Tennessee
(including ECD and the Department of Revenue) or the Company. The terms and conditions
governing the award of the incentive package described herein will be set forth in a grant
agreement, the form of which will be provided to the Company following the delivery of an
executed copy of the Incentive Acceptance Form. The incentives described in this letter are based
upon the representations made by the Company to ECD regarding the project. ECD reserves the
right to revise the incentives described in this Incentive Acceptance Form if any aspect of the
project changes after receipt of this form. Changes that could result in revision of incentives
include, but are not limited to, number of jobs, amount of capital investment, composition of
company vs~contract jobs, average wage, or location of the project. ECD reserves the right to
recover fupds\for this project if ontracts are not executed within one year of the date of

signature helow.
Date: [Q&C Qj ;0( v

Signature:

Vr\nvm )
(Au ri%ed %prc{éﬁtaﬁve of Company)



Department of Economic and Community Development

Stuart McWhorter

Commissioner (l::)l\l eL:
/ or

April 14, 2023
INCENTIVE ACCEPTANCE FORM

‘This' form serves as notice that Sinova Silicon LLC intends, in good faith, to create 140 private sector jobs
in Tiptonville, Lake County and make a capital investment of $150,000,000 in exchange for incentives
that \yill be memorialized in a grant agreement between Sinova Silicon LLC and the State of Tennessee.
New jobs must be in addition to the company’s baseline of 0 jobs at the project site in Tennessee.

ECD OFFER SUMMARY
FastTrack Infrastructure Grant: $ 6,499,653
Total ECD Commitment: $ 6,499,653

Please sign your name in the space below to signify Sinova Silicon LLC’s acceptance of ECD's offer set
forth above and return it by July 13, 2023 to:

Tennessee Department of Economic and Community Development
Attn: Allyson Crystal

312 Rosa Parks Avenue, 27th Floor

Nashville, TN 37243

Allyson.Crystal@tn.gov

Please note that this Incentive Acceptance Form does not give rise to any legal obligations on the
part of the State of Tennessee, any department or instrumentality of the State of Tennessee
(including ECD and the Department of Revenue) or the Company. The terms and conditions
governing the award of the incentive package described herein will be set forth in a grant
agreement, the form of which will be provided to the Company following the delivery of an
executed copy of the Incentive Acceptance Form. The incentives described in this letter are based
upon the representations made by the Company to ECD regarding the project. ECD reserves the
right to revise the incentives described in this Incentive Acceptance Form if any aspect of the
project changes after receipt of this form. Changes that could result in revision of incentives
include, but are not limited to, number of jobs, amount of capital investment, composition of
company vs. contract jobs, average wage, or location of the project. ECD reserves the right to
recover funds for this project if grant contracts are not executed within one year of the date of
signature below.

Qa\,‘“,’i Apr 17, 2023 | 9:12 AM PDT

Signature: Date:

(Authorized Representative of Company)



State Funding Board FastTrack Checklist

FastTrack grants or Joans exceeding seven hundred fifty thousand dollars ($750,000) per eligible business within a three-year period require state
funding board approval T.C.A. § 4-3-717(e).

Please identify the type of FastTrack funding requested and the grant or loan amount:

TYPE OF FUNDING RECIPIENT ENTITY LOAN
, AMOUNT AMOUNT
TRAINING*
TOTAL $1,000,000

(Recipient entity must be a local government, their economic development organization, a political subdivision of the state, or an eligible

business beneficiary [for training only].)

*ELIGIBLE BUSINESS BENEFICIARY (if different than Recipient Entity): Kordsa Inc.

Complete the General Statutory Compliance section below and the section(s) that corresponds with the type of funding indicated above. General
Statutory Compliance items apply to all types of funding represented above.

GENERAL STATUTORY COMPLIANCE

il

Will this new commitment cause the FastTrack appropriations to be over-committed 7.C.A. § 4-3-716(g)?

If “yes,” state funding board concurrence is required. Attach the commissioner’s rationale used to determine the
amount of actual commitments unlikely to be accepted based on historical program trends (maximum allowed is
130% of the appropriations available for new grants).

Will this new commitment place in jeopardy compliance with the legislative intent that actual expenditures and
obligations to be recognized at the end of the fiscal year not exceed available reserves and appropriations of the
programs T.C.A. § 4-3-716(g)?

Does this grant or loan comply with the legislative intent to distribute FastTrack funds in all areas of the state to
the extent practicable 7.C.A. § 4-3-716(f)?

Has the commissioner of economic and community development provided to the commissioner of finance and
administration (with copies transmitted to the speaker of the house of representatives, the speaker of the senate,
the chairs of the finance, ways and means committees, the state treasurer, the state comptroller, the office of
legislative budget analysis, and the secretary of state) the most recent quarterly report regarding the status of the
appropriations for the FastTrack fund T.C.A. § 4-3-716(h)?

Identify which of the following apply:

5.

a. Does the business export more than half of their products or services outside of Tennessee
T.C.A. § 4-3-717(h)(1)(A)?

b. Do more than half of the business’ products or services enter into the production of exported products
T.C.A §4-3-717(h)(1)(B)?

c. Does the use of business’ products primarily result in import substitution on the replacement of imported
products or services with those produced in the state T.C.A. § 4-3-717(h)( 1)(C)?

d. Has the commissioner of economic and community development determined the business has other types of
economic activity that contributes significantly to community development education and has a beneficial
impact on the economy of the state T.C.A. § 4-3-717(h)(1)(D)? If “yes,” attach the commissioner’s rationale.

Applicant must answer “Yes” to a or b.

6.

a. s there a commitment by a responsible official in an eligible business for the creation or retention of private
sector jobs and investment T.C.A. § 4-3-717(a)? If “yes,” attach documentation.

b. Has the commissioner of economic and community development determined that this investment will have a
direct impact on employment and investment opportunities in the future T.C.A. § 4-3-717(a)? If “yes,” attach
the commissioner’s rationale.

OYes X No

OYes X No

Yes [ No

X Yes [ No

o o 0O X



TRAINING

7. Will the grant support the training of new employees for locating or expanding industries T.C.A. § 4-3-717(c)(1)?

8. Wil the grant support the retraining of existing employees where retraining is required by the installation of new
machinery or production processes T.C.A. § 4-3-717(c)(2)?

INFRASTRUCTURE

9. Is the land to be improved publicly owned and not subject to a purchase option by a private entity where the
purchase option covering the land may be exercised within a period of five (5) years following the date of the
infrastructure grant? T.C.A. § 4-3-717(b)(2-3)?

10. s this grant or loan made to a local government, a local government economic development organization or other
political subdivision of the state T.C.A. § 4-3-717(d)(1)?

11. In determining the level of assistance for infrastructure and site preparation, was consideration given to local
ability-to-pay with areas of lesser ability being efigible for higher grant rates T.C.A. § 4-3-71 7()?

Applicant must answer “Yes” to a or b.

12. a.  Will the grant or loan address infrastructure, such as, water, wastewater, transportation systems, line
extensions, industrial site preparation or similar items where it is demonstrated that such improvements are
necessary for the location or expansion of business or industry 7.C.A. § 4-3-71 7(h)(2)?

b. Has the commissioner of economic and community development determined the funds make significant

technological improvements such as digital switches or fiber optic cabling that would have a beneficial impact
on the economy of this state T.C.A. § 4-3-717(h)(2)? If “yes,” attach the commissioner’s rationale.

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

13. Is this grant or loan made to a local government, a local government economic development organization or other
political subdivision of the state T.C.A. § 4-3-717(d)(1)?

14. s this grant or loan eligible for FastTrack infrastructure development or job training assistance funds
T.CA. § 4-3-717(d)(1)?

15. Wil this grant or loan be used to facilitate economic development activities that include, but are not limited to,
retrofitting, relocating equipment, purchasing equipment, building repairs and improvements, temporary office
space or other temporary equipment related to relocation or expansion of a business T.C.A. § 4-3-717(d)(1)?

16. Will the funds be used in exceptional circumstances wherein the funds will make a proportionally significant
economic impact on the affected community T.C.A. § 4-3-717(d)(1)? If “yes,” attach an explanation of the
exceptional circumstances and the proportionally significant economic impact.

17. The department of economic and community development is required to notify and provide the state funding board

a detailed written explanation of the purpose for which this economic development grant or loan is being awarded
orused T.C.A. § 4-3-717(d)(2). Attach documentation.

| have reviewed this document and believe it to be correct.
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Department of Economic and

Stuart McWhorter Bill Lee

Commissioner Governor

November 10, 2022
INCENTIVE ACCEPTANCE FORM

This form serves as notice that Kordsa Inc. intends, in good faith, to create 200 private sector jobs in
Chattanooga, Hamilton County and make a capital investment of $50,000,000 in exchange for incentives
that will be memorialized in a grant agreement between Kordsa Inc. and the State of Tennessee. New jobs
must be in addition to the company’s baseline of 238 jobs at the project site in Tennessee.

ECD OFFER SUMMARY
FastTrack Economic Development Grant: $ 1,000,000
Total ECD Commitment: $ 1,000,000

Please sign your name in the space below to signify Kordsa Inc.’s acceptance of ECD's offer set forth above
and return it by February 8, 2023 to:

Tennessee Department of Economic and Community Development
Attn: Allyson Woodward

312 Rosa Parks Avenue, 27th Floor

Nashville, TN 37243

Allyson.Woodward@tn.gov

Please note that this Incentive Acceptance Form does not give rise to any legal obligations on the part
of the State of Tennessee, any department or instrumentality of the State of Tennessee (including
ECD and the Department of Revenue) or the Company. The terms and conditions governing the
award of the incentive package described herein will be set forth in a grant agreement, the form of
which will be provided to the Company following the delivery of an executed copy of the Incentive
Acceptance Form. The incentives described in this letter are based upon the representations made
by the Company to ECD regarding the project. ECD reserves the right to revise the incentives
described in this Incentive Acceptance Form if any aspect of the project changes after receipt of this
form. Changes that could result in revision of incentives include, but are not limited to, number of
jobs, amount of capital investment, composition of company vs. contract jobs, average wage, or
location of the project. ECD reserves the right to recover funds for this project if grant contracts are

not executed within (o:jie‘if:ﬁ/e\da/teof signature below.
Signature:/\i Date:_Jonudory 20,202 J

(Authorized Ref)resentative of Company)




Department of Economic and Community Development

Stuart McWhorter Bill Lee

Commissioner Governor

April 26, 2023

Comptroller Jason Mumpower
First Floor, State Capitol
Nashville, TN 37243

Dear Comptroller Mumpower:

Pursuant to Tennessee Code Annotated §4-3-717 (d)(1)-(2), | am writing to inform you that the
Department of Economic and Community Development is awarding a FastTrack Economic
Development Grant to the Hamilton County Government for the benefit of Kordsa Inc. in the
amount of $1,000,000 to offset the costs Kordsa Inc. will incur in fixture improvements, building
improvements, building expansion, and building retrofit. The project activities would not be
eligible for the FastTrack Infrastructure Development Program.

This project will yield a proportionately significant impact on this community due to the number
of net new, high wage jobs. Kordsa Inc. has committed to create 200 net new jobs and make a
$50,000,000 capital investment within five (5) years. The company will have an average hourly
wage of $25.55 for the new positions. This project will have an exceptional impact on this area
of the state.

Sincerely,

Fienad

Stuart McWhorter

SM/js



A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND PROVIDING FOR
THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF GENERAL OBLIGATION
BONDS OF THE STATE OF TENNESSEE

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE FUNDING BOARD OF THE STATE OF
TENNESSEE:

SECTION 1. Findings and Determinations. (a) The State of Tennessee (the
“State”), by various Public Acts of its General Assembly, has authorized, and is expected to
authorize, the issuance of general obligation bonds of the State in the respective principal
amounts and for public purposes of the respective State departments and institutions, among
others, including without limitation to make grants to counties, metropolitan governments,
incorporated towns, cities, special districts of the State, or government agencies or
instrumentalities of any of them, all as set forth therein. General obligation bonds and bond
anticipation notes have been issued against certain of such authorizations, and certain of such
authorizations have been cancelled and rescinded.

(b) By resolutions adopted by the Funding Board of the State of Tennessee
(the “Funding Board”) on August23, 2000, October 15, 2001, July 30, 2002, June 27, 2003,
July 26,2004, August 5, 2005, June 27, 2006, July 23, 2007, June 30, 2008, March 24, 2009,
August 5, 2009, July 15, 2010, June 30, 2011, June 6, 2012, June 25, 2013, June 18, 2014,
June 23,2015,June 9, 2016, June22,2017,July 17,2018, June27, 2019, July 20, 2020, July 22,
2021 and July 26, 2022, each entitled “A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS OF THE STATE OF TENNESSEE” or “A RESOLUTION
AUTHORIZING, AND AMENDING A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING, THE ISSUANCE OF
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS OF THE STATE OF TENNESSEE” (collectively, the
“Bond Resolution”), the Funding Board has authorized the issuance of general obligation bonds
of the State (the “General Obligation Bonds”) under the provisions of certain of the Public
Acts of the General Assembly referred to in subsection (a) above.

(©) Pursuant to a resolution adopted by the Funding Board on March 6, 2000,
as amended and restated on August 5, 2009, entitled “RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND
PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF COMMERCIAL PAPER;
AUTHORIZING AND PROVIDING FOR A STANDBY COMMERCIAL PAPER
PURCHASE AGREEMENT; AND PROVIDING FOR CERTAIN OTHER MATTERS
RELATING THERETO” (the “Commercial Paper Resolution”), the State authorized the
issuance from time to time of bond anticipation notes constituting General Obligation
Commercial Paper Series A (Tax-Exempt) and Series B (Federally Taxable) in an aggregate
principal amount not to exceed $350,000,000 at any one time outstanding (the “Commercial
Paper”) for the purposes set forth in the Commercial Paper Resolution, the Bond Resolution and
the Public Acts of Tennessee referred to in the Bond Resolution.

(d) The outstanding Commercial Paper matures from time to time, and it is in

the best interests of the State to pay at maturity a portion of the outstanding Commercial Paper
(the “Refundable Commercial Paper”) by issuance of General Obligation Bonds.
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(e) It is advisable and in the best interests of the State to provide at this time
for the issuance of General Obligation Bonds as authorized by Section 2 hereof to refund
Refundable Commercial Paper and to fund purposes in amounts authorized by Public Acts of the
General Assembly and not heretofore funded by issuance of Commercial Paper or General
Obligation Bonds.

() The Funding Board acknowledges that the Director of the Comptroller of
the Treasury’s Division of State Government Finance has made a presentation to the staff of the
Funding Board pursuant to and meeting the requirements of the Funding Board’s Debt
Management Policy (the “Debt Management Policy”) under the subsection “Debt
Administration — Planning for Sale”.

SECTION 2. Authorization of Bonds; Delegation; Series Certificate. (a) There
is hereby authorized to be issued and sold general obligation bonds of the State for the purposes
set forth in Section 1 hereof (the “Bonds”). The Bonds may be issued (i) at one time or from
time to time and (i1) as one or more series the interest on which is excluded from gross income
for Federal income tax purposes (the “Tax-Exempt Bonds”) and/or in one or more series the

interest on which is included in gross income for Federal income tax purposes (the “Taxable
Bonds”).

(b) Prior to or simultaneous with the issuance of the Bonds for the purposes
set forth in Sections 1(b) and (d) hereof, the Secretary or Assistant Secretary of the Funding
Board shall certify as of the date of issuance (i) the purpose or purposes for which such Bonds
are to be issued including reference to the Public Act or Acts of the General Assembly
authorizing the issuance of general obligation bonds and bond anticipation notes therefor, (ii) the
principal amount of such Bonds proposed to be issued for each such purpose, including the
principal amount of Refundable Commercial Paper of each series to be refunded from proceeds
of such Bonds, (iii) the principal amount of general obligation bonds and bond anticipation notes
(including Commercial Paper) theretofore issued for each such purpose and (iv) that such
principal amount of general obligation bonds and bond anticipation notes, together with the
principal amount of such Bonds, will not exceed the aggregate principal amount of general
obligation bonds and bond anticipation notes (unless, in the case of notes, such notes have been
funded by issuance of bonds) authorized by such Public Act or Acts less any such authorization
theretofore rescinded or cancelled or otherwise not in effect. The certification required by such
clause (i1)) may be amended from time to time subsequent to the date of issuance, but only if
accompanied by the certifications required by such clauses (iii) and (iv) which shall reflect such
amendment.

(c) The Funding Board hereby delegates to the Secretary or any Assistant
Secretary of the Funding Board, the Secretary of State or the State Treasurer (each, an
“Authorized Officer”) the power to determine, by means of a Series Certificate or Series
Certificates (each, a “Series Certificate”), the following:

(1) the matters provided in this Section and Sections 3, 5, 6 and 7 hereof, and

(i1) any other matters and provisions deemed advisable by such Authorized
Officer and not materially in conflict herewith.
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(d) Each Series Certificate shall be filed with the records of the Funding
Board, whereupon it shall be deemed for all purposes of this Resolution to have been adopted by
the Funding Board and to be a part of this Resolution as if set forth in full herein.

(e) The State (acting through the State Treasurer or the State Comptroller or
both) initially shall be the paying agent and registrar for all Bonds. The Funding Board may at
any time appoint an agent of the State for the purpose of making payments to registered owners
of all or any of the Bonds of the principal of and redemption premium, if any, and interest on
such Bonds, maintaining books of registry of the ownership of such Bonds and registering the
ownership and transfer thereof, authenticating such Bonds, or performing such other duties of a
paying agent and registrar as may be prescribed by the Funding Board.

SECTION 3. Details of Bonds. The following provisions set forth details of the
Bonds, subject in each case (except subsection (a) of this Section) to any contrary specification
in a Series Certificate.

(a) Amounts, Dates, Interest Rates, Etc. The Bonds shall (i) be in such
aggregate principal amount, not to exceed $510,000,000, (ii) be dated and bear interest from such
date or dates, (iii) be issuable in such form, (iv) be of such denominations, (v) be numbered and
bear such other designations, (vi) mature on the dates (which shall not be later than 21 years after
the date of issuance) and in the principal amounts, (vii) bear interest at the rates, not to exceed
5.50% in the case of the Tax-Exempt Bonds and 6.50% in the case of the Taxable Bonds, and be
payable on the dates and in the manner, (viii) be serial bonds or term bonds, (ix) if term bonds,
be subject to retirement by mandatory sinking fund redemption, and (x) be subject to redemption
prior to maturity at the times (but initially not later than ten and one-half years from the date of
initial delivery of the Bonds) and at a fixed redemption price or prices not to exceed 103% of the
principal amount to be redeemed or, in the case of Taxable Bonds, at such a fixed redemption
price or prices or at a make-whole price or prices, or a combination thereof, in each case plus
accrued interest, or may be non-callable if (except for Tax-Exempt Bonds maturing not later than
ten and one-half years from the date of initial delivery or for Taxable bonds) so determined by
the Funding Board by further action pursuant to the Debt Management Policy subsection “Debt
Management Structure — Call Provisions”, all as provided in the respective Series Certificate.

(b) Payment, Transfer, Exchange, Etc. Principal of and redemption premium,
if any, and interest on the Bonds shall be payable in any coin or currency of the United States of

America which at the time of such payment is legal tender for the payment of public and private
debts.

Principal of and redemption premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds shall be
payable by check or draft mailed to each registered owner of such Bonds at the address of such
owner as it appears in the books of registry maintained by or on behalf of the State, in the case of
interest only to such owner and to such address as of the close of business on such day as shall be
determined by Series Certificate, and in the case of principal and redemption premium only upon
presentation and surrender to the State Treasurer in Nashville, Tennessee, or an agent of the State
designated for the purpose; provided, however, that for so long as DTC (as defined in
subsection (d) of this Section) or its nominee, or any substitute depository, or successor, is the
registered owner of Bonds as Securities Depository (as defined in subsection (d) of this Section),
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payment of principal and sinking fund installments, if any, of and redemption premium, if any,
and interest on such Bonds may be made in any manner agreed to by the State and DTC, or any
substitute depository, or successor, as the case may be.

The Bonds will have all the qualities and incidents of a negotiable instrument.
Bonds will be transferable only upon presentation and surrender to the State or an agent of the
State designated in accordance with this Resolution, together with an assignment duly executed
by the registered owner of the Bond or by his duly authorized representative in form satisfactory
to the State or such agent and containing information required by the State or such agent in order
to effect such transfer.

The State or any such agent may make a charge sufficient to reimburse it for any
tax, fee or other governmental charge required to be paid with respect to an exchange or transfer
of a Bond, and may charge the person requesting such exchange or transfer a sum or sums
sufficient to pay the cost of preparing each new Bond issued, which sum or sums shall be paid as
a condition precedent to the exercise of the privilege of making such exchange or transfer.

The State and such agent shall not be obligated to make any such exchange or
transfer of Bonds during the 15 days next preceding an interest payment date on the Bonds or, in
the case of any proposed redemption of the Bonds, during the 45 days next preceding the date of
redemption.

In case any Bond shall become mutilated or be destroyed, stolen or lost, the State
shall execute and deliver, or cause such agent to authenticate and deliver, a new Bond of like
series, maturity, principal amount and interest rate as the Bond so mutilated, destroyed, stolen or
lost, in exchange and substitution for such mutilated Bond, upon surrender and cancellation of
such mutilated Bond, or in lieu of and in substitution for the Bond destroyed, stolen or lost, upon
filing with the State and such agent evidence satisfactory to the State and such agent that such
Bond has been destroyed, stolen or lost and proof of ownership thereof, and upon furnishing the
State with indemnity satisfactory to it and complying with such other reasonable regulations as
the State may prescribe and paying such expenses as the State and such agent may incur. All
Bonds so surrendered to the State or such agent shall be cancelled by it.

@) Optional Redemption. The Bonds may be subject to redemption prior to
their stated maturities, from any moneys available to the State for such purpose, as determined
pursuant to Section 3(a)(x) hereof.

Notice of redemption shall be mailed, or delivered by physical or electronic
means, not less than 30 days prior to the redemption date, to the registered owners of the Bonds
which are to be redeemed in whole or in part at the mail, physical or electronic means addresses
as shown in the bond register kept by the State or its agent as of the 45th calendar day preceding
the redemption date, but the failure to receive any such notice shall not affect the sufficiency or
the validity of the redemption of such Bonds. Such notice shall specify the designation, date,
number, and maturity of the bonds to be redeemed, the principal amount to be redeemed if less
than the entire principal amount thereof, the date and place fixed for such redemption and the
redemption price payable upon such redemption. The provisions of this paragraph shall not
apply if and to the extent otherwise provided in a Series Certificate.
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Any notice of optional redemption may be made conditional upon the availability
of sufficient moneys to pay the redemption price, plus interest accrued and unpaid to the
redemption date.

Notice having been given in the manner provided, the Bonds or portions thereof
so called for redemption shall become due and payable on the redemption date specified in such
notice, subject to the foregoing conditional notice provisions. Upon presentation and surrender
of the Bonds to be redeemed in whole or in part at the offices specified in such notice, together
with, in the case of Bonds presented by other than the registered owner, a written instrument of
transfer duly executed by the registered owner or by the registered owner’s duly authorized
representative, such Bonds or portions thereof so called for redemption shall be paid at the
redemption price established above. If less than all of a Bond shall be redeemed, the State shall
execute and deliver, or cause an agent of the State appointed for the purpose to authenticate and
deliver, upon the surrender of such Bond, without charge to the registered owner thereof, for the
unredeemed balance of the principal amount of the Bond so surrendered, registered Bond(s) of
like series, maturity and interest rate in authorized denominations. If, on the redemption date,
moneys for the redemption of all of the Bonds or portions thereof of any like maturity to be
redeemed, together with interest to the redemption date, shall be held so as to be available for
purposes of redemption on said date and if notice of redemption shall have been given as
required by this Resolution, then from and after the redemption date, interest on the Bonds or
portions thereof of such maturity so called for redemption shall cease to accrue and become
payable. If said moneys shall not be available on the redemption date, such Bonds or portions
thereof shall continue to bear interest until paid at the same rate as they would have borne had
they not been called for redemption. The provisions of this paragraph shall not apply if and to
the extent otherwise provided in a Series Certificate.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, so long as DTC or its nominee, or any substitute
depository, or successor, is the registered owner of Bonds as Securities Depository (as defined in
subsection (d) of this Section), notice of redemption may be given in the manner, and
presentation and surrender of Bonds may be waived to the extent, agreed to by the State and
DTC, or any substitute depository, or successor, as the case may be. Any failure of DTC or any
substitute depository, or successor, or participant of any thereof, to notify a beneficial owner of a
Bond of any redemption shall not affect the sufficiency or the validity of the redemption of such
Bond.

(d) Book-Entry Only. The Bonds when initially issued shall be registered in
the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York
(“DTC”). DTC is hereby designated the securities depository for the Bonds (“Securities
Depository”), except as provided in subsection (f) of this Section. So long as DTC or its
nominee is the registered owner of the Bonds as Securities Depository, individual purchases of
beneficial ownership interests in the Bonds may be made only in book-entry form by or through
DTC participants, and purchasers of such beneficial ownership interests in Bonds will not
receive physical delivery of Bond certificates representing the beneficial ownership interest
purchased.
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The State shall have no responsibility for transmitting payments to,
communicating with, notifying, or otherwise dealing with any beneficial owners of the Bonds or
nominees thereof.

(e) Replacement Bonds. The State shall issue Bond certificates (the
“Replacement Bonds”) directly to beneficial owners of the Bonds or to DTC, as specified by
DTC procedures, but only in the event that (i) DTC determines to discontinue providing its
services with respect to the Bonds, or (ii) the State discontinues use of DTC (or any substitute
depository, or successor), subject to DTC procedures. The State shall be fully protected in
relyingupon information provided by DTC, DTC participants or other nominees of beneficial
owners, or beneficial owners with respect to the names, addresses and amounts owned by the
beneficial owners and other information supplied by them for the purpose of delivering
Replacement Bonds.

(f) Substitute Securities Depository. Provisions similar to those contained in
subsections (d) and (e) of this Section may be made by the State in connection with the
appointment by the State of a substitute Securities Depository for the Bonds, or in the event of a
successor to DTC, or to any substitute or successor of any thereof.

SECTION 4. Security for the Bonds. The Bonds shall be issued under Title 9,
Chapter 9, Tennessee Code Annotated, and shall constitute direct general obligations of the State
for the payment of the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on which there is pledged
the full faith and credit of the State. The Bonds shall constitute a charge and lien upon the entire
fees, taxes and other revenues and funds allocated to the general fund, the debt service fund, and
the highway fund of the State; and, if necessary, upon the first such fees, taxes, revenues and
funds thereafter received and allocated to such funds, except only such fees, taxes, revenues and
funds as may be otherwise legally restricted. The State hereby covenants with the persons who
now or may hereafter hold any Bonds that it will raise fees, taxes and other revenues sufficient,
together with funds on hand derived from all sources, to pay the principal of and premium, if
any, and interest on the Bonds as and when due and payable.

SECTION 5. Sale and Issuance of Bonds; Preliminary Official Statement; Final
Official Statement. (a) If the Bonds are divided pursuant to Section 2(a) hereof, the Bonds of
more than one series may be sold collectively or on a series-by-series basis.

(b) No Bonds shall be sold unless the debt service coverage test of Section 9-
9-105(c), Tennessee Code Annotated, will be satisfied as of the date of issuance of such Bonds.

() The Bonds of each series may be sold at either a competitive or negotiated
sale, the Bonds of any series may be sold by any such method, and the Bonds of any other series
may be sold by any other such method, as determined in a Series Certificate.

(d) If Sold by Competitive Sale:

(1) There is hereby authorized a Notice of Sale relating to the Bonds sold at
competitive sale, substantially in the form utilized in connection with the sale of the State’s
General Obligation Bonds, 2019 Series A and General Obligation Bonds, 2019 Series B

(Federally Taxable) with such insertions, changes and additions to and omissions from said form
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as any Authorized Officer, after consultation with counsel to the Funding Board, shall approve as
necessary or appropriate (the “Notice of Sale”), the distribution of which as hereinafter
authorized shall be conclusive evidence of such approval and consultation. In addition, such
Notices of Sale shall include the certification required by Section 12-4-119, Tennessee Code
Annotated.

(2) Any Authorized Officer is hereby authorized to cause the Notice of Sale
and Preliminary Official Statement (as defined in subsection (f) of this Section 5) to be
distributed to prospective purchasers of such Bonds and/or published on any Internet platform.
The use of any Internet platform as a communications medium to receive bids for the purchase of
such Bonds, as may be provided in the Notice of Sale, also is hereby authorized.

3) Any Authorized Officer may award the Bonds to the successful bidder or
bidders therefor (the “Competitive Sale Purchasers”) determined in accordance with and
otherwise complying with the Notice of Sale or, as permitted by the Notice of Sale, may reject
any or all proposals received for the purchase of such Bonds or waive any irregularity in any
proposal; provided, however, that the true interest cost of such Bonds, determined as provided in
the Notice of Sale by the Authorized Officer executing the related Series Certificate, which
determination shall be conclusive, shall not exceed 5.50% for Tax-Exempt Bonds of each series
and 6.50% for Taxable Bonds of each series, on a series-by-series basis. Such awards and
determinations shall be confirmed in the related Series Certificate.

(e) If Sold by Negotiated Sale:

4) The Bonds sold at negotiated sale are hereby authorized to be sold to such
direct purchasers or underwriters as may be named in the Bond Purchase Agreements authorized
in paragraph (2) below (collectively, the “Negotiated Sale Purchasers” and, together with the
Competitive Sale Purchasers, the “Purchasers”) upon the terms and conditions set forth in the
Bond Purchase Agreements; provided, however, that the direct purchasers, or lead book-running
underwriter(s) and senior manager(s), thereunder shall be selected from among the following or
any parent or affiliate thereof: Barclays, FHN Financial Capital Markets, Jefferies LLC, J.P.
Morgan, Loop Capital Markets, LLC, Morgan Stanley & Co., LLC, Ramirez & Company, Inc.,
Raymond James & Associates, Inc., Truist Securities, Inc., Siebert Williams Shank & Co., LLC,
UBS Financial Services Inc., Wells Fargo N.A. and Wells Fargo Securities, LLC. In
consideration of Section 2(d) hereof and paragraph (2) below, itis not necessary for the Funding
Board to place any limitation on the purchase price payable by the Negotiated Sale Purchasers.

(5) Any Authorized Officer is hereby authorized to execute and deliver a
Bond Purchase Agreement or Agreements, substantially in the form executed and delivered in
connection with the issuance of the State’s General Obligation Bonds, 2021 Series A, 2021
Refunding Series B (Federally Taxable), but reflecting details of the transactions contemplated
by this Resolution and any updates to applicable laws, with such variations as the Authorized
Officer executing such agreements, after consultation with counsel to the Funding Board, shall
approve as necessary or appropriate (each, a “Bond Purchase Agreement”), such execution and
delivery to be conclusive evidence of such approval and consultation; provided, however, that
the true interest cost of such Bonds, determined by a Series Certificate, which determination
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shall be conclusive, shall not exceed 5.50% for Tax-Exempt Bonds of each series and 6.50% for
Taxable Bonds of each series, on a series-by-series basis.

(f) The Funding Board hereby authorizes a Preliminary Official Statement
relating to the Bonds, substantially in the form presented to the Members of the Funding Board
in advance of the meeting at which this Resolution is adopted, with such insertions, changes and
additions to and omissions from said form as any Authorized Officer, after consultation with
counsel to the Funding Board, shall approve as necessary or appropriate (the “Preliminary
Official Statement”), the publication or distribution of which as hereinafter authorized shall be
conclusive evidence of such approval and consultation; provided, however, that a draft thereof
shall be distributed to the members of the Funding Board prior to publication and distribution as
hereinafter authorized. The Comptroller of the Treasury, as Secretary of the Funding Board, the
Secretary of State or the State Treasurer is hereby authorized to cause the Preliminary Official
Statement to be distributed to prospective purchasers of the Bonds and/or published on the
Internet via any Internet platform, substantially in such form, with such necessary or appropriate
variations, omissions and insertions as determined by such officer after consultation with counsel
to the Funding Board. The Comptroller of the Treasury, as Secretary of the Funding Bond, the
Secretary of State or the State Treasurer is authorized to (i) determine that the Preliminary
Official Statement, as so modified, is “deemed final” as of its date for purposes of Securities and
Exchange Commission Rule 15¢2-12 except for omissions permitted by such Rule, subject to
revision, amendment and completion in the final Official Statement as defined in such Rule,
(i1) include such determination in the Notice of Sale and/or Preliminary Official Statement, and
(ii1) confirm such determination in a Series Certificate or Bond Purchase Agreement.

(g) The Comptroller of the Treasury, as Secretary of the Funding Board, is
hereby authorized and directed to prepare or cause to be prepared, and to execute and deliver, an
Official Statement relating to the Bonds substantially in the form of the Preliminary Official
Statement, with such necessary or appropriate insertions, changes, additions and omissions as
determined by the Comptroller after consultation with counsel to the Funding Board, which
execution shall be conclusive evidence of such determination and consultation.

(h) The Funding Board hereby authorizes the use and distribution of the
Preliminary Official Statement and the Official Statement in connection with the offering and
sale of the Bonds.

(1) The Authorized Officers and other officers and employees of the Funding
Board, and other officials and employees of the State, including those of the Comptroller of the
Treasury’s Division of State Government Finance, are hereby authorized and directed to carry
out or cause to be carried out all obligations of the Funding Board under each Bond Purchase
Agreement and to execute and deliver all documents and to perform such other actions not
otherwise provided for by this Section as they, in consultation with counsel to the Funding
Board, shall consider necessary or advisable in connection with the issuance, sale and delivery of
the Bonds.

() All actions heretofore taken by the officers, employees and agents of the

Funding Board in connection with the offering and sale of the Bonds are hereby ratified and
confirmed.
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SECTION 6. Form and Execution of Bonds. (a) The Bonds shall be in
substantially the form set forth in Appendix A to this Resolution with necessary or appropriate
insertions, changes, additions and omissions as are incidental to series, number, interest rate,
CUSIP number and denomination or as are otherwise permitted or required by law or by this
Resolution (including but not limited to such changes as may be provided in or to be consistent
with the respective Series Certificate), or in such other form as may be specified by an
Authorized Officer in the case of Bonds not held by a securities depository under a
book-entry-only system of registration. The Bonds shall be executed in the name of the State by
the manual or facsimile signature of the Governor, the Secretary of State, the State Treasurer, the
Commissioner of Finance and Administration or the Comptroller of the Treasury, and
countersigned by the manual or facsimile signature of one other of such officers, one of which
signatures shall be manual (unless the Bonds shall be authenticated pursuant to subsection (b)
below), with the Great Seal of the State of Tennessee, or a facsimile thereof, affixed thereto or
impressed or imprinted thereon.

(b) The Bonds each may have endorsed thereon a certificate of authentication
executed by the registrar therefor by manual signature. If any Bonds contain such an
endorsement unless and until such certificate of authentication shall have been manually
executed by an authorized officer of such registrar, no such Bond shall be valid or obligatory for
any purpose or shall be entitled to any right or benefit under the Resolution. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, the provisions of this paragraph shall not apply to Bonds if the State is the registrar
therefor.

SECTION 7. Application of Bond Proceeds and Other Moneys. (a) An amount
of proceeds derived from the sale of each series of Bonds equal to the accrued interest, if any,
paid by the Purchasers thereof shall be deposited in the Debt Service Fund and used to pay a
portion of the interest on such Bonds coming due on the first interest payment date or dates
therefor.

(b)  An amount of proceeds derived from the sale of each series of Bonds,
which may include a portion of any premium over the par amount of such Bonds paid by the
Purchasers thereof, equal to any principal amount of the Refundable Commercial Paper to be
paid from such proceeds, as provided in Sections 1(d) and 2(a) hereof, shall be deposited in the
Capital Projects Fund and used solely for the purpose of paying such principal when due at
maturity in accordance with the Commercial Paper Resolution.

() The portion of any premium paid by the Purchasers for each series of
Bonds which is not applied as described in subsection (b) above shall be used for purposes
described in subsection (d) below or deposited in the Debt Service Fund and used to pay a
portion of the interest on such Bonds coming due on the first interest payment date or dates
therefor, or costs of issuing such Bonds.

(d) The balance, if any, of the proceeds derived from the sale of each series of
Bonds shall be paid to the State Treasurer to be disbursed by the State Treasurer and other proper
fiscal officers of the State as provided by general law and by the Public Acts of Tennessee
referred to in Section 1(a) hereof, including but not limited to disbursement to pay costs of
issuance of the Bonds. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, such disbursements may
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be made in reimbursement of previous expenditures for such purposes, and may be made directly
as required by any agreement between the State and the grantee pursuant to Section 4(2) of
Chapter 1133, Public Acts of 2022.

(e) If and when any premium paid by the Purchasers is applied to the
retirement of Commercial Paper as described in subsection (b) above or to pay costs of capital
projects as described in subsection (d) above, the related bond authorizations shall be accounted
for as issued to the extent of the amounts so applied.

SECTION 8. RESERVED.

SECTION 9. CUSIP Numbers. CUSIP identification numbers will be imprinted
on each Bond to be delivered to DTC, but no such number shall constitute a part of the contract
evidenced by the particular bond upon which it is imprinted; no liability shall attach to the State
or the Funding Board or any officer, employee or agent of either of them, including any paying
agent or registrar for the Bonds, by reason of such number or any use made thereof including any
use thereof made by the State or the Funding Board or any such officer, employee or any such
agent of either of them, or by reason or any inaccuracy, error, or omission with respect thereto,
or in such use, and any inaccuracy, error, or omission with respect thereto shall not constitute
cause for failure or refusal by the Purchasers to accept delivery of and pay for the respective
Bonds in accordance with the terms of its bid or a Bond Purchase Agreement, as the case may
be. All expenses in relation to the printing of such numbers on the Bonds will be paid by the
State; provided, however, that the CUSIP Service Bureau charge for the assignment of such
numbers shall be the responsibility of and shall be paid by the Purchasers. In addition, the
Financial Advisor in the case of Bonds sold by competitive sale, or the Purchasers in the case of
Bonds sold by negotiated sale, shall be responsible for timely applying for the CUSIP
identification numbers as required by Rule G-34 promulgated by the Municipal Securities
Rulemaking Board.

SECTION 10. Continuing Disclosure. (a) The Secretary or Assistant Secretary
of the Funding Board is hereby authorized to execute a Continuing Disclosure Undertaking or
Continuing Disclosure Undertakings (each, a “Continuing Disclosure Undertaking”)
substantially in the form executed and delivered in connection with the issuance of the State’s
General Obligation Bonds, 2021 Series A and General Obligation Bonds, 2021 Refunding
Series B (Federally Taxable) and as described in the Preliminary Official Statement, with such
variations as the signatory thereof, after consultation with counsel to the Funding Board, shall
approve as necessary or appropriate, such execution and delivery to be conclusive evidence of
such determination and consultation. Execution of the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking as
aforesaid and delivery of the same to the Purchasers shall be a condition precedent to the
obligations of the Purchasers to purchase the respective Bonds.

(b) The State covenants with the holders from time to time of the Bonds that it
will, and hereby authorizes the appropriate officers and employees of the State to, take all action
necessary or appropriate to, comply with and carry out all of the provisions of the respective
Continuing Disclosure Undertaking as amended from time to time. Notwithstanding any other
provision of this Resolution, failure of the State to perform in accordance with any Continuing
Disclosure Undertaking shall not constitute a default or an event of default and shall not result in
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any acceleration of payment of any Bonds, and any rights and remedies provided by this
Resolution and applicable law upon the occurrence of such a default or an event of default shall
not apply to any such failure, but such Continuing Disclosure Undertaking may be enforced only
as provided therein.

SECTION 11. Tax Covenants. The State, through the Funding Board, hereby
covenants that it will not use, or permit the use of, any proceeds of the Tax-Exempt Bonds in a
manner that would cause the Tax-Exempt Bonds to be subjected to treatment under Section 148
of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), and applicable regulations
thereunder, as each is then in effect, as an “arbitrage bond”, and to that end the State shall
comply with applicable regulations under said Section 148. The State further covenants with the
registered owners from time to time of the Tax-Exempt Bonds that it will, throughout the term of
the Tax-Exempt Bonds and through the date that the final rebate, if any, must be made to the
United States in accordance with Section 148 of the Code, comply with the provisions of
Sections 103 and 141 through 150 of the Code and all regulations proposed and promulgated
thereunder that must be satisfied in order that interest on the Tax-Exempt Bonds shall be and
continue to be excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes under said
Section 103.

SECTION 12. Public Hearing. The Assistant Secretary of the Funding Board or
her designee is authorized to publish notice of and conduct any public hearing required by
Section 147(f) of the Code with respect to any project to be financed by any Tax-Exempt Bonds.

SECTION 13. Resolution a Contract. In consideration of the acceptance of the
Bonds by those who shall own the same from time to time and for the benefit of the registered
owners of the Bonds, each of the obligations, duties, limitations and restraints imposed upon the
State, acting through the Funding Board, by this Resolution shall be deemed to be a covenant
between the State and every registered owner of the Bonds, and this Resolution and every
provision and covenant hereof shall be deemed to be and shall constitute a contract between the
State and the registered owners from time to time of the Bonds.

All terms, provisions, conditions, covenants, warranties and agreements contained
in this Resolution shall constitute a valid contractual obligation of the State and, except as
provided in the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking, shall inure to the benefit of the registered
owners of the Bonds.

SECTION 14. Severability. If any one or more of the covenants, stipulations,
promises, agreements or obligations provided in this Resolution on the part of the State, the
Funding Board or any officer or employee of either thereof to be performed should be
determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be contrary to law, then such covenant or
covenants, stipulation or stipulations, promise or promises, agreement or agreements, obligation
or obligations shall be deemed and construed to be severable from the remaining covenants,
stipulations, promises, agreements and obligations herein contained and shall in no way affect
the validity of the other provisions of this Resolution.
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SECTION 15. Effect of Headings of Sections. The headings of the sections of
this Resolution are for convenience of reference only, and shall not affect the meaning,
construction or interpretation of this Resolution.

SECTION 16. Effectiveness of this Resolution. This Resolution shall be in full
force and effect from and after its passage.

Adopted this  day of April, 2023.

Jason E. Mumpower, Secretary
Funding Board of the State of Tennessee
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APPENDIX A

Form of Bonds

UNLESS THIS BOND IS PRESENTED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF
DTC TO THE ISSUER OR ITS AGENT FOR REGISTRATION OF TRANSFER,
EXCHANGE OR PAYMENT, AND ANY BOND ISSUED IS REGISTERED IN THE
NAME OF CEDE & CO. OR SUCH OTHER NAME AS REQUIRED BY AN
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF DTC AND ANY PAYMENT IS MADE TO
CEDE & CO., ANY TRANSFER, PLEDGE OR OTHER USE HEREOF FOR VALUE OR
OTHERWISE BY OR TO ANY PERSONS IS WRONGFUL SINCE THE REGISTERED
OWNER HEREOF, CEDE & CO., HAS AN INTEREST HEREIN.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
STATE OF TENNESSEE
GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND
2023 SERIES __ [(FEDERALLY TAXABLE)]

Registered Registered
R23  -[maturity]-[number] $
BOND INTEREST MATURITY CUSIP
DATE RATE DATE
,2023 % , 880541

Registered Owner: Cede & Co.
Principal Sum:

THE STATE OF TENNESSEE (the “State”) hereby acknowledges itself
indebted, and for value received hereby promises to pay to the Registered Owner hereof named
above, or registered assigns, the Principal Sum specified above on the Maturity Date specified
above (unless this bond shall be subject to redemption prior to maturity, shall have been duly
called for prior redemption and payment of the redemption price shall have been duly made or
provided for), upon presentation and surrender hereof to the State Treasurer in Nashville,
Tennessee, or other agent of the State appointed for the purpose, and to pay interest on the
Principal Sum on , 20, and semi-annually thereafter on and
, at the Interest Rate per annum specified above calculated on the basis of a
30-day month and a 360-day year, to each registered owner of this bond as of the close of
business on the fifteenth day (whether or not a business day) of the calendar month next
preceding the respective stated due date for such interest. Principal of and redemption premium,
if any, and interest on this bond are payable in any coin or currency of the United States of
America, which at the time of such payment is legal tender for public and private debts.

The bonds of the issue of which this bond is one (the “Bonds’) maturing on or
after , shall be subject to redemption prior to their stated maturities at any
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time on and after , at the option of the State, in installments of $5,000 or
any integral thereof, as a whole, or in part from time to time in any order of maturity determined
by the State [and by lot within a maturity], [at a redemption price equal to the principal amount
or portion thereof to be redeemed, plus interest accrued on such principal amount or portion
thereof to the date fixed for redemption.] [at the redemption prices (expressed as percentages of
the principal amount or portion thereof to be redeemed) set forth below, plus interest accrued on
such principal amount or portion thereof to the date fixed for redemption:

Period During Which Redeemed Redemption
(Both Dates Inclusive) Prices
, through , %
, through , N
, and thereafter ]
[Make-Whole Optional Redemption. Prior to , 20, the Bonds are

subject to redemption prior to their stated maturities at the option of the State, at any time as
a whole or in part, from time to time, in any order of maturity as determined by the State, at a
redemption price equal to the Make-Whole Redemption Price (as defined below).

The “Make-Whole Redemption Price” of any Bonds to be redeemed is an
amount equal to the greater of

(a) (1) 100% of the principal amount of such Bonds or

(b) (i) the sum of the present value of the remaining scheduled
payments of principal and interest to the maturity date of such Bonds not
including any portion of those payments of interest accrued and unpaid as of
the date on which such Bonds are to be redeemed, discounted on a semiannual
basis to the date on which such Bonds are to be redeemed, assuming a 360-day
year consisting of twelve 30-day months, at the Treasury Rate (as defined
below)

plus (__ ) basis points; plus, in each case, accrued and unpaid interest on such
Bonds on such redemption date.

The “Treasury Rate” is, as of any redemption date of any Bonds, the yield to
maturity as of such redemption date of United States Treasury securities with a constant maturity
(as compiled and published in the most recent Federal Reserve Statistical Release H.15 (519) or,
if such Statistical Release is no longer published, any source of similar market data, that has
become publicly available at least five business days prior to such redemption date (excluding
inflation indexed securities) most nearly equal to the period from such redemption date to the
maturity date of such Bonds; provided, however, that if the period from such redemption date to
such maturity date is less than one year, the latest weekly average yield on actually traded United
States Treasury securities adjusted to a constant maturity of one year that has become publicly
available at least five business days prior to such redemption date shall be used.]
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The Make-Whole Redemption Price (and, if necessary, such substitute source of
market data) shall be determined by an independent accounting firm, investment banking firm or
financial advisor retained by the Funding Board of the State to calculate such redemption price
(the “Calculation Agent”). The determination by the Calculation Agent of the redemption price
shall be conclusive and binding on the State and the holders of the Bonds.

The Bonds maturing on , and , constitute
term bonds and shall be subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption prior to their stated
maturities on and after , and on and after , ,respectively,

and by lot within a maturity, in installments of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof, at a
redemption price equal to the principal amount to be redeemed, plus accrued interest on such
principal amount to the date fixed for redemption, in the respective amounts specified pursuant
to the resolution of the Funding Board of the State of Tennessee hereinafter mentioned.

If this Bond (or a portion hereof'in installments of $5,000 or any integral multiple
thereof) is redeemable and shall be called for redemption, notice of the redemption hereof,
specifying the designation, date, number, and maturity of this Bond, the date and place fixed for
its redemption, principal amount to be redeemed if less than the entire principal amount hereof,
and the redemption price payable upon such redemption, shall be given not less than 30 days
prior to the redemption date by mail, or delivered by physical or electronic means, to the
Registered Owner of this bond at the mail, physical delivery or electronic means address of the
Registered Owner as shown in the bond register as kept by the State or its agent as of the 45th
calendar day preceding the redemption date. Any notice of optional redemption may be made
conditional upon the availability of sufficient moneys to pay the redemption price, plus interest
accrued and unpaid to the redemption date. Notice having been given in the manner provided,
the Bonds or portions thereof so called for redemption shall become due and payable on the
redemption date specified in such notice, subject to such conditional notice provisions. If such
notice shall have been given and payment hereof duly made or provided for, interest hereon shall
cease to accrue and become payable from and after the date so specified for the redemption
hereof. Upon presentation and surrender of this Bond at the office specified in such notice,
together with, in the case this bond is presented by other than the Registered Owner, a written
instrument of transfer duly executed by the Registered Owner or the Registered Owner’s duly
authorized representative, this Bond, or portions hereof, so called for redemption shall be paid at
the redemption price set forth above. If less than all of this Bond shall be redeemed, the State
shall execute and deliver, upon the surrender of this Bond, without charge to the Registered
Owner hereof, for the unredeemed balance of the principal amount of this Bond so surrendered, a
new registered Bond or Bonds of like maturity in authorized denominations.

[If fewer than all of the Bonds of like maturity are called for prior redemption, the
particular Bonds or portions of Bonds to be redeemed will be selected by the State Treasurer or
an agent of the State designated for such purpose pro rata as nearly as practicable in proportion
to the principal amounts of the Bonds owned by each registered owner, subject to the authorized
denominations applicable to the Bonds. In such event, if a single person or entity is the
registered owner of more than one Bond, the particular Bond or Bonds to be redeemed will be
determined by the State Treasurer or such agent in such manner as the State Treasurer or such
agent in its discretion may deem fair and appropriate. ]
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Notwithstanding the foregoing, so long as The Depository Trust Company or its
nominee (“DTC”), or any substitute depository, or successor, is the Registered Owner of this
Bond as securities depository under the resolution hereinafter mentioned, notice of redemption
may be given in the manner, and presentation and surrender of this Bond may be waived to the
extent, agreed to by the State and DTC, or any substitute depository, or successor, as the case
may be.

This Bond shall have the qualities and incidents of a negotiable instrument. This
bond shall be transferable only upon the bond register kept by the State or its agent, by the
Registered Owner or Registered Owner’s duly authorized representative in writing, upon
presentation and surrender to the State or its agent of this Bond together with a written
instrument of transfer satisfactory to the State duly executed by the Registered Owner or the
Registered Owner’s duly authorized representative but only in the manner, subject to the
limitations and upon payment of the charges, if any, as provided in the resolution of the Funding
Board of the State of Tennessee authorizing the issuance of the Bonds, and upon surrender
hereof for cancellation. Upon the transfer of this Bond, the State shall authenticate and deliver in
the name of the transferee a new registered Bond or Bonds of the same series, aggregate
principal amount, interest rate and maturity as this Bond.

The State may treat the person in whose name this Bond is registered on the
registry books as the absolute owner of this Bond for all purposes, including payment,
notwithstanding any notice to the contrary.

This Bond is one of an issue of Bonds aggregating$ of like date,
issued under and pursuant to and in full compliance with the Constitution and laws of the State,
including but not limited to various Public Acts of Tennessee and Title 9, Chapter 9, Tennessee
Code Annotated, and a resolution adopted by the Funding Board of the State of Tennessee on
April 2023, including as a part thereof a Series Certificate executed and delivered on
______ ~, 2023 (collectively, the “Resolution”), [for public purposes of various State
departments and institutions] [and] [to provide for the payment at maturity of a portion of the
State’s outstanding general obligation bond anticipation notes constituting commercial paper
heretofore issued for public purposes of various State departments and institutions]. Referenceis
made to the Resolution, to all of the provisions of which the Registered Owner, by acceptance
hereof, hereby assents, for all terms and provisions of this Bond not set forth herein.

This Bond and the issue of which it is one constitute direct general obligations of
the State for the payment of the principal and premium, if any, of and interest on which there is
pledged the full faith and credit of the State. The Bonds shall constitute a charge and lien upon
the entire fees, taxes and other revenues and funds allocated to the general fund, the debt service
fund, and the highway fund of the State; and, if necessary, upon the first such fees, taxes,
revenues and funds thereafter received and allocated to such funds, except only such fees, taxes,
revenues and funds as may be otherwise legally restricted. The State hereby covenants with the
persons who now or may hereafter hold any Bonds that it will raise fees, taxes and other
revenues sufficient, together with funds on hand derived from all sources, to pay the principal of
and premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds as and when due and payable.
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[This Bond shall not be valid or obligatory for any purpose or be entitled to any
benefit under the Resolution until the certificate of authentication hereon shall have been duly
executed by the Paying Agent and Registrar.]

IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED, RECITED AND DECLARED that all acts,
conditions and things required to exist, happen and be performed precedent to and in the issuance
of this Bond exist, have happened and have been performed in due time, form and manner as
required by the Constitution and laws of the State, and that the amount of this Bond, together
with all other indebtedness of the State, does not exceed any constitutional or statutory limitation
thereon, and that this bond is within every constitutional and statutory limitation.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Funding Board of the State of Tennessee has
caused this Bond to be executed in the name of the State by the manual or facsimile signature of
the Governor, the Secretary of State, the State Treasurer, the Commissioner of Finance and
Administration or the Comptroller of the Treasury of the State of Tennessee, and countersigned
by the manual or facsimile signature of one other of such officers, one of which signatures shall
be manual [(unless this Bond shall be authenticated by the Paying Agent and Registrar)], with
the Great Seal of the State of Tennessee, or a facsimile thereof, attached hereto or impressed or
imprinted hereon, and this bond to be dated as of the Bond Date specified above.

STATE OF TENNESSEE
(SEAL)
By:
Authorized Officer
Countersigned:
By:

Authorized Officer
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[Certificate of Authentication]

This will certify that this bond is one of the Bonds described in the
within-mentioned Resolution.

[PAYING AGENT AND REGISTRAR],
as Paying Agent and Registrar

Date of Authentication:

By: ]
Authorized Signatory

A-6
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ASSIGNMENT
For value received, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto

Please insert social
security or other tax
identifying number of
assignee

(name and address of assignee)

the within-mentioned bond and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints
,attorney-in-fact, to transfer
the same on the bond register in the office of the Comptroller of the Treasury of the State of
Tennessee or an agent of the State appointed for the purpose, with full power of substitution in
the premises.

Date:
(name of assignor)
(address of assignor)
Signature Guaranteed:
NOTE: The signature to this assignment must correspond with the name as written on the

face of the within Bond in every particular, without alteration, enlargement or any
change whatsoever.

A-7
3771361.2 046685 RSIND



This Preliminary Official Statement and the information contained herein are subject to completion or amendment without notice. Under no circumstances shall this Preliminary Official Statement

constitute an offer to sell or a solicitation of an offer to buy, norshall there be any sale of, these securities in any jurisdiction in which such offer, solicitation or sale would be unlawful prior to registration

or qualification under the securities laws of such jurisdiction.

PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT DATED , 2023

NEW ISSUE BOOK-ENTRY ONLY

STATE OF TENNESSEE
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS
$510,000,000* 2023 SERIES A

Dated: Date of Delivery Due: As shown on the inside front cover

This Official Statement has been prepared by the State of Tennessee (the “State”)to provide information
relating to the State’s General Obligation Bonds, 2023 Series A (the “Bonds”). Selected information is presented
on this cover page for the convenience of the user. To make an informed decision regarding the Bonds, a
prospective investor should read this Official Statement in its entirety.

The Bonds Interest on the Bonds is payable semi-annually May1 and November 1, commencing November 1, 2023.
Interest rates and reoffering yields as shown on inside front cover.
Fully registered bonds issued in denominations of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof.

See “THE BONDS” herein.

Redemption See “THE BONDS — Redemption” herein.

Security Direct general obligations; pledge of full faith and credit. See “SECURITY FOR THE BONDS” herein.
Ratings Fitch: ~~ Moody’s:  S&P: . See “RATINGS” herein.

Book-Entry The Depository Trust Company will act as securities depository for the Bonds. See “THE BONDS” and
Only System Appendix D — “BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM” herein.

Tax Interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes to the extent and subject to
Exemption the conditions, limitations and continuing compliance with tax covenants as described herein. The principal of
and interest on the Bonds are exempt from Tennessee taxes, subject to certain exceptions. See “TAX

MATTERS” herein.

Issuer’s Bond Hawkins Delafield & Wood LLP, New York, New York.
Counsel

The Bonds are offered when, as and ifissued and received by the Initial Purchasers subject to certain conditions, including
the approval of legality by Hawkins Delafield & Wood LLP, Bond Counsel to the State of Tennessee. Certain legal matters in
connection with the Bonds are subject to the approval of the Attorney General and Reporter of the State of Tennessee, as counsel to
the State Funding Board. The Bonds are expected to be available through the facilities of The Depository Trust Company on or
about , 2023 %,

The bonds will be awarded pursuant to electronic competitive bidding to be held via the IPREO LLC’s
BiDCOMP™/PARITY® Competitive Bidding System on behalf of the Stateon ;2023 , unless postponed or

canceled, as set forth in the Notice of Sale contained in Appendix F.

2023

*Preliminary; Subject to change



MATURITIES, AMOUNTS, INTEREST RATES, YIELDS
AND CUSIP NUMBERS

STATE OF TENNESSEE
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS

$510,000,000* 2023 SERIES A

Interest Interest
Due* Amount * Rate Yield CUSIP+ Due * Amount * Rate Yield CUSIP+
May 1, 2024 $ 25,500,000 May 1,2034 $ 25,500,000
May 1, 2025 25,500,000 May 1, 2035 25,500,000
May 1, 2026 25,500,000 May 1, 2036 25,500,000
May 1, 2027 25,500,000 May 1, 2037 25,500,000
May 1, 2028 25,500,000 May 1, 2038 25,500,000
May 1, 2029 25,500,000 May 1, 2039 25,500,000
May 1, 2030 25,500,000 May 1, 2040 25,500,000
May 1, 2031 25,500,000 May 1, 2041 25,500,000
May 1, 2032 25,500,000 May 1, 2042 25,500,000
May 1, 2033 25,500,000 May 1, 2043 25,500,000

*Preliminary; subject to change. Bonds maturing on or after May 1, 20__, (subject to change) may be structured as Term Bonds as
provided in the Notice of Sale attached hereto as Appendix F. See also “The Bonds — Redemption — Mandatory Sinking Fund

Redemption”.

+These CUSIP numbers have been assigned by an organization notaffiliated with the State of Tennessee and are included solely for
the convenience of the Bondholders. Neither the State of Tennessee nor any fiscal agent thereof'is responsible for the selection or use
ofthese CUSIP numbers, nor is any representation made as to their correctness on the Bonds or as indicated herein. The CUSIP number
for a specific maturity is subject to being changed after the issuance of the Bonds as a result of various subsequent actions, including,
but not limited to, a refunding in whole or in part of such maturity or as a result of the procurement of secondary market portfolio
insurance or other similar enhancement by investors that is applicable to all or a portion of certain maturities of the Bond.
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This Official Statement does not constitute an offering of any security other than the Bonds specifically
offered hereby. No dealer, broker or other person has been authorized by the State to give any information or to
make any representation other than as contained in this Official Statement, and if given or made, such other
information orrepresentationmustnot be relied upon as havingbeen authorized by the State. This Official Statement
doesnot constitute an offerto sell or a solicitation of an offerto buy, norshall there be any sale of, the Bonds by any

person in any jurisdiction in which it is unlawful to make such offer, solicitation or sale.

Certain information set forth herein has been provided by the State. Certain other information set forth
herein hasbeen obtained by the State from sources believed to be reliable, but it is not guaranteed as to accuracy or
completeness. The information and expressions of opinion herein are subject to change without notice, and neither
the delivery of this Official Statement nor any sale made hereunder shall, under any circumstances, create any
implication that there hasbeen no changein the affairs of the State since the date hereof. In makingan investment
decision, investors must rely on their own examination ofthe State andthe terms of the offering, including the merits
and risks involved.

The prices and otherterms respecting the offering and sale of the Bonds may be changed from time to time
by the respective Underwriters afterthe Bonds are released forsale,and the Bonds may be offered andsold at prices

other than the initial offering prices, including sales to dealers who may sell the Bonds into investment accounts.

IN CONNECTION WITH THIS OFFERING, THE UNDERWRITERS MAY OVER-ALLOT OR EFFECT
TRANSACTIONS THAT STABILIZE OR MAINTAIN THE MARKET PRICES OF THE RESPECTIVE BONDS AT
ALEVEL ABOVE THAT WHICHMIGHT OTHER WISE PREVAILIN THE OPEN MARKET. SUCH STABILIZING,
IF COMMENCED, MAY BE DISCONTINUED AT ANY TIME.

NO REGISTRATION STATEMENT RELATING TO THE BONDS HAS BEEN FILED WITH THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE COMMISSION (THE “SEC”) OR ANY STATE SECURITIES AGENCY. THE BONDS
HAVENOT BEEN APPROVED OR DISAPPROVEDBY THE SEC OR ANY STATE SECURITIES AGENCY,NOR
HAS THE SEC OR ANY STATE SECURITIES AGENCY PASSED UPON THE ACCURACY OR ADEQUACY OF
THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT. ANY REPRESENTATION TO THE CONTRARY MAY BE A CRIMINAL
OFFENSE.

In makingan investment decision, investors mustrely on their own examination of the State and the terms
of the offering, including the merits and risks involved.
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STATE OF TENNESSEE

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS
$510,000,000* 2023 SERIES A

INTRODUCTION

This Official Statement, which includes the cover page and the inside front cover page hereof, and the
Appendices hereto, including the financialinformation incorporated by reference in Appendix A and the statistical
information incorporated by reference in Appendix B, is provided forthe purpose of presentinginformation relating
to the State of Tennessee (the “State”) in connection with the issuance of the State’s $510,000,000% General
Obligation Bonds, 2023 Series A (the “Bonds”).

The Bonds will be issued pursuant to the authority of andin full compliance with the provisions, restrictions
and limitations of the Constitution and laws of the State, including Title 9, Chapter 9, Tennessee Code Annotated,
and various bond authorizations enacted by the General Assembly of the State, and pursuant to a resolution (the
“Bond Resolution) adopted by the State FundingBoard of the State on April 26, 2023. The Bonds are being issued
to (i) provide funds for the purpose of making a grant to the Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson
County forthe construction of a domed sports stadium, (ii) fund certain capital projects of the State, (iii) provide for
the retirement at maturity of a portion of the State’s outstanding general obligation commercial paper (“CP”) issued
to fund certain capital projects of the State, and (iv) fund certain costs of issuance of the Bonds. See “APPLICATION
OF BOND PROCEEDS”.

The Bonds are direct general obligations of the State for which the State has pledged its full faith and credit
for the payment of principal, premium, if any, and interest; and have a charge and lien upon all fees, taxes and other
revenues and fundsallocatedto the State’s general fund, debt service fund, and highway fundand, if necessary, upon
the first fees, taxes, revenues and funds thereafter received and allocated to such funds, unless such fees, taxes,

revenues and funds are legally restricted for other purposes. See “SECURITY FOR THE BONDS”.

THE BONDS

Description

The Bonds will be dated the date of their delivery. The Bonds will mature as shown on the inside front
cover page and will bear interest payable semi-annually on May 1 and November 1 of each year, commencing
November1,2023,attherates per annum as shown on the inside front coverpage calculated on the basis ofa 360-
day yearof twelve 30-day months. Interest will be payable to registered owners as of the close of business on the
fifteenth day (whether ornot a business day) of the calendarmonth next preceding the respective stated due date for
such interest. The Bondswill be issuable as fully registered bonds in denominations of $5,000 orintegral multiples

thereof.
Book-Entry Only System

Upon initial issuance, the Bonds will be available only in book-entry form. The Depository Trust Company
(“DTC”), New York, New York, will actassecurities depository forthe Bonds. The ownership of one fully registered
Bond for each maturity of the Bonds of each series bearing interest at each interest rate, each in the aggregate
principal amount of such maturity and bearing interest at such rate, will be registered in the name of Cede & Co.
(DTC’s partnership nominee) and deposited with DTC. Beneficial owners of Bonds will not receive physicaldelivery
of bond certificates, except under limited circumstances.

For a description of DTC and its book-entry only system, see Appendix D — “BOOK-ENTRY ONLY
SYSTEM”.

*Preliminary; subject to change



Redemption*
Optional Redemption of the Bonds. At the option of the State, the Bonds maturingon or after 1B

20 ,are subject to redemption prior to their respective stated maturities, from any monies that are available to the
State forsuch purpose,atany time onand afterMay 1,20 ,asa whole,or in part from time to time in any order of

maturity determinedby the State,ata redemption price of par, together with accrued interest to the redemption date.

Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption. The Bonds maturingon May 1, _ ,are term bonds subject to
redemption in part on May 1, in each of the years and in the respective principal amounts set forth below at a
redemption price of par together with accrued interest to the redemption date.

Year Amount

Notice of Redemption; Conditional Notice. Written notice shall be mailed to registered owners of the
Bonds to be redeemed, at least thirty (30) days prior to the redemption date, at the address that appears on the
registration books, but failure to receive any such notice shall not affect the validity of the redemption proceedings.
Any notice of redemption may provide that such redemption is conditionalon the availability of sufficient moneys
to pay the redemption price, plus interest accrued and unpaid to the redemption date. While DTC or its nominee is
the registered owner of the Bonds, the State will give notice of redemption of the Bondsto DTC or its nominee or
its successor and shall not be responsible for mailing notices of redemption to Direct DTC Participants, to Indirect
DTC Participants or to the beneficial owners of the Bonds. Any failure of DTC or its nominee or its successor, or
of a Direct DTC Participant or Indirect DTC Participant, to notify a beneficial owner of a bond of any redemption
will notaffect the sufficiency or the validity of the redemption of such bond. See Appendix D — “Book-Entry Only
System”. The State can give no assurance that DTC orits successor, the Direct DTC Participants orthe Indirect DTC
Participants will distribute such redemption notices to the beneficialowners of the Bonds, or that they will do so on
a timely basis.

APPLICATION OF BOND PROCEEDS

The Bonds are being issued to (i) provide funds for the purpose of makinga grant to the Metropolitan
Government of Nashville and Davidson County for the construction of a domed sports stadium, (ii) fund certain
capital projects of the State, (iii) provide for the retirement at maturity of a portion of the State’s outstanding CP
issued to fund certain capital projects of the State, (iv) fund certain costs of issuance of the Bonds. CP will be retired
on various dates within 90 days after the date of delivery of the Bonds.

SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS

The proceeds of the Bonds are expected to be applied on the date of issue of the Bonds in the amounts as
follows:

Sources of Funds:
Par Amount
Original Issue (Discount) Premium
Total $ -

Uses of Funds:
Retirement of CP
Grant
Underwriters' Discount
Costs of Issuance
Total $ -

*Preliminary; subject to change



SECURITY FOR THE BONDS

Sources of Payment and Security

The Bonds (as with all other State general obligation bonds and notes) constitute (a) direct general
obligations of the State for the payment of the principal of and premium, if any,and interest on which there is also
pledged the full faith and credit of the State; and (b) a charge and lien upon all fees, taxes and other revenues and
fundsallocatedto the State’s general fund, debt service fund, and highway fundand, if necessary, upon the first fees,
taxes,revenues and funds thereafterreceived and allocated to such funds, unless such fees, taxes, revenues and funds
are legally restricted for other purposes.

The charge and lien on fees, taxes and otherrevenues in favorofthe Bondsis subject to the specific pledge
of “Special Taxes” in favorof State general obligation bonds issued prior to July 1, 2013. “Special Taxes” consist
of: () theannualproceedsofa tax of five cents (5¢) per gallon upon gasoline; (i) the annualproceedsofa special
tax of one cent (1¢) per gallon upon petroleum products; (iii) one-half of the annual proceeds of motor vehicle
registration fees now or hereafterrequired to be paid to the State; and (iv) the annual proceeds of the franchise taxes
imposed by the franchise tax law of the State. The Total Special Taxes collected, as reported for each year in the
June monthly Statement of Revenue Collections (prepared on a cash basis) and forthe first eight months of the fiscal
year ended June 30,2023, were as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended
July 2022 -
June 30,2022 June 30,2021
February 2023* une 50, une 30,
Special Taxes $ 1,252,975,000 $ 1,612,825,000 $ 1,524,252,000

* Unaudited

Source: TN Department of Revenue

The final maturity of general obligation bonds issued prior to July 1,2013,is August 1, 2031. Thereafter
(or upon the earlier retirement of all general obligation bonds issued prior to July 1, 2013) this pledge of Special
Taxeswill expire. The Bonds (aswith all other State general obligation bondsissued afterJuly 1, 2013,and notes)
will not benefit from this specific pledge of Special Taxes.

The State covenants with the holders of the Bonds (and all persons who hold State generalobligation bonds
or notes) that it will raise fees, taxes and other revenues sufficient, together with funds on hand derived from all
sources, to pay the principalof and premium, if any, and interest on the Bondsandall other general obligation bonds
andnotes of the State asand when due and payable. The State hasalso covenanted with the holders of State general
obligation bonds outstanding as of July 1, 2013, not to decrease by legislative action the Special Taxes unless the
State Funding Board certifies thatthe State is notin defaultin the payment of any outstandingdebt and that Special
Taxesatthe decreased rates specified by the State Funding Board in such yearoryears (not to exceed two (2) years)
will be sufficient to make allpayments required to be made therefrom by the State on allofits obligations during the
period that such decrease will be in effect.

The State is permitted by the State Constitution to levy ad valorem taxes on allof the taxable property within
the State forthe payment of the principal of and interest on the State’s general obligation indebtedness; however, the

State does not currently levy such a tax and has no current intent to do so.

All general obligation indebtedness of the State is secured on parity with all other general obligation
indebtedness of the State, except that the Special Taxes secure only general obligation bonds outstandingon July 1,
2013. The State may issue, and currently is issuing as CP, general obligation bond anticipation notes, for the payment
of which the full faith and credit of the State, but not Special Taxes, is pledged. See “STATE INDEBTEDNESS —
Commercial Paper Program”. In addition, the State is authorized to issue general obligation tax revenue anticipation
notes, for the payment of which the full faith and credit of the State, but not Special Taxes, is pledged; however, the
State hasnot heretofore issued any such notes and hasno current intent to do so. See “STATE INDEBTEDNESS —
Tax Revenue Anticipation Notes”.



See “STATE INDEBTEDNESS” for the amounts of outstanding debt. For a table of annual debt service
requirements for all general obligation bonds, see “STATE INDEBTEDNESS — Outstanding General Obligation
Bonded Indebtedness”.

Appropriations for Payment of General Obligation Debt Service

Pursuant to Section 9-9-103, Tennessee Code Annotated, there is a continuing appropriation of a sum
sufficient forpayment of debtservice (principal, interest and premium, if any) on general obligation bonds and notes
from any fundsin the State treasury not otherwise legally restricted, independent of an appropriation bill otherwise
required by State law.

Section 67-6-103(a)(5), Tennessee Code Annotated, currently provides that 0.9185% of the sales and use
tax collections is appropriated to the State Funding Board for the payment of principal and interest on the State’s
general obligation bonds. This statutory provision subsequently may be changed oreliminated. The totalsales and
use tax collections and the amounts allocated to debt service for the last five fiscal years as reported in the State’s
Annual Financial Reports were as follows (amounts have been rounded):

Total Sales and Use Allocation to Debt
Tax Collections Service (Modified
(Accrual Basis) Accrual Basis)
June 30, 2022 $ 12,891,509,000 $ 91,312,000
June 30, 2021 11,052,798,000 78,865,000
June 30, 2020 9,624,865,000 67,625,000
June 30,2019 9,351,611,000 65,930,000
June 30,2018 8,831,333,000 62,471,000

In accordance with the Governmental Accounting Standards Board’s Statement 44 “Economic Condition
Reporting: The Statistical Section,” the totalsales and use tax collections are reported on an accrualbasis instead of
on a modified accrualbasis. However, the calculation 0f0.9185% of the salesand use tax collections for allocation
to debt service continues to be reported on a modified accrualbasis. Fora history of totalsales and use tax collections
and rates since fiscal year 2011, see the statistical data incorporated by reference in Appendix B.

Remedies and Rights of Bondholders

Each Bond when duly issued will constitute a contract between the State and the registered owner of the
Bond. The State Funding Board shall certify to the Commissioner of Finance and Administration fromtime to time,
butnot less than annually, the amount necessary, together with funds on hand derived from all sources, to enable the
State Funding Board to provide for the payment of the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on all general
obligation indebtedness asand when the same shallbecome due and payable. Under Section 9-9-105(a), Tennessee
Code Annotated, such indebtedness shall constitute a charge and lien upon the entire fees, taxesand otherrevenues
and fundsallocated to the general fund, the debt service fund and highway fund,and, if necessary, the first monies
thereafterreceived and allocated to the general fund, the debt service fund and the highway fund, except only such
fees, taxes, revenues and funds as may be otherwise legally restricted, subject to the pledge of Special Taxes to
general obligation bonds outstandingon July 1,2013. Under Section 9-9-111, Tennessee Code Annotated,a holder
of any generalobligation bonds, includingthe Bonds, and notes has a vested right in the performanceof the covenants
and pledges contained in Title 9, Chapter9, Tennessee Code Annotated, and the performance of the duties imposed
on any officer or agency of the State by the provisions of Chapter 9 may be enforced by the holder of any general
obligation bond or note by appropriate proceedings, provided that no holder of obligationsissued afterJuly 1,2013,
shall have any such rights with respect to the pledge of Special Taxes described above.

Under the State Constitution, public money maybe expended only pursuant to appropriations made by law.
See “STATE FINANCES.” Such expenditures include, but are not limited to, the payment of debt service.
Continuingappropriations exist under current law for the payment of debt service on the State’s general obligation
bonds, including the Bonds, from a specified percentage of sales and use taxes as discussed above. Furthermore,
Section 9-9-103, Tennessee Code Annotated, appropriates to the State Funding Board on a direct and continuing
basis a sum sufficient for payment of debt service (principal, interest and premium, if any) on outstanding general
obligation bonds and other debt obligations (including notes) from any funds (including, with respect to bonds



outstandingon July 1, 2013, Special Taxes)held in the State treasury not otherwise legally restricted, independent
of an appropriation bill otherwise required by State law.

The State hasnot generally waived immunity from suit orextended its consent to be sued, although specific
actionsmay be authorized, such asis described in the second preceding paragraph. Current state law provides that
monetary claims against the Stateforbreach of its contractual obligations and certain other causes may be heard and
determined exclusively in the forum of the Tennessee Claims Commission, an administrative tribunal, where the
State may be liable only for actual damages and certain costs. Whether a continuing appropriation exists for the
paymentofa claim in the Tennessee Claims Commission forunpaid debt service, if necessary,in addition to other
available remedies, is not clear. In any event, sovereign immunity and other legal principles may bar actions to
compel the General Assembly to appropriate monies for such payments.

Additional Bonds Test

The State, by Section 9-9-105(c), Tennessee Code Annotated, covenants with the persons who now or may
hereafterhold any State generalobligation bondsthatno generalobligation bonds shallbe issued afterJuly 1,2013,
unless the following debt service coverage testis satisfied: the amountnecessary to pay the maximum annual debt
service payable in the then current or any future fiscal year is not greater than ten percent (10%) of the amount of
total state tax revenues allocated to the general fund, to the debt service fund, and to the highway fund for the
immediately preceding fiscal year. For purposes of satisfying this test, "state tax revenues" are defined as those
taxes, licenses, fees, fines, and permits collected by the department of revenue and allocated to the general fund, the
debt service fund,and the highway fund excludingthe portion of those taxes shared with local governments. "Debt
service", forthis purpose, meansandincludes the aggregate of the principal of andinterest on all outstanding general
obligation bonds and the general obligation bonds then proposed to be issued; provided, any outstandingbonds the
payment of which hasbeen fully provided forby funds orsecurities (including expected income therefrom), orboth,
set aside for that purpose are excluded in determining the outstanding bonds.

The State will comply with thatadditionalbondstestas a condition of issuing the Bonds, as demonstrated
by the following table:

(a) Maximum annual debt service at June 30, 2022 $ 212,211,108
(b) Assumed maximum annual debt service on the Bonds 49,725,000 VO
(c) Total maximum annul debt service $ 261,936,108

(d) State tax revenue allocated for fiscal year ended June 30, 2022 to:

General Fund $ 17,815,557,000 @
Debt Service Fund 361,474,000 @
Highway Fund 1,065,304,000 @
(e) Total of State tax revenue allocated for fiscal year ended June 30, 2022 $ 19,242,335,000
() (c) divided by (e) expressed as a percentage 1.36%

must be no greater than 10%
( gr )

Sources: Tennessee Department of Revenue and Tennessee Department of Finance and Administration

(1) Pro forma debt service for the Bonds based on equal annual principal payments over 20 years and assumed interest rates of 5%

(2) Includes actual tax revenues collected on a cash basis for fiscal year 2022 (July 2021 - June 2022), net of amounts apportioned to cities and
counties as State shared taxes.

(3) Unaudited



STATE INDEBTEDNESS

General

The State Constitution forbids the expenditure of the proceeds of any debt obligation for a purpose other
than the purpose for which it was authorized. Under State law, the term of bonds authorized and issued cannot
exceed the expected life of the projects being financed. Furthermore, the amount of bonds issued cannot exceed the
amount authorized by the General Assembly.

The procedure for funding State debt is provided by Chapter9 of Title 9, Tennessee Code Annotated. The
State Funding Board of the State of Tennessee is the entity authorized to issue general obligation indebtedness of the
State. The State Funding Board is composed of the Governor, the State Comptroller of the Treasury, the Secretary
of State, the State Treasurer,and the Commissioner of Finance and Administration. The State Funding Board issues
all general obligation indebtedness in the name of the State pursuant to authorization by the General Assembly
without concurrence orapprovalby anyother governmentalagency orby the electorate. Although the State Funding
Board determines the terms of general obligation indebtedness, the interest rate on the general obligation
indebtedness cannot exceed the Formula Rate which is defined in Section 47-14-102(6), Tennessee Code Annotated,
as generally the lesser of (i) the average prime loan rate published by the Federal Reserve System plus 4% or (ii)
24%.

Termination of Existence

The Governmental Entity Review Law provides for the termination of various governmental entities on
specified dates. Thatdate forthe State Funding Board is June 30,2024. The law also provides thatif the General
Assembly doesnot extend the termination date of anentity, the existence of the entity will continue foran additional
year without any diminution, reduction or limitation of its powers. However, the State is required to preserve the
rights of the holders of any outstandingindebtedness of the entity at the time of termination and the obligations and
rights of such entity shall accrue to the State.

Bonds

State law provides that the State may issue general obligation bonds forone or more purposes authorized by
the General Assembly of the State. As of March 31, 2023, the State had $1,374,695,000 (unaudited) of outstanding

general obligation bonds.
Commercial Paper Program

Bond anticipation notes may be issued for purposes for which bonds have been authorized, if the notes are
also authorized by legislative act. Notes have been authorized to be issued for the purposes of all existing bond
authorizations.

In March 2000, the State instituted a commercial paper program forauthorized capital projects. CPhasbeen
and will be issued underthe Commercial Paper Resolution, adopted by the members of the State Funding Board of
the State on March 6, 2000, as amended, in a principal amount outstanding at any one time not to exceed
$350,000,000. CP constitutes bond anticipation notes andis a direct general obligation of the State forthe payment
of which, asto both principaland interest, the full faith and credit of the State, but not Special Taxes, are pledged.

The State has entered into a Standby Commercial Paper Purchase Agreement (the “Standby Agreement”)
with the Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System (“TCRS”) under which TCRS is obligated to purchase newly
issued CP, issued to pay the principal of other CP, subject to suspension ortermination upon the occurrence of certain
events. The Standby Agreement requires that the principal amount of CP maturing on any day shall not exceed

$100,000,000 or such greater principal amount as agreed upon by the State and TCRS.

CP may havevaryingmaturities of not more than 270 days from theirrespective dates of issuance; provided,
however, thatno CP shall mature on a business day that will permit rollover purchased CPto beissued and mature
on a business day thatisnot laterthan one business day priorto the stated expiration date of the Standby Agreement
without regard to any early termination of the Standby Agreement. Currently, this date is July 1, 2026. CP is not
subject to redemption prior to maturity.

As ofMarch31,2023,$72,938,000 (unaudited) principalamount of CP was outstanding under this program.
The Bonds are expected to retire approximately $10,000,000 of CP.



Tax Revenue Anticipation Notes

The State is authorized to issue general obligation tax revenue anticipation notes (“TRANs”) in anticipation
ofthe receipt of tax revenues in the then current fiscalyearofthe State. The State Constitution prohibits the issuance
of debt for operating purposes maturingbeyond the end of a fiscalyear. Accordingly, any TRANsissued in a fiscal
year must be repaid by the end of the same fiscal year. TRAN:S, if issued, will constitute direct obligations of the
State for the payment of which, as to principal and interest, the full faith and credit of the State, but not Special
Taxes,are pledged. See “SECURITY FOR THE BONDS”. The State hasnot heretofore issued TRANs and hasno
current intent to do so.

{Remainder of page intentionally left blank}



Outstanding General Obligation Bonded Indebtedness
As of March 31,2023, there were $1,374,695,000 (unaudited) State general obligation bonds outstanding,

The annualdebt service requirements for the outstanding generalobligation bonded indebtedness following the issuance of the Bonds are as follows:

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDED DEBT SERVICE

Outstanding Debt Service * Plus Debt Service on the Bonds Total Debt Service

Fiscal

Year

Ending

(6/30) Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total
2023 $ - $ 6,250982 $ 6,250,982
2024 158,325,000 44,741,753 203,066,753
2025 149,635,000 40,269,749 189,904,749
2026 145,730,000 35,909,797 181,639,797
2027 137,300,000 31,577,341 168,877,341
2028 131,435,000 27,129,456 158,564,456
2029 122,560,000 22,783,092 145,343,092
2030 97,150,000 18,947,452 116,097,452
2031 85,615,000 15,529,590 101,144,590
2032 77,175,000 12,372,466 89,547,466
2033 54,365,000 9,881,261 64,246,261
2034 47,620,000 8,014,601 55,634,601
2035 46,990,000 6,291,320 53,281,320
2036 41,375,000 4,612,843 45,987,843
2037 27,840,000 3,117,005 30,957,005
2038 19,050,000 1,999,225 21,049,225
2039 11,335,000 1,125,845 12,460,845
2040 11,335,000 638,215 11,973,215
2041 4,930,000 295,800 5,225,800
2042 4,930,000 98,600 5,028,600

§ 1374,695000 $ 291,586,394 $ 1,666,281,394

* As of March 31, 2023; unaudited



Authorized and Unissued Bonds

The Statehad authorized asof March 31,2023,$1,460,602,305 (unaudited) of general obligation bonds
thathavenotbeen issued, including the Bonds and excluding an additionalamount not to exceed 2.5% of certain
authorized amounts to be used for fundingdiscounts and the cost of issuance at the discretion of the State Funding
Board. Of such authorized and unissued amount, $836,000,000 is for highway improvements. Bonds forhighway
improvements are authorized for contractual purposes and authorizations are canceled when construction projects
are completed. No general obligation bonds or CP have been issued for these purposes since 1977 and the State
does not currently anticipate issuing general obligation bonds or CP for these programs; however, the State can
give no assurance that this practice will continue.

Rate of Debt Retirement

The following table sets forth the rate of scheduled debt retirement of the State on all outstanding general
obligation bonds as of March 31,2023, which excludes the Bonds.

Principal Amount

Due Within Principal Amount % of Total
5 Years $ 590,990,000 42.99%
10 Years 1,104,925,000 80.38%
15 Years 1,323,115,000 96.25%
19 Years 1,374,695,000 100.00%

STATE FINANCES

The Budget Process

The State of Tennessee Budget for the appropriate fiscalyearoriginates in the executive branch with the
Governor’s annual budget recommendation to the General Assembly (the “Recommended Budget”). Initially,
budget preparation instructions are issued by the Department of Finance and Administration to all State agencies
and departments. These instructions describe the Administration’s guidelines related to continuingthe current level
of service (baseline budget) and proposed cost increase requests. The instructions are to be used by agencies and
departments in preparing their departmentbudgets for submission to the Departmentof Finance and Administra tion
in September of each year.

During the fall, each department’s budget request is reviewed, and requests for cost increases are analyzed
by the Department of Finance and Administration. Conferences are held with departmental and agency
representatives, the Director of Budget, and the Department of Finance and Administration staff to determime
which, if any, of the proposals should be recommended.

During the 1997 legislative session, the Office of Legislative Budget Analysis was created to enable the
General Assembly to strengthen its expertise in governmentalbudgetingand financingand in making public policy
decisions. The office wascreated asan independent department of the legislature working for both the Senate and
the House of Representatives and charged with reviewing and analyzing the State’s budget and overall financial
condition. The staff summarizes and analyzes the Governor’s budget proposal for members of the General
Assembly, secures budget justification data from the various state agencies, provides recommendations on budget
proposals and provides assistance on financial matters to the standing committees, as directed.

Under State law, the Governor submits the Recommended Budget to the General Assembly at the start of
the legislative session. The Recommended Budget must be presented to the General Assembly prior to February
1 of eachyear,exceptthata Governorin the first yearofa four-yearterm of office must present a budget prior to
March 1 of that year. However, the General Assembly may extend these deadlines by joint resolution.
Subsequently, the Governor submits a General Appropriation Bill and bond authorization bills containing
appropriations and general obligation bond authorizations required to finance theprogram levels and capital outlay
proposed in the Recommended Budget. Throughout the legislative session, the Finance, Ways and Means
Committees and appropriate standing committees of the House and Senate hold budget hearings for each



department to determine if changes should be made to the General Appropriation Bill and generalobligation bond
authorizations. After review and consideration, the Finance, Ways and Means Committees report on the General
Appropriation Bill and bond authorization bills, with any committeeamendments, to the House of Representatives
and Senate for action.

Underthe State Constitution, money may be drawn from the Treasury only through anappropriation made
by law. The primary source of the annual expenditure authorization is the General Appropriation Act as approved
by the General Assembly and signed by the Governor. These appropriations are generally limited to a one-year
period of availability. The General Appropriation Act requires both a simple majority vote of the House and a
simple majority vote of the Senate. Approval of the General Appropriation Bill usually occurs during the last
week of the legislative session. Once signed by the speakerofeach House of the General Assembly, the General
Appropriation Act is sent to the Governor for signature. If the Governor does notact within ten days, excluding
Sundays, the General Appropriation Act becomes law without signature. The Governor may reduce or eliminate
specific line items in the General Appropriation Act or any otherappropriations bill without vetoing the entire bill.
Such individual line-item vetoes are subject to override by a vote of a majority of the members elected to each

House of the General Assembly.

Appropriationsalso may be included in legislation other than the General Appropriation Act. Individual
bills containingappropriations must be heard by the Finance, Ways and Means Committee,and may be heard by
the relevant standing committee, in each House of the General Assembly. Afterall relevant committees recommend
passage, bills containing appropriations must be approved by a majority vote in each House of the General
Assembly and must be acted upon by the Governor. Bills of this characterare also subject to reduction or
elimination by individual line-item veto by the Governor, subject to furtheroverride by the General Assembly as
described above.

Budgets and appropriations may be revised and amended from time-to-time during a fiscal year fora
variety of reasons, including to assure thatthe fiscal year ends with a balanced budget. Consequently, there can
be no assurance that any budget document will not be subsequently amended.

Funds necessary to meet an appropriation need not be in the Treasury at the time such appropriation i
enacted; revenues may be appropriated in anticipation of their receipt.

Development of Revenue Estimates

The development of the general fund revenue estimates begins with a forecast of national economic
activity forthe State budget period. The State currently contracts with The University of Tennessee’s Boyd Center
for Business and Economic Research to prepare anannual Economic Report to the Governor containing short-term
business cycle-sensitive forecasts as well as longer-term or trend forecasts for the year. The Boyd Center
subscribes to the macroeconomic forecasting services of HIS Markit. The HIS Markit forecast becomes the
principal input to the Tennessee Econometric Model which is utilized to develop a forecast of similar indicators
of in-state activity.

At leastannually, the State Funding Board secures from the Boyd Centerthe estimated rate of growth of
the State’s economy as measured by the forecasted change in Tennessee personal income. The State Funding
Board reviews the estimated rate of growth in Tennessee personalincome and reports to the General Assembly its

comments relating to the reasonableness of the estimate, including any different estimate deemed necessary.

The State Funding Board is further directed by statute to conduct public hearings to develop consensus
ranges of estimates of Staterevenue forthe current fiscalyearandthe nextsucceeding fiscalyear. Atthe hearings,
representatives of state higher education institution business centers, including the Boyd Center, present revenue
estimates and economic forecasts. The State Funding Board also hears from representatives from the Department
of Revenue and the Fiscal Review Committee of the State. In November of each year the State Funding Board
presents its consensus ranges of State revenue estimates, and a summary of the economic forecast on which the
estimates are based, to the Governor and the Chairs of the Senate and House Finance, Ways and Means
Committees. Although not mandated prior to final legislative action on the budget, the State Funding Board may
receive updated estimates and forecasts at public hearings in the spring and may forward any revision to prior
estimates and the reasons thereforto the Governorand Chairs of the Senate and House Finance, Ways and Means
Committees. Pursuant to Section 9-4-5104, Tennessee Code Annotated, the Commissioner of Finance and

Administration has the responsibility forpreparing the revenue estimates presented in the Recommended Budget.
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Reserve for Revenue Fluctuations

In 2013,the General Assembly enacted legislation re-determining the allocation goal for the reserve for
revenue fluctuations (the “Reserve” or “Rainy Day Fund”) to be eight percent of estimated State tax revenues to
beallocated to the generalfund and education trust fund. Beginning with the budget forthe fiscal year 1998-1999
the allocation goal had been five percent. Until the redetermination funding levelis achieved, the Governor is to
budgetan allocation to the Reserve in an amount at least equalto ten percent of the estimated growth in estimated
State tax revenues to be allocated to the general fund and education trust fund. Amounts in the Reserve may be
utilized to meet State tax revenue shortfalls. Subjectto specific provisions of the general appropriations bill, an
amount not to exceed the greater of $100 million or one-half (1/2) of the amount available in the Reserve may be
used by the Commissioner of Finance and Administration to meet expenditure requirements in excess of budgeted
appropriation levels. Prior to using any amounts in the Reserve for this purpose, the Commissioner shall notify
the Secretary of the State Funding Board and the Chairs of the Finance, Ways and Means Committees of the Senate
and the House of Representatives that the Reserve fundsare to be used for this purpose. The Commissionershall
report information concerning the need to utilize these funds to the various committees.

The Reserve balance at the end of eachof fiscalyears 2013 through 2022, the estimated balance for fiscal
year 2023 and the budgeted balance at the end of fiscal year 2024, respectively, are as follows:

Fiscal Year

Ended Balance

June 30, 2015 $ 491,500,000
June 30, 2016 568,000,000
June 30, 2017 668,000,000
June 30, 2018 800,000,000
June 30, 2019 875,000,000
June 30, 2020 1,200,000,000
June 30, 2021 1,450,000,000
June 30, 2022 1,550,000,000
June 30, 2023 1,800,000,000 *
June 30, 2024 2,050,000,000 **

* Estimated and unaudited
** Budgeted

The Reserve is estimated to increase by $250,000,000 for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2023, and
budgeted to increase by an additional $250,000,000 forthe fiscal yearending June 30,2024. The statutory goalis
forthe Reserve to be eight percent of estimated State tax revenues to be allocatedto the general fundand education
trust fund. The Reserve is estimated to be 8.1% for fiscal year ending June 30, 2023, and 9.0% for fiscal year
endingJune 30, 2024. The State can give no assurance that the budgetedincrease in the Reserve forthe fiscal year
ending June 30,2024, will be achieved. See “STATE FINANCES - Financial Information and Budget Summary
for Fiscal Years 2022-2023 and 2023-2024".

Budgeting for Authorized and Unissued Debt

The State’s current practice is to annually budget for five percent of all authorized and unissued general
obligation bonds, including bonds authorized and not expected to be issued as described in “Authorized and
Unissued Bonds” above, to account forassumed principalredemption (on the basis of an assumed 20-year, level-
principal issue), plus an amount forassumed interest currently at a rate of six percent annually. The State cannot
offer any assurance that it will continue this practice in the future.
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Financial Control Procedures

The State Constitution requires, for current operations, that expenditures for any fiscal year not exceed
the State’s revenues and reserves, including the proceeds of any debt obligation, for that year.

Generally, the executive branch controls the expenditure of State funds for the operation of State
government. Two important concepts are involved in the execution of the General Appropriation Act: preparation
of work programs and development of allotment controls. Analysts of the Division of Budget, Department of
Finance and Administration, and fiscal personnel in the various State departments and agencies have the
responsibility of reconciling the General Appropriation Act, as approved, with the submitted Recommended
Budget. Statelawrequires thatadministrative agencies prepare a work program foreach fiscalyear. These work
programs indicate separate annual spending requirements for payroll and other operating expenses necessary to
carry outagency programs. The head of any agency may revise the work program during the fiscal year because
of changed conditions and submit such revision forapproval. Ifthe Commissionerof Finance and Administration
and the Governorapprove the revision, then the same procedure forreview, approvaland controlis followed as in
making the original allotments. The aggregate of all allotments after the revision cannot exceed the total
appropriations made to the agency for the fiscal year in question.

All expenditures of State administrative agencies are processed through the Department of Finance and
Administration and are measured against work program allotments. Savings which may occur as a result of the
difference between the amounts provided in the work program allotments for payroll and other operating
expenditures and the amounts actually spent forthose expenditures accumulate throughout the fiscalyearunless a
work program is revised to re-allot unspent amounts. Likewise, departmental revenue surpluses cannot be spent
until approved by the Commissioner of Finance and Administration and, in some cases, reviewed by the Finance,
Waysand Means Committees of the General Assembly. Such centralspending control offers executive flexibility
relative to any anticipated surplus or shortfall in the budget.

The Governor may effect spending reductions to offset unforeseen revenue shortfalls or unanticipated
expenditure requirements for particular programs. These spending reductions can take the form of deferred
equipment purchases, hiring freezes, and similar cutbacks. If necessary, the Governor may reduce portions of
administrative budgets prior to allotment. Furthermore,the Governoris authorized to call special sessions of the
General Assembly at any time to address financial or other emergencies.

TRANs may be issued to fund operatingexpenses. However, the State hasnot heretofore issued TR ANs
and hasno current intent to do so. See “STATE INDEBTEDNESS - Tax Revenue Anticipation Notes” above for

a description of restrictions on issuance of TRANSs for this purpose.
Financial Information and Budget Summary for Fiscal Years 2022-2023 and 2023-2024
Financial Information

The fiscal year2023-2024 Recommended Budget, as presented by the Governor to the General Assembly
on February 6, 2023, projected recurring growth in totaltaxesof $690,300,000,0r2.30%, and recurring growth in
the general fund of $547,400,000, or 2.25%, above fiscal year 2022-2023 estimates.

As discussed under “Development of Revenue Estimates” above, the State Funding Board periodically
reviews and revises revenue estimates for budgeting purposes. The State Funding Board met on November 16,
2022,to hearand discuss updates on economic and revenue projections forthe remainder of fiscal year2022-2023
and to project revenue estimates for fiscal year 2023-2024. The State Funding Board reconvened on November
28,2022, and adopted the followingrevised consensus tax revenue recurring growth projections forthe 2022-2023
fiscalyear (growth measured against actualresults forthe 2021-2022 fiscalyear, as set forth in the following table)
and for the 2023-2024 fiscalyear (recurring growth measured against the potentialrange of results for the 2022-

2023 fiscal year, as set forth in the following table):
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Fiscal Year Fiscal Year

2022-2023 2023-2024
Fiscal Year 2021-2022
Results Low High Low High
Total State Taxes  §$ 20,807,878,300 6.82% 7.27% 1.40% 2.30%
General FundOnly $ 18,034,436,100 7.20% 7.70% 1.25% 2.25%

The fiscal year 2023-2024 Recommended Budget was based on these consensus revenue estimates.

The State Funding Board is scheduled to convene in November 2023 to hear and discuss updates on
economic and revenue projections forthe remainder of fiscalyear2023-2024 andto project revenue estimates for
fiscal year 2024-2025. The Board may schedule additional meetings at its discretion.

On anaccrualbasis, February is the seventh month of fiscalyear 2022-2023. Totalstate tax collections
for the eight months (August through February) were $1,300,000,000 above the July 1, 2022 budgeted estimate,
and collections for the general fund were $1,200,000,000 above the budgeted estimates. Collections for the four
other funds that share tax revenue proceeds were $121,600,000 more than the July 1,2022, budgeted estimates.
Collections are unaudited and subject to final accrual adjustments. The Rainy Day Fund balance is estimated to
be $1,800,000,000 at June 30, 2023, and projected to be $2,050,000,000 at June 30, 2024. See “STATE
FINANCES - Reserve for Revenue Fluctuations”.

Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Budget Summary

As shown in the Recommended Budget, the fiscal year2023-2024 budget is based on a recurring growth
ratein totaltaxes of2.30%. General Fund recurring cost increases total$1,562,700,000, much of which is used to
fund salary and benefits, program and inflationary growth in TennCare, Tennessee Investment in Student
Achievement (TISA), and Higher Education Recurring appropriations are funded by recurring revenues. The
Rainy Day Fund balance is budgeted to increase to $2,050,000,000 after an additional deposit of $250,000,000.
For a further description of the 2023-2024 Recommended Budget, see “Budgetary Sources and Uses” section
below.

The capitalbudgetsasamendedandapproved by the General Assembly for fiscalyear2022-2023 and the
Recommended Budget for fiscal year 2023-2024 are as follows:

Fiscal Year

2022-23 2023-24
State Current Funds $ 2,155,747,300 $ 1,702,117,300
Federal Funds 24,176,500 30,087,500
General Obligation Bonds (excl. Hwy. Imp.) 500,000,000 -
Highway Improvement Bonds 83,500,000 83,800,000
Other Miscellaneous Funds 193,359,200 110,646,200
Facilities Revolving Fund 709,280,000 84,220,000
Total $ 3,666,063,000 $ 2,010,871,000

Bondshavenotbeen issued forhighway improvements or for the Tennessee transportation infrastructure
improvement programsince 1977, and there is no current intent to do so; however, there can be no assurance that
this practice will continue. Bonds forthese purposes are authorized for contractual purposes and authorizations are
canceled when construction projects are completed.
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TennCare Program

The TennCare Medicaid expansion program was launchedin 1994. The TennCare program operates under
a Section 1115 waiver from the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (“CMS”) in the United States
Department of Health and Human Services as a managed care program. Medicaid waiver programs are time-
limited. The waiverunder which TennCareisnow operatingbegan on July 1,2002,and has beenextended through
December31,2030.

TennCare services are offered through managed care entities. Medical, behavioral and long-term care
services are covered by “at risk” Managed Care Organizations (“MCO”) in each region of the State. Enrollees
have their choice of MCOs serving the areas in which they live, except that some enrollees are assigned to
TennCare Select. TennCare Select isa managed care planforcertain populations such as children in State custody
and enrollees who may be living temporarily out-of-state. In addition to the MCOs, there is a pharmacy benefits
manager for coverage of prescription drugs and a dental benefits manager for provision of dental services.
Coordination of care is the responsibility of the enrollee's primary care provider in his or her MCO. Long-term
care services are provided in nursing facilities for elderly persons and in intermediate care facilities for persons
with intellectual or developmental disabilities, as well asby home and community based services providers. These
services had been “carved out” of TennCare and paid for by the State through a fee-for-service arrangement.
However,in 2010,the State implemented the TennCare “CHOICES in Long-Term Care Program” which brought
long-term care services for persons who are elderly and physically disabled into the managed care program. In
2016, a waiver amendment was approved to create the Employment and Community First CHOICES progam
which brought into managed care new enrollees with a need forhome and community based services forindividuals
with intellectual or developmental disabilities.

The Division of TennCare within the Tennessee Department of Finance and Administration is the State
agency charged with the responsibility for administering the TennCare program. In addition to overseeing the
contracts with the managed care entities and overseeing the long-term care program, the Bureau of TennCare i
responsible for payment of Medicare premiums, deductibles, and/or coinsurance for certain low-income Medicare
beneficiaries.

The TennCare program currently has approximately 1.75 million enrollees consisting of approximately
920,000 children and approximately 830,000 adults. The 2023-2024 Recommended TennCare budget is
$14,540,000,000, including federal funds,and is 26.2% of the total2023-2024 Recommended Budget. Excluding

federal funds, the cost of the TennCare program is budgeted to be 20.8% of the total State tax collections.

In fiscal year2021-2022, the TennCare Reserve was $1,113,500,000 and is equal to 23.4% of the State
funds contributed to the TennCare porgram. Historically, the TennCare Unobligated Reserve was $1,005,800,000
in fiscal year 2020-2021; $500,000,000 in fiscal year 2019-2020; $390,400,000 in fical year 2018-2019;
$311,300,000 in fiscalyear2017-2018; $242,500,000 in fiscalyear2016-2017; $226,200,000 in fiscal year2015-
2016;%$267,700,000 in fiscal year2014-2015; $306,900,000 in fiscal year2013-2014; and $306,900,000 in fiscal
year2012-2013. The TennCare Reserve is not statutorily required and there can be no assurance that the TennCare
Reserve will be available for use in the TennCare program.
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Budgetary Sources and Uses of Funds

The following tables compare budgetary sources and uses of funds for fiscal years 2022-2023 and 2023-
2024:

2023-2024 Budget Document
2022-2023 Estimated Budget Compared to
2023-2024 Recommended Budget

Sources of Funds

Estimated Budget Recommended Budget
FY 2022-2023 FY 2023-2024 Difference

Tax Revenue - Revised Estimate

Sales and Use Taxes $ 13,796,000,000 14,260,200,000 $ 464,200,000

Other Taxes - Department of Revenue 8,297,700,000 8,523,800,000 226,100,000
Other Miscellaneous Revenues 2,732,747,000 2,329,011,600 (403,735,400)
Tobacco Funds 150,000,000 150,000,000 -
Lottery for Education Funds 452,350,600 456,649,400 4,298,800
Debt Service Fund Transfer 96,068,000 * - (96,068,000)

Reserve Transfers and Adjustments
Reversion - Overappropriation

Rainy Day Fund Transfer

Sub-Total

Federal Funds
Current Services and Other Revenues
Tuition and Student Fees

Bonds

Total

NG
* Reserves, Transfers and Reversion

1,499,043,631

76,808,500

*

*

(250,000,000 *

4,384,853,000 * 2,885,809,369
76,808,500 * -

(250,000,000 * -

$ 26,850,717,731

29,931,322,500 $  3,080,604,769

$ 22,020,910,700

18,823,673,300 $ (3,197,237,400)

4,702,061,600 4,699,814,400 (2,247,200)
2,037,960,700 2,037,960,700 -

583,500,000 83,800,000 (499,700,000)

$ 56,195,150,731 55,576,570,900 $ (618,579,831)

$ 1,421,920,131

4,211,661,500 $ 2,789,741,369

(1) Reserves are funds transferred to the general fund as authorized by the General Appropriations Act. Reserves also includes funds
reserved for appropriationin the following fiscal year. Transfers are funds transferred to the general fund for specific purposes. Reversion
is the estimated budget surplus remaining at the end of a fiscal year.
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2023-2024 Budget Document

2022-2023 Estimated Budget Compared to
2023-2024 Recommended Budget

General Government
Education

Health and Social Services
Law, Safety, and Correction

Resources and Regulation

Trasnsportation (GF), Business and Economic
Development

Total General Fund

Transportation (Non-GF)
Debt Service Requirements
Capital Outlay Program
Facilities Revolving Fund

Cities and Counties - State Shared Taxes

Total State Budget All Programs

Uses of Funds

Estimated Budget
FY 2022-2023

Estimated Budget
FY 2023-2024

Difference

§  2,326,956,650
14,188,905,300
23,042,221,700

2,673,805,031

2,872,343,850

2,998,244,900

$  2,923,958,600
14,667,879,100
22,515,423,500
2,976,707,400

1,459,304,700

4,361,493,000

$ 597,001,950
478,973,800
(526,798,200)
302,902,369

(1,413,039,150)

1,363,248,100

$48,102,477,431

$48,904,766,300

$ 802,288,869

§  2,459,108,200
378,353,000
3,582,563,000
162,949,100

1,509,700,000

§  2,697,493,500
342,101,000
1,932,161,000
162,949,100

1,537,100,000

$ 238,385,300
(36,252,000)
(1,650,402,000)

27,400,000

$56,195,150,731

$55,576,570,900

$ (618,579,831)
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Investment Policy

The State Funding Board is charged with the establishmentof policy guidelines forthe investment of State
funds. The State Treasurer is responsible for the management of the State Pooled Investment Fund (the “SPIF”)
(which includes the State’s cash, various dedicated reserves and trust funds of the State, and the Local Government
Investment Pool) and the Intermediate Term Investment Fund (the “ITIF”), a longer term investment option.

The primary investment objective forthe SPIF is safety of principal, followed by liquidity and yield. No
investments may be purchased with a remaining maturity of greaterthan 397 calendardays, the weighted average
maturity cannot exceed 60 days, and the weighted average life cannot exceed 120 days. Investment instruments
authorized by the Investment Policy for the SPIF approved by the State Funding Board pursuant to Section 9-4-
602, Tennessee Code Annotated, forpurchase by the SPIF include (1) bonds, notes and treasury bills of the United
States or other obligations guaranteed asto principal and interest by the United States or any of its agencies; (2)
repurchase agreements forobligations of the United States or its agencies; (3) certificates of deposit in banks and
savings and loan associations recognized as state depositories pursuant to Section 9-4-107, Tennessee Code
Annotated; provided, however, certificates of deposit shall be collateralized in accordance with the provisions of
Tennessee Code Annotated; (4) prime commercial paperthatis rated in the highest category by at least two
nationally recognized commercial paper rating agencies; (5) prime bankers’ acceptances that are eligible for
purchase by the FederalReserve System; and (6) securities lending agreements whereby securities may be loaned
for a fee; provided, however, eligible collateralas defined in Section 9-4-103, Tennessee Code Annotated, whose
market value is at least equal to one hundred two percent (102%) of the market value of the borrowed securities
shall be required for each loan and for purposes of this provision, eligible collateral shall include cash collateral,
which shall be equalto atleast one hundred percent (100%) of the market values of the borrowed securities. For
each type of investment, certain terms and conditions must be met. All securities purchased are held by a custodian
pursuant to a custodian agreement.

The ITIF portfolio is intended to be a longer-term investment option to the SPIF. The ITIF is actively
managed andis designed to invest in longer-term instruments in order to benefit from the normalsteepness of the
yield curve. The dollar weighted average maturity of the ITIF shallnot exceed 3 years. An appropriate amount of
the fund is maintained in short term investments to coveremergency withdrawals. No security will be purchased
with a remaininglife of over five years. Investment instruments authorized by the Investment Policy for the ITIF
approved bythe State Funding Board pursuant to Section 9-4-602, Tennessee Code Annotated, for purchase by the
ITIF include: (1) bonds, notes and treasury bills of the United States or other obligations guaranteedas to principal
and interest by the United Statesor any of its agencies; (2) obligations guaranteed as to principal and interest by
the federal home loan mortgage corporation, federal national mortgage association, student loan marketing
association and other United Stated government-sponsored corporations; (3) repurchase agreements for obligations
of'the United States orits agencies; (4) prime commercial paperthatisrated in the highest category by at least two
nationally recognized commercial paperrating agencies; and (5) prime bankers’ acceptancesthat are eligible for
purchase by the Federal Reserve System. For each type of investment, certain terms and conditions must be met.
All securities purchased are held by a custodian pursuant to a custodian agreement.

In addition to the fundsin the SPIF and the ITIF, TCRS (a pension trust fund), the Chairs of Excellence
Trust (a permanent fund), the Tennessee Promise Endowment Fund (a trust to fund highereducationscholarships),
and the Other Post-Employment Benefits Trust (a trust to pay non-pension benefits to former state employees) (see
“Other Post-Employment Benefits” page 18) are authorized by statutes to invest in long-term investments,
including bonds, debentures, preferred stock and common stock, real estate and other good and solvent securities
subjectto the approval of the applicable boards of trustees. See “Appendix A - Financial Statements” - Note 4A
“Deposits and Investments”.
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Accounting Standards

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) is the body responsible for promulgating
accountingand financialreporting standardsthat are followed by state and localgovernments desiring to present
financialstatements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”). The State adheres to
GASB rules and issues audited financial statements in conformity with GAAP.

Other Post-Employment Benefits

In 2015, GASB issued Statements Nos. 74 and 75 that provide accounting and financial reporting
requirements forretiree healthcare plansand employerparticipants,commonly known as Other Post-Employment
Benefits (“OPEB™). Statement No. 74 was effective forfiscal yearended June 30,2017, while Statement No. 75

was effective for fiscal year ended June 30, 2018.

State employees and teachers who meet specified criteria receive pension benefits provided to retirees
through a defined benefit plan administered by TCRS. In addition to retirement benefits, certain qualified retirees
may continue participation in OPEB plans sponsored by the State. Retirees who arenot yet eligible for Medicare
have accessto the same benefits as current employees and pay monthly premiums that vary by years of service at
retirement. After age 65, retirees may participate in a Medicare supplemental plan. The State’s financial support
to this supplemental plan is a fixed amount based on years of service. Employees hired on or after July 1, 2015,
are not eligible to participate in State administered OPEB plans.

The mostrecent completedactuarial valuations of post-employment medical benefits,as of June 30,2021,
was completed during fiscal year 2022. These studies were conducted using the entry age actuarial cost method
and focused on individualemployers within each plan. The State’s obligationsand OPEB expense resulting from
the June 30,2021 study are summarized below.

As of June 30,2022

(expressed in thousands)

Net/Total OPEB Total OPEB
Liability Expense

State Employee Group Plan

State obligation for employees $ 474,463 $ 24,087
Local Education Agency Group Plan

State obligation on behalf of teachers 305,827 24,566
Medicare Supplement Plan

State obligation for employees

(including component unit and LEA) 396,346 26,861
Total State Obligation $ 1,176,636 $ 75,514

The actuary reports may be reviewed at: https://www.tn.gov/finance/rd-doa/opeb22121 .html. The State
has contracted with Aon PLC to provide GASB required valuations forthe State Employee Group, Teacher Group,
Local Government Group and Tennessee (Medicare Supplement) OPEB plans. The next valuation results, as of
June 30,2022, are expected to be received in late summer of 2023, and will be reported in the fiscal year ended
June 30,2023 financial statements.

The OPEB information above was reported in the State’s Annual Comprehensive Financial Report for
fiscal year ended June 30, 2022. Pursuant to Sections 9-27-801, ef seq. Tennessee Code Annotated, a trust (the
“OPEB Trust”) was established and beganoperatingeffective January 1,2019, whereby the State Employee Group
Plan was converted to a prefunding arrangement where assets are accumulated in the OPEB Trust and benefit
payments are made directly from the OPEB Trust. The net position of the OPEB Trust for the fiscal yearending
June 30, 2022, was $444.9 million. The State has the flexibility to adjust the benefits and premium sharing
provisions provided by insurance plans and to adjust the various OPEB plan optionsand operations on an annual
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basis. It will continue to analyze the cost of the choices available to retirees and the State’s cash flow to manage
these expenditures going forward.

The trustees (the “Trustees”) of the OPEB Trust are the Commissioner of Finance and Administration, the
chair of the Finance, Ways and Means Committee for the Senate, the chair of the Finance, Ways and Means
Committee forthe House of Representatives, and the State Treasurer, in his capacity as chairof the board of TCRS.

Financial Reporting Awards

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (the “GFOA”) has
awarded Certificates of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the State for its Conprehensive
AnnualFinancial Report for the fiscal yearsended June 30, 1979 to June 30, 2008, thirty consecutive years. The
State did not receive the award for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 due to the implementation of a new
accountingsystem that delayed the report but did receive the award again for fiscalyears ended June 30, 2010, to
June 30,2022. TCRS was also awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting for
its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022. This was the thirty-fifth
consecutive year that TCRS received this award. To be awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence, a
governmental unit must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financialreport,
the content of which conforms to program standards. Such reports must satisfy both GAAP and applicable legal
requirements.

Public Health Epidemic or Outbreaks

Public health epidmics or outbreaks, such as COVID-19, could adversly impact the economy and the
economics of the United States and the State of Tennessee. The extent to which such public health epidemics or
outbreaks may impact the State will depend on future developments, which are highly uncertain and cannot be
predicted with confidence, including the duration of the outbreak and the actions to contain the threat or treat is
impact, among others.

Cybersecurity

The State utilizes various computer systems and network technology to perform many of its vital
operations. Such operations often include the storage and transmission of sensitive information. As a result, the
State may be the target of cyberattacks attempting to gain access to such information. In addition to intentional
attacks, information breaches may occurdue to unintentionalusererror. A successfulcyberattack orunintentional
breach may require the expenditure of an unknown amount of money or time to resolve, substantially interrupt
State and operations andsubject the State to legal action. Attempted cybersecurity attacks, whether anonymous or
targeted, occurperiodically, which is notuncommon for organizations or entities similar to the State. To mitigate
against such risks, the State and its departments, agencies, and divisions, have instituted various technical control,
policies and procedures to protect their network infrastructure, including a cybersecurity training requirement for
certain departments, as well as general cybersecurity training and awareness for all employees. The Strategic
Technology Solutions Division of the State’s Department of Finance and Administration works with various State
departments, agencies and divisions, as necessary, to develop specific cybersecurity policies and procedures. The
State also maintains third-party insurance against cybersecurity incidents.

THE TENNESSEE CONSOLIDATED RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Introduction

TCRS wasestablished in 1972 asa trust to provide a defined benefit pension plan that covers three large
groups of public employees - State employees (including higher education employees), public school teachers of
grades K-12 (including teachers employed by public charterschools) (“Teachers”), and employees of participating
local governments.

State and higher education employees (with limited exceptions described in the section “General
Information”)hired on or before June 30, 2014, are members of a legacy closed defined benefit plan (the “Closed
Plan”) and do not make contributions to the Closed Plan. Since July 1, 1981, all contributions made on behalf of
members of the Closed Plan have been made by members’ employers in amounts determined by actuarial
valuations.
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State and higher education employees (with limited exceptions described in the section “General
Information”) hired on or afterJuly 1, 2014,are members of a hybrid retirement plan that provides both a defined

benefit plan and a defined contribution plan (the “Hybrid Plan”).

The State is ultimately responsible for the financial obligation of the benefits provided by TCRS to State
and higher education employee members of the Closed Plan to the extent such obligation is not covered by
employercontributions and investment earnings. Although the State’s liability for its financial obligations under
the Closed Plan is uncapped, the Hybrid Plan was designed so that the State’s liability is limited to a total maximum
annual employer cost of nine percent (9%) of an employee’s salary. The plan provisions of the Closed Plan and
the Hybrid Plan are described in “General Plan Provisions.”

The State is not directly responsible for the pension benefits provided to Teachers or local government
employees. However, the State does provide funding to the local school systems, which are referred to as Local
Education Agencies (“LEAs”), to assist in the fundingofa system of education in Tennessee. Funds provided by
the State to LEAs may be used to finance the employer pension contributions of LEAs to TCRS.

TCRS is governed by a Board of Trustees (the “Board”) thatisresponsible for the general administration
and operations of TCRS within the requirements and provisions of State statutes. The Board is composed of nine
ex-officio members (of which two are non-voting), nine representatives of the active TCRS membership,and two
representatives forretirees. The ex-officio membersinclude the chair and vice-chairof the legislative Council on
Pensions and Insurance (as nonvoting members), the Commissioner of Human Resources, the Commissioner of
Finance and Administration, the Comptroller of the Treasury,the Secretary of State,the Administrative Director
of'the Courts, the State Treasurer (sits as the Chair),and the Director of TCRS (sits asthe Secretary). The employee
representatives consist of three Teachers (one from each grand division of the State who are selected for three-
year terms by the Speaker of the Senate and the Speaker of the House of Representatives), two State employees
from departments other than those represented by ex-officio members (elected by State and higher education
employees forthree-yearterms), one public safety officer (appointed by the Governor fora three-yearterm), three
representatives of local governments (appointed by the Tennessee County Services Association, the Tennessee
Municipal League, and the County Officials Association of Tennessee for two-year terms), a retired Teacher
(appointed by the Speaker of the House of Representatives for a three-year term), and a retired State or higher
education employee (appointed by the Governor fora two-yearterm). All employee representatives must be vested
members of TCRS.

By statute, an actuarial valuation of TCRS is to be conducted at least once in every two-year period.
However, pursuant to the funding policy adopted by the Board on September 26,2014, an actuarial valuation i
conducted annually as of each June 30th for both accounting purposes and funding purposes. The June 30,2021,
valuation established the Actuarially Determined Contribution (“ADC”) for the period July 1, 2022 to June 30,
2023.Theactuarial valuationas of June 30,2022, which establishes the ADC rates effective July 1,2023,has been
completed and will be presented to the Board of Trustees for adoption. The Board certifies to the Governor each
yearthe amount necessary to fund the ADC for State and higher education employees, and by statute the General
Assembly is required to appropriate suchamount. Thus, foreachyearsince 1972, the Statehaspaid to TCRS 100%
of the ADC for State and higher education employees. The ADC represents the amount necessary to fund the
normalcost (the cost of current service being accrued), the amortized amount of the unfunded accrued liabilities,
and the cost of the administration of TCRS pursuant to the actuarialmethodology described herein. The State has
not generally waived immunity from suit or extended its consent to be sued, and sovereign immunity and other
legal principles may bar actions to compel the General Assembly to appropriate moneys in the future for such
purposes.

The fiduciary net position (net assets) of the Closed Plan in excess of its total pension liability, or net
pension asset, atthe June 30, 2021, measurement date, was $611,848,117. The Closed Plan fiduciary net position
asa percentage of the total pension liability, or funded ratio, was 103.3% at June 30,2021, calculated in accordance
with GASB Statement No. 68 (“GASB 68”). The funded ratio was 90.58% for2020,91.67% for2019,90.26% for
2018,88.88% for2017,87.96% for2016,91.26% for2015,and 95.11% for2014. Before 2014, the funded ratio
was calculated using the actuarial value of assets as determined in an actuarial valuation with such amount then
divided by actuarialaccrued liability. Historical funded ratios were 89.4% for2013 and 88.30% for2011.In most
years before 2014, the funded ratio would have been lower if based on market value of assets.
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The Hybrid Planis a legally separate agent planpursuantto State statute and a separate set of accounting
and actuarialrecords is maintained forthisplan. At the June 30,2021, measurement date, the funded ratio of the
Hybrid Plan was 121.71% with fiduciary net position exceedingtotal pension liability by $84,746,506. The funded
ratio was 112.90% for 2020, 122.36% for 2019, 132.39% for 2018, 131.51% for2017, 130.56% for 2016 and
142.55% for 2015.

The amounts and percentages set forth in this section relating to TCRS are based upon numerous
demographic and economic assumptions, including investment return rates, inflation rates, salary increase rates,
cost of living adjustments, post-employment mortality, active member mortality and rates of retirement.
Prospective purchasers of the Bonds are cautioned to review and carefully assess the reasonableness of the
assumptions set forth in the documents thatare cited as the sources forthe information in this section. In addition,
prospective purchasers of the Bonds are cautioned that such sources and the underlyingassumptions are provided
as of their respective datesand are subject to change. Prospective purchasers of the Bonds should also be aware
that some of the information presented in this section contains forward-looking statements and the actual results
of TCRS may differ materially from the information presented herein.

General Information

TCRS was established effective July 1, 1972 by Public Chapter 814, Acts of 1972. Tennessee Code
Annotated Section 8-34-202 provides that TCRS hasthe powers, privileges and immunities of a corporation and
that all of its business shall be transacted, all of its funds invested, and all of its cash and other property held in
trust for the purpose for which received. By statute, the general administration and responsibility for the proper
operation of TCRS are vested in the Board. The Treasury Department, a constitutional office in the legislative
branch of State government, is responsible for the administration of TCRS, including the investment of assets in
both the Closed Plan and the Hybrid Plan, in accordance with State statute and in accordance with the policies,
rules, and regulations established by the Board.

State and higher education employees must become members of TCRS except that higher education
employees exempt from the Federal Fair Labor Standards Act may waive membership in TCRS and elect to
participate in the Optional Retirement Program, a defined contribution plan described in the section “Other

Retirement Programs.”

Teachersare members of TCRS. The more than 200 LEAs are responsible on a cost sharing basis for the
financialobligation of the benefits provided by TCRS to Teachers to the extent such obligations are not covered
by their employee contributions and investmentearnings. The obligation is funded by LEA employer contributions
asdetermined by an actuarial valuation. LEAs do not have taxingauthority. The localgoverning body of an LEA
and the State provide funding to LEAs to finance the cost of providing a system of education forthe children of
the State. The State’s education funding formula includes an amount to be used toward some, but not all, of an
LEA’s pension cost (LEA’s employer contributions to TCRS). For TCRS purposes, the Teacher group includes
certificated Teachers and does not include non-teaching personnel such as bus drivers, cafeteria workers,
maintenance employees, custodians, and secretaries.

Local governments may join TCRS as a participating employer in order to provide pension benefits for
their employees. However, each local government is responsible for the financial obligation of the benefits
provided by TCRS to their employees to the extent such obligations are not covered by their employee
contributions and investment earnings. The State is not responsible for the liability associated with local
governments participating in TCRS. Local governments participating in TCRS include cities, counties, special
school districts, utility districts, emergency communication districts, and otherpolitical subdivisions of the State.
As of June 30,2021, there are more than 600 local governments in the TCRS plan. Employees of local governments
could include general employees, non-teaching employees of a school system, transportation department
employees, public safety employees, utility employees, and employees of other departments of the local
government.

State employees and higher education employees are combined for actuarial and financial obligation
purposes, and the State is considered an agent employer group pursuant to GASB. Since the State is financially
responsible for State and highereducation employees in the Hybrid Plan, up to the point where cost controls occur,
as described in the section “Cost Controls and Unfunded Liability Controls of the Hybrid Plan”, separate
accounting and actuarial records are maintained for this group. LEAs are combined into a teacher cost-sharing
group for actuarialand financial obligation purposes. Since LEAs are financially responsible for Teachersin the
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Hybrid Plan up to the point where cost controls occur, as described in the section “Cost Controls and Unfunded
Liability Controls of the Hybrid Plan”, separate accountingand actuarialrecords are maintained forthis Teacher
group. Each participatinglocal government in TCRS is maintained separately foractuarialand financial obligation
purposesand is considered an agent employer for financial purposes. However, the assets of all public employee
groups participatingin TCRS are commingled forinvestment purposes with each group receiving its pro rata share
of investment gains and losses.

It has been TCRS’ practice to conduct an actuarial audit every ten years, the last audit being completed
effective with the 2019 valuation. The current funding policy continues this practice. By statute, an actuarial
experience study shallbe conducted at least once every six years to establish demographic assumptions (pattem of
retirement, turnover, mortality, etc.) and economic assumptions (investment earnings rate, salary, retiree cost of
living, etc.). Pursuantto the fundingpolicy adopted by the Board, anactuarial experience study is conducted every
four years. The most recent experience study was conducted in 2020. As mentioned above, actuarial valuations
are required every two years but by policy are conducted annually.

TCRS issues audited financial statements on an annual basis. By statute, an independent audit is conducted
by the Comptroller of the Treasury, an office established by the State’s Constitution. The Comptroller of the
Treasury is a partof the legislative branch of State government and is accountable to the General Assembly. The
financial statements are prepared in conformity with GAAP in the United States of America.

The Comptroller of the Treasury performed the audit of the most recent financialstatements of TCRS as
of June 30,2022. The latest actuarial valuations for funding and accounting purposes (as of June 30, 2022), and
actuarial experience study (as of June 30, 2022) were performed by the actuarial and consulting firm of USI
Consulting Group, Inc. The latest actuarial audit (as of June 30, 2019) was performed by the actuarial and
consulting firm of Segal. Such reports are available on the Tennessee Treasury website at
www.treasury.tn.gov/Retirement/Boards-and-Governance/GASB-and-Actuarial-Information.

As of June 30,2021, the membership in TCRS was as follows:

TCRS Membership*
Inactive Inactive
Employees or Employees
Beneficiaries Entitled to
Currently but not yet
Active Receiving Receiving
Employees Benefits Benefits Total
State & Higher Education
Employees
Closed Plan 32,694 60,964 36,600 130,258
Hybrid Plan 26,219 88 19,369 45,676
Total 58,913 61,052 55,969 175,934
Teachers
Closed Plan 50,944 53,785 30,951 135,680
Hybrid Plan 29,203 53 11,630 40,886
Total 80,147 53,838 42,581 176,566

* Information from most recent actuarial valuation (measurement period of 7/1/2020-6/30/2021).
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General Plan Provisions
Closed Plan

The description underthis section applies to employees hired on or before June 30,2014; the Closed Plan
was closed to new membership on June 30,2014. Employees, whether vested or non-vested,asof June 30,2014,
continue to accrue benefits under these benefit provisions.

State employees, higher education employees and Teachers are vested upon completing five years of
employment. Eligibility for a retirement benefit is either age sixty (60) and vested or at any age after thirty (30)
years of service credit. A reduced benefitis available at age fifty-five (55). Disability benefitsare available after
five (5) years of employment if the member is totally and permanently disabled and cannot engage in gainful
employment. Death benefits are available under certain conditions.

The benefit provided by TCRS is a mathematical formula that uses a member’s highest consecutive five
yearaverage salary (“five (5)yearsalary’)and a member’s years of creditable service. The formula is a multi-step
calculation that provides a benefit that, stated in a simplified manner, is between one and five-tenths percent(1.5%)
and one and sixth-tenths percent (1.6%) of the member’s five (5) year salary multiplied by years of service. For
example, a thirty (30) year employee will receive approximately forty-eight percent (48%) of his or her five (5)
yearsalary.

Retirees are entitled to Cost of Living Adjustments (“COLA”)afterretirement. Asrequired by Tennessee
Code Annotated Section 8-36-701, cost of living adjustments are made every July 1 for retirees who have been
retired at least twelve (12) months and if the consumer price index (all items-United States city average as
published by the U.S. Department of Labor) increases by more than five-tenths of one percent (0.5%). If the
consumer price index increases between five-tenths of one percent (0.5%) and one percent (1.0%), the increase
granted is one percent (1.0%). Otherwise, the adjustment is the actualincrease in the consumer price index except
that the COLA is capped at a maximum of three percent (3.0%).

State employees and highereducation employees hired on or before June 30,2014, are non-contributory,
i.e., they do not contribute a portion of their salary. The five percent (5.0%) employee contribution is made on
their behalf by their employers. Teachers contribute five percent (5.0%) of salary. Separate accounting and

actuarial records are maintained for each group.
There are no cost controls or unfunded liability controls for the Closed Plan.
Defined benefit pension plan for employees hired on or after July 1, 2014, as a component of the Hybrid Plan

Employees hired on or after July 1, 2014, are members of the Hybrid Plan which consists of two
components, a defined benefit plan and a defined contribution plan. The defined contribution component is
described in the section “Other Retirement Programs.” The defined benefit component description follows.

State employees, higher education employees and Teachers are vested upon completing five (5) years of
employment. Eligibility for a retirement benefitis either age sixty-five (65) and vested orunderthe rule of ninety
(90) where a combination of age and service credit totalsninety (90). An actuarially reduced benefitis available
atage sixty (60) or the rule of eighty (80). Disability benefitsare available afterfive (5) yearsof employment if
the member is totally and permanently disabled and cannot engage in gainful employment. Death benefits are
available under certain conditions.

The defined benefit provided by TCRS is a mathematical formula that uses a member’s highest
consecutive five (5) yearsalary and a member’s years of creditable service. The formula provides a benefit equal
to one percent (1.0%) of the member’s five (5) yearsalary multiplied by the member’s years of creditable service.

Retirees are entitled to COLA afterretirement. As required by Tennessee Code Annotated, Section 8-36-
701, COLAs are made every July 1 for retirees who have been retired at least twelve (12) months and if the
consumer price index (allitems-United States city average as published by the U.S. Departmentof Labor) increases
by more than five-tenths of one percent (0.5%). Ifthe consumer price index increases between five-tenths of one
percent (0.5%) and one percent (1.0%), the increase granted is one percent (1.0%). Otherwise, the adjustment is
the actual increase in the consumer price index except that the COLA is capped at a maximum of three percent
(3.0%).
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State and higher education employees hired on or after July 1, 2014, contribute five percent (5.0%) of
salary. Teachers also contribute five percent (5.0%) of salary.

Cost Controls and Unfunded Liability Controls of the Hybrid Plan

The Hybrid Plan was designed so that the maximum employer pension cost is limited to a total of nine
percent (9.0%) of salary combined for the defined benefit plan and the defined contribution plan. Employer
contributions are targeted at fourpercent (4.0%) of salary to the defined benefit plan and at five percent (5.0%) of
salary to the defined contribution plan. Should the actuarially determined employer contribution for the defined
benefit plan be less than fourpercent (4.0%), the excess will be held in a stabilization reserve trust (“SRT””). When
anactuarial valuation is performed and the actuarialrate forthe defined benefit plan exceeds fourpercent (4.0%),
then a series of cost control steps automatically occur in the following sequence: (1) utilize funds in the
stabilization reserve, if any; (2) reduce or suspend the maximum annual COLA; (3) shift some or all of the
employer contributions from the defined contribution plan to the defined benefit plan; (4) increase employee
contribution by one percent (1.0%) of salary; (5) reduce the benefit accrualfactorbelow one percent (1.0%) and
(6) freeze the plan with no future accruals being eamed by employees. These cost controls apply to the State and
higher education employees as a group. These same cost controls apply separately to the Teacher group in the

Hybrid Plan

The Hybrid Plan also was designed to control the actuarial unfunded liability. If an actuarial valuation
determines that the unfunded liability of the Hybrid Plan for State and higher education employees exceeds twelve
and five-tenths percent (12.5%) of the five yearaverage of the State’s bond indebtedness, then the same controls
set out in the preceding paragraph will automatically occur. These provisions also apply separately to the Teacher
group in the Hybrid Plan.

Investments and Investment Policy

Tennessee Code Annotated Section 8-37-104 establishes the types of investmentsthat are permitted. An
investment policy is adopted by the Board related to the authorized investment types and portfolio structure. The
current investment policy adopted by the Board is available on the Tennessee Treasury website at

www.treasury.tn.gov/Retirement/Board-and-Governance/Reporting-and-Investment-Policies.

The actual allocation of assets and the policy target range at June 30,2022, are:

Asset Class Policy Range Actual Allocation
North American Stock 25-50% 28.6%
Domestic Bonds 0-60% 19.8%
Inflation Indexed Bonds 0-15% 0.0%
Short-term Securities 0-10% 1.3%
International Bonds 0-10% 0.0%
International Stocks 5-25% 13.6%
Private Equity & Strategic Lending 0-40% 23.7%
Real Estate 0-20% 13.0%

100%

The historical annualized rates of return (net of fees) on TCRS investments as of June 30, 202, are
(unaudited):

1 Year 3 Year 5 Year 10 Year 15 Year 20 Year 25 Year
-3.60% 8.30% 8.10% 8.40% 6.60% 7.02% 6.73%
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The historical annualrates of return (net of fees) on TCRS investments for the last ten years are:

Year Ended
June 30 Rate of Return
2022 -3.6%
2021 25.6%
2020 4.9%
2019 7.4%
2018 8.2%
2017 11.4%
2016 2.8%
2015 3.3%
2014 16.7%
2013 9.9%

Actuarial Methodology for Funding Purposes

The fundingpolicy adopted by the Board provides that the actuarial valuation will be conducted based on
the following: entry-agennormalactuarialmethod; 10-yearsmoothingofassets within a 20% corridor; and level
dollar amortization of unfunded liabilities overa closed period not to exceed 20 years. As of June 30,2021, under
the 10-year smoothing of assets methodology net investment losses of approximately $8.27 billion are being
deferred in the Closed plan and $108 million in the Hybrid plan. The June 30,2021, actuarial valuation established
the employer contribution rate for the period July 1,2022, through June 30,2023.

Economic and Demographic Assumptions

The latest actuarial experience study was conducted in 2020 and determined the economic and
demographic assumptions to be utilized in the 2021,2022,2023 and 2024 actuarial valuations.

The long term investment earnings assumption of 6.75% is compounded annually. A graded salary
increase assumption based on age is utilized with larger increases expected for younger employees and smaller
increases for older employees. The salary range begins at8.72% atage 20 while the upperportion of the range at
age 701s 3.44%. The approximate average salary assumption increase is 4.00%. The social security wage base is
assumed to increase 2.75%. The cost of living adjustment forretirees is assumed to increase 2.125% annually. A
rate of inflation 0£2.25%is assumed in establishing the economic assumptions. All of the economic assumptions
noted above reflect lower values from the 2016 experience study.

The demographic assumptions include: post-retirement mortality, pre-retirement mortality, withdrawal
rate fortermination of employment, the marital status of members, the age differences of the married members and
their spouses, disability rate, and pattern of retirement. The demographic assumptions are based on the past
experience of participants in TCRS and most current Society of Actuaries mortality tables. Additionally, the
mortality assumptions reflect improvements and projections of further improvements in life expectancy.
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Summary of Fiscal Health of TCRS

Funded Status Based on GASB Pension Standards*
atJune 30,2021
(dollars expressed in thousands)

Plan Fiduciary Net Net Pension Liability
Position as a % of (Asset) as a % of
Plan Fiduciary Total Pension Net Pension the Total Pension Covered Employee
Group Net Position Liability Liability (Asset) Liability Covered Payroll Payroll
State & Higher Education Employees
Closed Plan $19,125,529 $18,513,681 ($611,848) 103.30% $2,073,599 -29.51%
Hybrid Plan 475,026 390,279 (84,747) 121.71% 1,223,688 -6.93%
Teachers
Closed Plan 31,049,698 26,736,458 (4,313,240) 116.13% 3,282,482 -131.40%
Hybrid Plan 611,343 503,022 (108,321) 121.53% 1,442,090 -7.51%

Historical Fiduciary Net Position

The available historical plan fiduciary net position for the last ten years forthe state employee and higher
education group and the teacher group are shown in the following table:

Historical Plan Fiduciary Net Position
(dollars expressed in thousands)

State & Higher State & Higher
Education Employees Education Employees Teachers Teachers
Year ended June 30 Closed Plan Hybrid Plan ** Closed Plan Hybrid Plan **

2021* $19,125,529 $475,026 $31,049,698 $611,343
2020 15,746,113 308,241 25,456,437 401,015
2019 15,547,577 226,986 25,033,820 301,166
2018 14,973,256 157,677 24,028,523 213,543
2017 14,300,961 86,564 22,873,664 124,800
2016 13,334,528 35,994 21,191,573 57,990
2015 13,457,746 9,317 21,268,085 18,676
2014 13,430,683 21,214,637
2013 11,827,560 18,656,536
2012 11,070,535 17,426,697

* Information from most recent actuarial valuation (measurement period of 7/1/2020-6/30/2021).
** Plan began July 1, 2014.
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Historical Funding Progress Based on Plan Fiduciary Net Position
State and Higher Education Employees Closed Plan
at June 30
(dollars expressed in thousands)

Net Pension

Plan Fiduciary Liability (Asset)

Net Net Position as as a % of

Pension a % ofthe Covered

Valuation Plan Fiduciary Total Pension Liability Total Pension Covered Employee
Year Net Position Liability (Asset) Liability Payroll Payroll

2021* $19,125,529 $18,513,681 (8611,848) 103.30% $2,073,599 -29.51%
2020 15,746,113 17,384,423 1,638,310 90.58% 2,173,446 75.38%
2019 15,547,577 16,959,742 1,412,165 91.67% 2,213,382 63.80%
2018 14,973,256 16,588,668 1,615,412 90.26% 2,280,469 70.84%
2017 14,300,961 16,090,560 1,789,599 88.88% 2,333,672 76.69%
2016 13,334,528 15,159,093 1,824,565 87.96% 2,376,794 76.77%
2015 13,457,747 14,747,029 1,289,282 91.26% 2,540,327 50.75%
2014 13,430,683 14,120,632 689,949 95.11% 2,658,354 25.95%
2013 11,827,560 13,822,969 1,995,409 85.56% 2,489,709 80.15%

2011 10,764,495 13,284,473 2,519,978 81.03% 2,431,765 103.63%

*Information from most recent actuarial valuation (measurement period of 7/1/2020-6/30/2021).

Note 1: Annual reporting began in 2014. Valuation years beginning with 2014 are based on GASB 67 and 68 requirements,
years prior to 2014 are based on funding methodology.

Historical Funding Progress Based on Plan Fiduciary Net Position
State and Higher Education Employees Hybrid Plan
at June 30
(dollars expressed in thousands)

Net Pension

Plan Fiduciary Liability (Asset)
Net Net Position as as a % of
Pension a % of'the Covered

Valuation Plan Fiduciary Total Pension Liability Total Pension Covered Employee
Year Net Position Liability (Asset) Liability Payroll Payroll
2021* $ 475,026 $ 390,279 ($84,747) 121.71% $1,223,688 -6.93%
2020 308,241 273,028 (35,213) 112.90% 1,105,290 -3.19%
2019 226,986 185,508 (41,478) 122.36% 900,952 -4.60%
2018 157,677 119,104 (38,573) 132.39% 727,339 -5.30%
2017 86,564 65,826 (20,738) 131.50% 518,664 -4.00%
2016 35,994 27,569 (8,424) 130.56% 305,786 -2.75%
2015 9,317 6,536 (2,781) 142.55% 107,086 -2.60%

* Information from most recent actuarial valuation (measurement period of 7/1/2020-6/30/2021).

Note 1: Plan began July 1, 2014.
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Historical Funding Progress Based on Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Teachers Closed Plan
at June 30
(dollars expressed in thousands)
Net Pension
Plan Fiduciary Liability (Asset)
Net Position as as a % of
Net Pension a % ofthe Covered
Valuation Plan Fiduciary Total Pension Liability Total Pension Covered Employee
Year Net Position Liability (Asset) Liability Payroll Payroll
2021* $31,049,698 $26,736,458 ($4,313,240) 116.13% $3,282,482 -131.40%
2020 25,456,437 24,693,863 (762,574) 103.09% 3,326,751 -22.92%
2019 25,033,820 24,005,640 (1,028,180) 104.28% 3,352,756 -30.67%
2018 24,028,523 23,676,632 (351,891) 101.49% 3,501,704 -10.05%
2017 22,873,664 22,840,946 (32,718) 100.14% 3,536,976 -0.93%
2016 21,191,573 21,816,518 624,945 97.14% 3,609,801 17.31%
2015 21,268,085 21,309,048 40,963 99.81% 3,743,503 1.09%
2014 21,214,637 21,198,387 (16,250) 100.08% 3,925,132 -0.41%
2013 18,658,230 20,300,591 1,642,361 91.91% 3,747,221 43.83%
2011 16,875,007 19,423,152 2,548,145 86.88% 3,626,582 70.26%

* Information frommost recent actuarial valuation (measurement period of 7/1/2020-6/30/2021).

Note 1: Annual reporting began in 2014. Valuation years beginning with 2014 are based on GASB 67 and 68 requirements,
years prior to 2014 are based on funding methodology.
Note 2: In some Official Statements of the State of Tennessee, this table was titled

"Historical Funding Progress Based on Market Value of Assets".

Historical Funding Progress Based on Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Teachers Hybrid Plan

at June 30

(dollars expressed in thousands)

Plan Fiduciary

Net Pension
Liability (Asset)

Net Position as as a % of

Net Pension a % ofthe Covered

Valuation Plan Fiduciary Total Pension Liability Total Pension Covered Employee
Year Net Position Liability (Asset) Liability Payroll Payroll
2021%* $ 611,343 § 503,022 (8108,321) 121.53% $1,442,090 -7.51%
2020 401,015 344,151 (56,864) 116.52% 1,261,909 -4.51%
2019 301,166 244,718 (56,448) 123.07% 1,056,859 -5.34%
2018 213,543 168,190 (45,353) 126.97% 873,677 -5.19%
2017 124,800 98,417 (26,383) 126.81% 655,206 -4.03%
2016 57,990 47,579 (10,411) 121.88% 440,004 -2.37%
2015 18,676 14,653 (4,023) 127.46% 207,773 -1.94%

* Information from most recent actuarial valuation (measurement period of 7/1/2020-6/30/2021).

Note 1: Plan began July 1,2014.

28



Cash Flows

Selected Cash Flows
State Employees, Higher Education Employees, and Teachers
(Closed and Hybrid Plans)
(dollars expressed in thousands)

Cash Inflows Cash Out Flows
Fiscal Interest and Benefits and Administrative Net Cash

Year Contributions Dividends * Refunds Cost Flows
2022 $ 1,401,972 $(1,940,418) $ 2,468,584 $ 13,928 $(3,020,958)
2021 1,115,942 10,644,894 2,398,728 12,428 9,349,680
2020 1,120,238 1,998,828 2,315,382 12,030 791,654
2019 1,090,660 2,889,074 2,229,762 12,608 1,737,364
2018 1,078,540 3,057,527 2,136,649 13,293 1,986,125
2017 965,890 3,865,904 2,049,988 11,802 2,770,004
2016 944,260 916,301 1,978,488 13,469 (131,396)
2015 948,804 1,056,413 1,885,341 10,345 109,531
2014 959,366 779,544 1,778,888 6,784 (46,762)
2013 932,678 782,794 1,661,602 5,446 48,424
2012 925,549 767,409 1,536,603 4,749 151,606

* Interest and Dividends includes interest, dividends and all gains and losses, whether realized or unrealized.

Projections

The following table provides a projection of expected benefit payment patterns. The projection is based
upon the assumptions utilized in preparing the 2013 actuarial valuation andhasnotbeen updated since that time.

The assumptionsincludethose regarding future salary levels, retirement dates, incidence of disability and mortality
and annual cost of living adjustments.
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Benefit Payment Projections for TCRS*
Based on July 1,2013 Actuarial Valuation

(dollars expressed in thousands)

Year Current Retirees Future Retirees Total

2013 $ 1,937,005 $ 66,807 $ 2,003,812
2014 1,932,550 200,405 2,132,955
2015 1,925,197 335,784 2,260,981
2016 1,914,802 474,772 2,389,574
2017 1,901,219 616,980 2,518,199
2018 1,884,276 764,734 2,649,010
2019 1,863,825 919,830 2,783,655
2020 1,839,741 1,079,768 2,919,509
2021 1,811,897 1,243,050 3,054,947
2022 1,780,173 1,415,060 3,195,233
2023 1,744,468 1,594,440 3,338,908
2024 1,704,708 1,777,281 3,481,989
2025 1,660,851 1,966,371 3,627,222
2026 1,612,850 2,162,100 3,774,950
2027 1,560,692 2,362,871 3,923,563
2028 1,504,416 2,572,593 4,077,009
2029 1,444,126 2,789,741 4,233 867
2030 1,379,985 3,012,246 4,392,231
2031 1,312,210 3,239,968 4,552,178
2032 1,241,098 3,469,424 4,710,522

* Includes State Employees, Higher Education Employees, Teachers and Employees
of Local Governments.

Note: This schedule will not be updated going forward as it was the result of a one-time study.

Actual benefit payments for fiscal year 2018 totaled $2,520,303,000, for fiscal year 2019 totaled
$2,645,419,170, forfiscal year 2020 totaled $2,757,155,424, forfiscal year2021 totaled $2,871,322,767 and for

fiscal year 2022 totaled $2,967,491,718.
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Funding Policy Adopted by TCRS Board of Trustees

By statute, it is the State’s policy to fund the pension plan Liabilities at the rate determined by an actuarial
valuation. The employer contribution rate includes the normal cost, accrued liability cost, and cost of

administration.

The Board adopted a formal fundingpolicy in September2014 forbenefitsaccruedunderthe TCRS. The
current funding policy adopted by the Board is available on the Tennessee Treasury website at
www.treasury.tn.gov/retirement/boards-and-governance/reporting-and-investment-policies. The essential

elements of the funding policy are:
Annual actuarial valuations will be performed beginning June 30,2015.
The actuarial valuation method will be entry age normal.
Actuarial value of assets will be smoothed over a ten year period.
Actuarial value of assets cannot be 20% more or less than the market value of assets.
Unfunded liability shall be amortized using level dollar amortization method.
A new tier of unfunded liability shall be established with each actuarial valuation.
The maximum amortization shall be a closed 20-year period for each tier.
An actuarial experience study will be performed at a minimum of every four years.
An actuarial audit will be performed at least once in a ten year period.

Actuarially Determined Contributions

Actuarially Determined Contributions
(previously called Annual Required Contributions)
and Percentage Contributed
(dollars expressed in thousands)

State & Higher Education State & Higher Education
Employees Closed Plan Employees Hybrid Plan *
Employer Employer
Year Contribution as Contribution as
Ended Employer a Percentage of Employer a Percentage of
June 30 Contribution ADC Contribution ADC
2022 $677,593 158% $27,136 100%
2021 426,985 100% 22,790 100%
2020 435,177 100% 19,803 100%
2019 433,581 100% 15,572 100%
2018 435,455 100% 28,611 291%
2017 360,434 100% 20,339 326%
2016 366,114 100% 12,016 186%
2015 392,467 100% 4214 185%
2014 410,608 100%
2013 391,352 100%

* Plan began July 1, 2014.

31



Actuarially Determined Contributions
(previously called Annual Required Contributions)
and Percentage Contributed
(dollars expressed in thousands)

Teachers Closed Plan Teachers Hybrid Plan *
Employer Employer
Year Contribution as Contribution as
Ended Employer a Percentage of Employer a Percentage of
June 30 Contribution ADC Contribution ADC
2022 $ 339,111 100% § 34326 100%
2021 337,067 100% 29,153 100%
2020 353,767 100% 25,617 100%
2019 350,734 100% 20,529 100%
2018 318,337 100% 34,957 245%
2017 319,576 100% 26,262 257%
2016 327,522 100% 17,539 159%
2015 338,413 100% 8,311 162%
2014 348,539 100%
2013 344,534 100%

* Plan began July 1, 2014.

The combined annual required contributions are funded froma contributionof State funds, Federal funds,
student tuition and fees,and localeducation agencies. The combined annualrequired contribution forthe state and
higher education employees was $704,729,000 forthe fiscal yearended June 30,2022, as shown on the schedule

above.

Employer Contributions

The 2022 actuarial valuation established the employer contribution rates forthe Closed Plan forthe fiscal
yearending June 30, 2024,to be 21.95% of salary for general State employees and higher education employees,
25.62% of salary for public safety employeesand 24.62% for State judges. The combined aggregate rate forsuch
period will be 22.10% of salary. LEAs will make employer contributions attherate of 6.81% of salary for Teachers
in the Closed Plan during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2024.

The 2022 actuarial valuation determined the ADC rates forthe Hybrid Plan forthe fiscalyearending June
30,2024. The statutorily established 4.0% employer contribution rate will consist of an ADC 0f2.57% of salary
and a contribution of 1.43% to the SRT for general State employees and highereducation employees,an ADC of
3.47% of salary and a contribution of 1.43% to the SRT for public safety employees and an ADC of 8.19% of
salary for State Judges. The combined aggregate rate will be 4.00% of salary. LEAs will make an ADC 0f2.95%
of salary and a contribution of 1.05% to the SRT for Teachers in the Hybrid Plan during the fiscal year ending
June 30,2024. Additionally, as part of the Hybrid Plan, employers make contributions equalto 5% of salary to the
defined contribution plan as described below.
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Other Retirement Programs
Optional Retirement Program for Higher Education

The Optional Retirement Program (“ORP”) is a defined contribution 401(a) retirement plan that is
available to exempt employees of the University of Tennessee System (UT), the Tennessee Board of Regents
(TBR), and six locally governed institutions (LGI’s). Exempt employees are those employees who hold positions
thatare exempt from the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA). The State sponsors the ORP asan alternative to the
State’s defined benefit 401(a) Plan, known as the Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System (TCRS).
Participation in either TCRS or the ORP is a condition of full-time employment for individuals who are exempt
from the FLSA and who are employed in State supported institutions of higher education.

Employer and employee contribution amounts are set in statute and made on a pre-tax basis. Members
are immediately vested in employer and employee contributions. An ORP participant directs contributions to
specific investment products made available by the two ORP service providers. The Teachers Insurance and
Annuity Association (TTAA) and Voya are the recordkeeping service providers for the ORP and 403(b) Plans.

Qualifying faculty and staff who became ORP members at any time prior to July 1, 2014, participate in
the non-contributory ORP. The employer makes a contribution equalto 10% of the employee’s earnable
compensation, plus 1% on the part of the employee’s earmable compensation in excess of the social security wage
base.

Qualifying faculty and staff who became ORP members on orafter July 1,2014, are eligible to participate
in the contributory ORP. The employercontributes 9% of earnable compensation to the member’s ORP account.
The member contributes 5% of earnable compensation to the ORP. All contributions to the member’s ORP account
are made on a pre-tax basis and may not be altered.

There were 36,735 ORP accounts with a balance, 13,681 active members, and plan assets totaling
$4,000,000,000 at June 30, 2022. Total contributions for the year ended June 30,2022, totaled $119,000,000.

The State of Tennessee 401 (k) Plan — A Component of the Hybrid Plan

The State of Tennessee 401(k) Plan is a defined contribution plan available to state and higher education
employees, K-12 public school teachers,and employees of political subdivisions that elect to participate. A401(k)
participant directs contributions to specific investment products made available by one 401(k) Plan service
provider. The plan is completely voluntary for employees hired prior to July 1, 2014. Full-time state and higher
education employees and K-12 teachers hired on or after July 1, 2014, are members of the 401(k) Plan as a
condition of employment. For members hired on or after July 1, 2014, the employer contributions 5.00% of
eamable compensation to the 401(k) Plan and the member is automatically enrolled to make member contributions
0f2.00% of earnamble compensation. The member may modify or opt outof the member contribution to the 401(k)
Plan atany time. State and higher education employees are additionally eligible fora dollar-to-dollar matchup to
$50 each month. Cost controlfeatures of the Hybrid Retirement Plan allow for the 5.00% employer contributions
to be reduced based on established criteria. Members are immediately vested in employer and employee
contributions. Member contributions to the 401(k) Plan may be made on a pre-tax or after-tax basis.

For the year ended June 30,2022, 109,407 state and higher education employees, 61,473 public school
teachers and 13,796 political subdivision employees actively participated in the 401(k) Plan with assets totaling
$6,000,000,000. Contributions for the year ended June 30,2022 totaled $475,600,000.

Higher Education 403(b) Plans

In2018,the Tennessee General Assembly granted the State the authority to administer the existing403(b)
Plans for the University of Tennessee System (UT), the Tennessee Board of Regents (TBR), and six locally
governed institutions (LGI’s). The State became plan sponsorand administrator forthe UT and TBR 403 (b) Plans
on October9, 2019. While administratively separatefrom TBR, the six LGI’s participate in the TBR 403(b) Plans.

The 403(b) Plans are supplemental deferred compensation plans. Employee participation is voluntary and
employer contributions are not allowed. UT System employees may direct contributions to specific investment
products made available by five 403 (b) service providers. Employees of TBR orthe LGI’s may direct contributions
to specific investment products made available by two 403(b) service providers. Member contributions to the
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403(b)Plansare made on a pre-tax basis. The TIAA and Voya are the recordkeepingservice providers forthe ORP
and 403(b) Plans.

There were 5,865 total 403(b)accounts with a balance, 2,523 active participants,and 403(b) plan assets
totaling $801,000,000 at June 30, 2022. Contributions for the year ended June 30, 2022, totaled $33,100,000.

The State of Tennessee 457(b) Plan

The State of Tennessee 457(b) Plan is a supplemental deferred compensation plan available to state and
higher education employees. K-12 public schoolteachers may participate in the 457(b) Plan if their local board of
education has elected to offerthe plan. The 457(b) Plan has the same investment options as the 401(k) Plan.
Participation is voluntary and employer contributions are not allowed. Member contributions to the 457(b) Plan
are made on a pre-tax basis.

Forthe yearended June 30,2022,9,998 state and highereducationemployees, 423 public schoolteachers
and 4,802 political subdivision employees actively participated in the 457(b) Plan with assets totaling
$647,000,000. Contributions for the year ended June 30, 2022, totaled $45,600,000.

Other Employer Contributions for
State and Higher Education Employees
Participating in the ORP or 401(k)

Year

Ended ORP Employer  401(k) Employer Total Non-TCRS

30-Jun Contributions _ Contributions*  Employer Contributions
2022+ $ 101,500,000 $ 98,200,000 § 199,700,000
2021 99,500,000 95,200,000 194,700,000
2020 99,500,000 88,500,000 188,000,000
2019 98,300,000 77,000,000 175,300,000
2018 96,800,000 67,300,000 164,100,000
2017 95,100,000 56,100,000 151,200,000
2016 93,800,000 44,260,831 138,060,831
2015 100,000,000 34,046,882 134,046,882

+unaudited

* DC ER contributions include Hybrid contributions and $50 employer matct

DEBT OF CERTAIN AGENCIES AND AUTHORITIES

The following entities are the corporate governmental agencies and instrumentalities of the State
authorized to issue various debt instruments. The State is not liable for any debt instrument issued by any of the
following entities, and no such debt instrumentis a debt or obligation of the State and the full faith and credit of
the State is not pledged to the payment thereof.

Tennessee Local Development Authority

In 1978, the General Assembly created the Tennessee Local Development Authority (the “TLDA”)
pursuant to Sections4-31-101 et seq., Tennessee Code Annotated. TLDA is a corporate governmental agency and
instrumentality of the State. TLDA is authorized to (i) loan funds to local governments for sewage treatment,
waterworks and capital projects (the “State Loan Programs”), for firefighting equipment, and forairport facilities;
(ii) loan funds to certain small business concerns for pollution control equipment; (iii) make funds available for
loans for agricultural enterprises; (iv) make loans to not-for-profit organizations providing certain mentalhealth,
mental retardation, and alcohol and drug services; and (v) make loans to local government units to finance
construction of capital outlay projects for K-12 educational facilities. In order to fund these loans, TLDA is
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empowered to issue its bondsand notes. The aggregate amounts outstanding for certain programsare limited as
follows: $10,000,000 for firefighting equipment; $200,000,000 for airport facilities; $50,000,000 for pollution
controlequipment; $50,000,000 for mental health, mentalretardation, and alcoholand drugservices; $30,000,000
for agricultural enterprises; $15,000,000 for petroleum underground storage tank cleanup costs; and $75,000,000
for capital outlay projects for K-12 educational facilities.

Bonds and notes issued by TLDA are secured by: (i) in the case of loans to local governments, monies
received by TLDA under loan program agreements with the local governments and by the local governments'
allocation of state-shared taxes; (i) in the case of loans to small business concerns, monies received under
agreements with those concerns; (iii) in the case of agricultural loans, monies received under agreements with
lenders and a pledge of any money, income orrevenue from any source; (iv) in the case of loansto not-for-profi
organizations, monies received under State grant agreements and a pledge of the department of mentalhealth and
mentalretardation'sannualbudget; and (v) in the case of loansto local government units to finance construction
of capital outlay projects for K-12 educational facilities, monies received by TLDA under loan agreements with
local education agencies payable from taxes authorized to be levied for the purpose and certain proceeds of the

Tennessee lottery for education.

TLDA is not currently fundingany of these programs, and the only program previously funded with TLDA
bonds that are currently outstanding is the State Loan Program. As of March 31, 2023, TLDA had $800,000
(unaudited) of bonds outstanding for the State Loan Program.

Tennessee State School Bond Authority

In 1965, the General Assembly created the Tennessee State School Bond Authority (the “Authority™),
pursuant to Sections 49-3-1201 et seq., Tennessee Code Annotated. The Authority is a corporate governmental
agency and instrumentality of the State. The Authority is authorized to issue its bonds and notes to finance capital
outlay programs for higher educational facilities which may be required or convenient for the purposes of The
University of Tennessee, including its branches and divisions, and for the purposes of the institutions of higher
education underthe supervision and administration of the Tennessee Board of Regents of the State University and
Community College System of the State of Tennessee. In 1980, the General Assembly further authorized the
Authority to issue its bonds or notes to provide funds for the making of student loans by the Tennessee Student
Assistance Corporation; however, no such bonds or notes have been issued for this purpose. The Authority also
was authorized to issue Qualified Zone Academy Bonds (“QZAB”) and Qualified School Construction Bonds
(“QSCB”) to finance improvement loans to cities and counties for qualifying K-12 schools for capital projects.
The final QZABs matured on December 28, 2020.

Generally, all outstanding higher educational facility debt obligations of the Authority are secured by
financingcharges payable under contracts and agreements entered into by the Authority and the Board of Trustees
of The University of Tennessee and the Tennessee Board of Regents of the State University and Community
College System of the State of Tennessee, as successorto the State Board of Education; legislative appropriations;
and certain funds and accounts established by the Higher Educational Facilities General Bond Resolutions of the
Authority. The QSCBs are part of a Federal government program in which a Federalincome tax credit is given to
investors in lieu of interest on the bonds. For certain of the QSCBs, a Federal income tax credit is given to
bondholders in lieu of the payment of interest on bonds, and in certain other QSCBs an election is made by the
Authority to receive direct interest subsidy payments from the United States Treasury, which if notneeded to cure
defaultsunderloan agreements with the borrowers, are transferred to them. The QSCBs are secured by a general

obligation pledge of the borrowers and a pledge of unobligated State-shared taxes of the borrowers.

As of March 31, 2023, the Authority had outstanding $1,799,575,000 (unaudited) aggregate principal
amount of higher educational facility bonds and $28,874,107 (unaudited) of higher educational facility revolving
credit facility. As of March31,2023,the totalparamount of QSCBs outstandingwas $389,440,000 (unaudited).
A sinking fund has been established for the retirement of the QSCBs, and $308,863,216.34 (unaudited) was the
book value of assets on deposit as of March 31,2023.

Tennessee Housing Development Agency

In 1973, the General Assembly created the Tennessee Housing Development Agency (the “Agency”),
pursuant to Sections 13-23-101 et seq., Tennessee Code Annotated (the “Tennessee Housing Development Agency
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Act”). The Agency is authorized,amongotherthings, to issue its bonds and notes to make funds available for the
financing of residential housing for persons and families of lower and moderate income.

The Agency has established a mortgage finance program and is making funds available for loans for
residential housing for persons or families of lower and moderate income. Such loans are secured by eligible
mortgages on the properties. The Agency hasmade, but does notcurrently make, loans for multi-family residential
housing for rental occupancy.

In order to accomplish its objectives, the General Assembly hasauthorized the Agency to issue its bonds
and notes, provided that the aggregate principal amount outstanding on such bonds and notes may not exceed
$4,000,000,000 excludingbonds and notes which have been refunded. The Agency's net indebtedness, excluding
the bonds and notes which have beenrefunded,at March 31,2023, was $2,700,5996,312 (unaudited). The Agency
has a revolving line of credit (“LOC”) with RBC in the amount of $75,000,000. The LOC was established to
purchase mortgages for the Agency’s conventional mortgage-backed securities program with Freddie Mac (the
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation). The amount outstanding on the LOC at March 31, 2023, was
$2,946,312 (unaudited) and is included in the Agency’s indebtedness amount above.

Obligations of the Agency are secured by, amongotherthings, mortgage loans made by the Agency from
the proceeds of such obligations. Obligations ofthe Agency issued prior to April 18,2013, incorporate provisions
of the Tennessee Housing Development Agency Act that provide a mechanism for certifying to the Governorand
to the Commissioner of Finance and Administration amounts, if any, needed fordebt service or operating expenses
of the Agency and authorizes the General Assembly to appropriate,to expend and to provide for the payment of
such amounts, but imposes no legal obligation upon the General Assembly to do so. These provisions of the
Tennessee Housing Development Agency Act do not constitute a legally enforceable obligation of the State to pay
any such amounts. Under the Constitution of the State, no monies may be withdrawn from the Treasury butn

consequence of appropriations made by law.

State Veterans' Homes Board

In 1988, the General Assembly created the Tennessee State Veterans’ Homes Board (the “Veterans’
Homes Board”) pursuant to Sections 58-7-101 to 58-7-112, inclusive, Tennessee Code Annotated. A political
subdivision and instrumentality of the State, the Veterans’ Home Board is authorized to issue its debt instruments
to finance public homes for the support and care of honorably discharged veterans of the United States armed
forces. Such homeswill be established only if Federal Veterans' Administration fundsareavailable to provide a
share of the construction and operation costs. Prior to the issuance of any debt instruments, the Veterans’ Homes
Board must receive the approval of the State Funding Board. The Veterans’ Homes Board has no outstanding
bonds. Loans to the Veterans’ Homes Board were funded through the issuance of general obligation bonds
authorized by the General Assembly.

LITIGATION

Due to its size and broad range of activities, the State and its officers and employees are involved in a
number of legal actions. In view of the financial condition of the State, it is the opinion of the Commissioner of
Finance and Administration that the State’s financial condition will not be materially affected by such litigation,
based on information known at the date of this Official Statement.

Tobacco Master Settlement Agreement. Though there is no current tobacco payment litigation involving
Tennessee, there is the potential forthe State tobe involved in future arbitrations arising out of disputes concerning
an adjustment to annual tobacco payments. Tennessee and 51 otherstates and territories receive annual payments
from participating tobacco manufacturers under the 1998 Tobacco Master Settlement Agreement (“MSA”). The
amount of those payments varies each yeardepending on domestic sales volume and several otheradjustments. A
Non-Participating Manufacturer Adjustment (“NPM Adjustment”) can reduce a state’s payment if certain
conditions occur and if the state did not diligently enforce its model escrow statute, which requires tobacco
manufacturers that did not settle to pay into an escrow account each quarter. If an arbitration results in a finding
that a state did not diligently enforce the escrow requirements during a calendar year, the state shares the NPM
Adjustment with any other states found non-diligent for that year. Thus, the amount of the payment reduction i
inversely proportionalto the numberof states thatlose the diligent enforcement determination (i.e., the greater the
number of losing states, the lower the payment reduction). If Tennessee were to receive an adverse ruling in a
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diligent enforcement arbitration, the State could face payment reductions of over $100,000,000. Tennessee’s
annual MSA payment generally ranges from One Hundred and Forty Million Dollars ($140,000,000) to One
Hundred and Sixty Million Dollars ($160,000,000). Tennessee and thirty-four (34) other states have resolved the
NPM Adjustment disputes for the years 2003-2022 in a settlement with the participating tobacco manufacturers.
However,as of January 1,2023, Tennessee will be once again subject to the potential foran NPM Adjustment to
be applied if its diligent enforcement efforts, or lack thereof, are challenged in an arbitration and the State is
unsuccessful in proving its diligence.

Comcast Holdings Corp.v. Richard Roberts, Commissioner of Revenue,(Chancery Court forthe State of
Tennessee Twentieth Judicial District, Davidson County, No. 15-1098-1); Comcast Holdings Corp. v. David
Gerregano, Commissioner of Revenue, (Chancery Court for the State of Tennessee Twentieth Judicial District,
Davidson County, No. 19-209-111); and Comcast Holdings Corp.v. David Gerregano, Commissioner of Revenue,
(Chancery Court forthe State of Tennessee Twentieth Judicial District, Davidson County, No.20-1277-11I). These
three franchise and excise tax cases concern whether Comcast’sreceipts from its Tennessee customers should be
included as Tennessee sales in the receipts factorof'its franchise-and-excise-tax apportionment formula. In 2019,
the State prevailed in a similar suit brought by Comcast forearlier tax years. There, the Court of Appeals affimed
the holding of the trial court that Comcast had inappropriately categorized its services and had failed to establish
thatthe earningsin question should be apportioned outside Tennessee. Comcast did not appealthat decision, so it
is final. In the three cases listed above, Comcast makes similar arguments for later years. These cases seek tax
refunds in the total amount of approximately $50,000,000. Despite the previous ruling in the State’s favorin a
similar case, Comcast is continuing to press this issue. It has produced a new “cost study” on which it bases its
claims, and the relevant numbers will be different forthe later periods. The 2015 case s currently set for trail the
week of July 17,2023.

Norfolk Southern Railway Co. v Commissioner of Revenue (in the Chancery Court for the State of
Tennessee Twentieth Judicial District, Davidson County); BNSF Railway Co. v. Department of Revenue; CSX
Transportation, Inc. v. Department of Revenue, Illinois Central Railroad Co.v. Department of Revenue,; Norfolk
Southern Railway Co.v. Department of Revenue,; and Union Pacific Railroad Co.v. Department of Revenue (all
United States District Court forthe Middle District of Tennessee). The cases listed above are the remaining matters
concerning Tennessee’s taxes on railroads’ purchases of diesel fuel which the majorrailroads allege discrimination
againstthem in violation of the federalRailroad Revitalization and Regulatory Reform Act (the “4-R Act”). The
State prevailed in a previous case (Illinois Central Railroad Co. v. Tennessee Department of Revenue) that
challenged Tennessee’s sales tax on diesel fuel purchases as it stood before July 2014, and all other cases
challenging the previous law have been settled. The caseslisted above challenge the railroads’ liability underthe
current (July 2014 and afterwards) law, the Tennessee Transportation Fuel Equity Act, which placed railroads
underthe sametax obligations as truckingcompanies. The railroads contend that this law still singles them out in
violation of the 4-R Act and discriminates against them in comparison to water carriers (barges and boats). The
federalcases are currently administratively closed. To date, a total of approximately Seventy Million Dollars
($70,000,000)is at issue underthe law in effectsince July 1,2014,which the railroadshave paid into escrow or
directly to the Department underthe 2014 law and will be subject to refund, plus interest, if they prevail. Because
of the on-going nature of this issue under the current law, any resolution is difficult to achieve.

Dement Construction Co., LLC v. State of Tennessee (in the Chancery Court for the State of Tennessee
Eleventh Judicial District, Hamiliton County, No. 23-0166). This breach of contract claim was initiated in the
Division of Claims and Risk Management and then transferred to the Claims Commission. Defendant petitioned
the Claims Commission foran orderremovingthe claim to Hamilton County Chancery Court and the petition was
granted. The case involves highway construction project through downtown Chattanooga; the claim is for
approximately $4 million. There are four claims: reimbursement of liquidated damages, defective traffic control
plans, and two different claims for insufficient compensation for differing site conditions at two retaining walls.
The case is in the initial stages, and the Answer is due on April 19, 2023.

AM.C., etal.v. Smith (U.S. District Court, Middle District of Tennessee). Plaintiffsallege TennCare (the
State of Tennessee’s managed Medicaid agency) uses policies and practices in its eligibility redetermination
process that violate the Due Process Clause of the United States Constitution, provisions of the Medicaid Act, and
Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act. Plaintiffs seek declaratory and injunctive relief, ongoing court
jurisdiction, attorneys’ fees, and other relief. The total amount requested exceeds $1 billion. On May 22, 2020,
Defendants filed a motion to dismiss. On May 29, 2020, Defendants opposed Plaintiffs’ motion for class
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certification and Plaintiffs’ motion for a preliminary injunction. Discovery began. On January 19, 2021,
Defendants filed a supplement to their motion to dismiss, arguing thatthe Center for Medicaid Services formaly
certified the TennCare eligibility redetermination process. On February 22, 2021, the Court denied all three
motions without prejudice and ordered that the parties may file renewed motions that specifically address the
Center for Medicaid Service’s certification of the eligibility redetermination process 30 days afterthe Magistrate
Judge files notice of the completion of all outstanding discovery disputes. Discovery is ongoing.

Brylee McCutchen, et al. v. Xavier Becerra, et al. (U.S. District Court, District of Columbia). Since 1994,
TennCare, Tennessee’s managed Medicaid program, has administered the State’s Medicaid program through a
federally approved project that ultimately became known as “TennCare I1.” In November 2019, TennCare
submitted a proposalto continue TennCare Il and make severalchangesto provide the State more tools to adapt
TennCare to better serve its citizens through a more flexible financingmodel. In January 2021, the U.S. Department
of Health and Human Services approvedthe proposal for what isnow TennCare I11. TennCareI1lis, like TennCare
I1, funded through large federal funding grants. On April 22,2021, the Tennessee Justice Center filed a lawsuit
againstthe U.S. Department of Health and Human Services seekingto undo its approval of TennCare I1I and enjoin
its implementation of TennCare I11 and, potentially, the continuation of TennCare II which was supposed to end
on June 30,2021. On May 20, 2021, the Tennessee Attorney General filed an unopposed motion to intervene to
defend the State’s interest in TennCare I1I. The Court granted the State’s motion. TennCare 11 did end and the
State is now under TennCare I11. The Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS) the federalagency within
the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services that administers Medicare and Medicaid, reopened the
TennCare 11 comment period to review public comments and questions conceming TennCare I11 and such public
comment period has now ended and additional changes to TennCare I1I are awaiting approval. As a result, the
McCutchen court held this case in abeyance. The impact an adverse decision would have on the State’s finances
is unknown at this time.

TAX MATTERS

Opinions of Bond Counsel

In the opinion of Hawkins Delafield & Wood LLP, Bond Counselto the State, underexisting statutes and
court decisions and assuming continuing compliance with certain tax covenants described herein, (i) interest on
the Bondsis excluded from gross income for federalincome tax purposes pursuant to Section 103 of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, asamended (the “Code”),and (ii) interest on the Bondsis nottreated asa preference item
in calculating the alternative minimum tax under the Code; however for tax years beginning after December 31,
2022, interest on the Bonds is included in the “adjusted financial statement income” of certain corporations that
are subject to the alternative minimum tax under Section 55 of the Code. In rendering its opinion, Bond Counsel
hasrelied on certain representations, certifications of fact,and statements of reasonable expectations made by the
State and others in connection with the Bonds,and Bond Counselhas assumed compliance by the State and others
with certain ongoing covenants to comply with applicable requirements of the Code to assure the exclusion of
interest on the Bonds from gross income under Section 103 of the Code.

In addition, in the opinion of Bond Counselto the State, underexisting laws of the State, the principal of
and interest on the Bonds are exempt from taxation by the State or by any county, municipality or taxing district
of'the State,except forinheritance, transferand estate taxes, and except to the extent included within the measure
of franchise and excise taxes.

Bond Counsel expresses no opinion regarding any other federal or state tax consequences arising with
respect to the Bonds, or the ownership or disposition thereof, except as stated above. Bond Counsel renders its
opinion under existing statutes and court decisions as of the issue date, and assumes no obligation to update, revise
or supplement its opinion to reflect any action herea ftertaken ornot taken, orany facts or circumstances thatmay
hereaftercome to itsattention,any changes in law or in interpretations thereof that may herea fter occur, or forany
other reason. Bond Counsel expresses no opinion as to the consequences to any of the events described in the
preceding sentence or the likelihood of their occurrence. In addition, Bond Counselexpresses no opinion on the
effect of any action takenornot taken in reliance upon an opinion of othercounselregarding federal, state orlocal
tax matters, including without limitation, exclusion from gross income for federalincome tax purposes of interest
on the Bonds.
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For the proposed form of opinion of Bond Counselrelatingto federaland Statetax matters, see Appendix
C.

Certain Ongoing Federal Tax Requirements and Covenants

The Code establishes certain ongoing requirements that must be met subsequent to the issuance and
delivery of the Bonds in order that interest on the Bonds be and remain excluded from gross income under Section
103 ofthe Code. These requirements include, butare not limited to, requirementsrelating to use and expenditure
of gross proceeds of the Bonds, yield and other restrictions on investments of gross proceeds, and the arbitrage
rebate requirement that certain excess earnings on gross proceeds be rebated to the federal government.
Noncompliance with such requirements may cause interest on the Bondsto become included in gross income for
federalincome tax purposes retroactive to their issue date, irrespective of the date on which such noncompliance
occurs or is discovered. The State hascovenanted to comply with certain applicable requirements of the Code to
assure the exclusion of interest on the Bonds from gross income under Section 103 of the Code.

Certain Collateral Federal Tax Consequences

The following is a brief discussion of certain collateral federal income tax matters with respect to the
Bonds. Itdoes notpurportto addressall aspects of federaltaxation that may berelevantto a particularowner of
a Bond. Prospective investors, particularly those who may be subject to specialrules, are advised to consult their
own tax advisors regarding the federal tax consequences of owning and disposing of the Bonds.

Prospective owners of the Bonds should be aware that the ownership of such obligations may result in
collateral federal income tax consequences to various categories of persons, such as corporations (including S
corporations and foreign corporations), financial institutions, property and casualty and life insurance companies,
individual recipients of Social Security and railroad retirement benefits, individuals otherwise eligible for the
earned income tax credit, and taxpayers deemed to have incurred or continued indebtedness to purchase or carry
obligations the interest on which is excluded from gross income for federalincome tax purposes. Interest on the
Bonds may be taken into account in determining the tax liability of foreign corporations subject to the branch
profits tax imposed by Section 884 of the Code.

Bond Premium

In general, if an owner acquiresa Tax-Exempt Bond fora purchase price (excluding accrued interest) or
otherwise ata tax basis thatreflects a premium overthe sum of allamounts payable on the Tax-Exempt Bond after
the acquisition date (excluding certain “qualified stated interest” that is unconditionally payable at least annually
at prescribed rates), that premium constitutes “bond premium” onthat Tax-Exempt Bond (a “Premium Tax-Exempt
Bond”). In general, under Section 171 of the Code, an owner of a Premium Tax-Exempt Bond must amortize the
bond premium over the remaining term of the Premium Tax-Exempt Bond, based on the owner’s yield over the
remainingterm of the Premium Tax-Exempt Bond determined based on constant yield principles (in certain cases
involving a Premium Tax-Exempt Bond callable prior to its stated maturity date, the amortization period and yield
may be required to be determined on the basis of an earlier call date thatresults in the lowest yield on such bond).
An owner of a Premium Tax-Exempt Bond must amortize the bond premium by offsetting the qualified stated
interest allocable to each interest accrual period underthe owner’s regular method of accountingagainst the bond
premium allocable to that period. In the caseof a tax-exempt Premium Tax-Exempt Bond, if the bond premium
allocable to an accrualperiod exceeds the qualified stated interest allocable to thataccrualperiod, the excess is a
nondeductible loss. Under certain circumstances, the owner of a Premium Bond may realize a taxable gain upon
disposition of the Premium Tax-Exempt Bond even though itis sold or redeemed foran amount less than orequal
to the owner’s original acquisition cost. Owners of any Premium Tax-Exempt Bonds should consult theirown tax
advisorsregarding the treatment of bond premium for federal income tax purposes, including various special rules
relating thereto, and state and localtax consequences, in connection with the acquisition, ownership, amortization
of bond premium on, sale, exchange, or other disposition of Premium Tax-Exempt Bonds.

Information Reporting and Backup Withholding

Informationreportingrequirements apply to interest paid on tax-exempt obligations, including the Bonds.
In general, such requirements are satisfied if the interest recipient completes, and provides the payor with, a Form
W-9, “Request for TaxpayerIdentification Numberand Certification,” or if the recipient is one of a limited class
of exempt recipients. A recipient not otherwise exempt from information reporting who fails to satisfy the
information reportingrequirements will be subject to “backup withholding,” which means that the payoris required
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to deduct and withhold a tax from the interest payment, calculated in the manner set forth in the Code. For the
foregoing purpose,a “payor” generally refers to the person or entity from whom a recipient receives its payments
of interest or who collects such payments on behalf of the recipient.

If an ownerpurchasinga Bond through a brokerage account has executed a Form W-9 in connection with
the establishment of such account, as generally can be expected, no backup withholding should occur. In any
event, backup withholding does not affect the excludability of the interest on the Bonds from gross income for
federalincome tax purposes. Any amounts withheld pursuantto backup withholdingwould be allowed as a refund
ora credit against the owner’s federal income tax oncethe required informationis furnished to the Internal Revenue
Service.

Miscellaneous

Tax legislation, administrative actions taken by tax authorities, or court decisions, whether at the federal
or state level, may adversely affect the tax-exempt status of interest on the Bonds under federal or state law or
otherwise prevent beneficial owners of the Bonds from realizing the full current benefit of the tax status of such
interest. Inaddition, such legislation or actions (whether currently proposed, proposed in the future, or enacted)
and such decisions could affect the market price or marketability of the Bonds.

Prospective purchasers of the Bonds should consult theirown taxadvisors regarding the foregoing matters.

SALE BY COMPETITIVE BIDDING

The Bonds will be awarded pursuant to electronic competitive bidding to be held via IPREO LLC’s
BiDCOMP™/PARITY® Competivie Bidding System on behalf of the Stateon  ,2023, unless postponed or
cancelled, as set forth in the Notice of Sale contained in Appendix F.

The Bondsbeing offered forsale as provided in the Notice of Sale. The Notice of Sale providesthat the
initial purchaser of the Bonds (“Initial Purchaser”) shall purchase all the Bonds, if any Bonds of are purchased.
The obligation to such purchase is subject to certain conditions set forth in the Notice of Sale, the approval of
certain legal matters by counsel and certain other conditions.

The respective Initial Purchasers have supplied the information as to the initial public offering prices of
the Bonds set forth on the inside cover of this Official Statement with respect to the Bonds purchased by such
Initial Purchaser. The Bonds may be offered and sold to certain dealers, banksand others at prices different than
the public offering prices to be set forth on the inside coverpage; and such public offering prices may be changed
from time to time.

Each Initial Purchaseris required to furnish certifications supportingthe determination of the issue price
of the Bonds purcahsed by such Initial Purchaser as provided in the Notice of Sale.

FINANCIAL ADVISOR

PFM Financial Advisors LLC (“PFM”) is employed by the State to perform professional services in the
capacity of financialadvisor. Inits role as financialadvisorto the State Funding Board, PFM has provided advice
on the plan of financing and structure of the Bonds, reviewed certain legal and disclosure documents, including
this Official Statement, for financial matters. PFM has not independently verified the factual information contained
in this Official Statement, but relied on the information supplied by the State and other sources and the State’s
certification as to the Official Statement.

RATINGS

Moody's Investors Service, Inc. (“Moody’s”), S&P Global Ratings (“Standard and Poor’s”) and Fitch
Ratings (“Fitch”) have given the Bonds ratings of | ,and , respectively. Such ratings reflect only
the respective views of such organizationsandan explanation of the significance of a ratingmay be obtained only
from the rating agency furnishing the same. A securities rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold
securities and may be subject to revision or withdrawal atany time and there is no assurance thatany rating will
bemaintainedfora given period of time orthat it will not be revised downward or withdrawn entirely by the rating
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agency if in its judgment, circumstances so warrant. Any such downward revision or withdrawalof ratings may
have an adverse effect on the market price of the Bonds.

LEGAL OPINIONS

The validity of the Bonds will be approved by the legal opinion of Hawkins Delafield & Wood LLP, New
York, New York, Bond Counsel to the State. For the proposed form of Bond Counsel opinion relating to the
Bonds, see Appendix C. Certain legal matters will be passed upon by the Attorney General and Reporter of the
State of Tennessee, as counselto the State Funding Board. No representation is made to the holders of the Bonds
that any such counsel have verified the accuracy, completeness or fairness of the statements in this Official
Statement, and such counselassume no responsibility to the holders of the Bonds except forthe matters that will
be set forth in their respective opinions.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE

The State hasauthorized the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking (the “Undertaking”) with respect to the
Bonds to assist in complying with U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 15¢2-12(b)(5) (the “Rule”).
The Undertaking will be for the benefit of the holders of the Bonds, and beneficial owners will be third-paty
beneficiaries thereof. The form of the Undertaking is included herein as Appendix E.

In connection with the issuance of the Bonds, the State reviewed the financial information, operating data
and event notices filed by the State within the preceding five years with the Municipal Securities Rulemaking
Board’s Electronic Municipal Market Access (“EMMA”) system pursuant to the State’s Rule 15¢2-12 continuing
disclosure undertakings and identified, among other things, the following. Information regarding TennCare
budgeted expenditures (the “TennCare Information”) presented in tabular format in relevant Official Statements
was not presented in such format in the State’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports, but current-year
budgeted and actual TennCare expenditures were presented in each ofthe State’s Comprehensive Annual Financial
Reports. Certain TCRS information (the “TCRS Information”) presented in tabular format in relevant Official
Statements (Unfunded Liability if Actuarial Value of Assets were Valued at Market; Historical Funding Progress
Based on Fiduciary Net Position/Market Value of Assets; Historical Fiduciary Net Position/Market Value of
Assets; Comparison of Market Value of Assets to Actuarial Value of Assets; Cash Flows, and Other Employment
Contributions for State and Higher Education Employees Participating in the ORP or 401K) was reported in
different form in the State’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report and the comprehensive annual financial
report of the TCRS filed by the State each year; in addition, both the TennCare Information and the TCRS
Information were also included in the same tabular format in Official Statements posted on EMMA in the last five
years. The foregoing results of the State’s continuing disclosure review are provided without regard to the
materiality of the identified information.

The State periodically provides investor updates of certain information to persons who have notified the
Division of State Government Finance Finance of a desire to receive such information. The State is not required
under any undertaking to provide such information and provides no assurance that it will continue to do so.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

The statements contained in this Official Statement, and in any other information provided that are not
purely historic, are forward-lookingstatements, including statements regardingthe expectations, hopes, intentions,

or strategies regarding the future.

Readers should not place undue reliance on forward-lookingstatements. All forward-looking statements
included in this Official Statement are based on information available on the date hereof, and the State assumes no
obligation to update any such forward-looking statements.

The forward-looking statements herein are necessarily based on various assumptions and estimates and
are inherently subject to various risks and uncertainties, including risks and uncertaintiesrelating to the possible
invalidity of the underlying assumptions and estimates and possible changes ordevelopments in social, economic,
business, industry, market, legal and regulatory circumstances and conditions and actions taken or omitted to be
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taken by third parties, including customers, suppliers, business partners and competitors,and legislative, judicial
and other governmental authorities and officials. Assumptions related to the foregoing involve judgments with
respect to,among otherthings, future economic, competitive, and market conditions and future business and policy
decisions, all of which are difficult or impossible to predict accurately and, therefore, there can be no assurance
that the forward-looking statements included in this Official Statement would prove to be accurate.

MISCELLANEOUS

Any statements in this Official Statement involving matters of opinion or estimates, whether or not
expressly so stated, are intended assuch and notas representatives of fact. No representation is made that such

statements will be realized.

All financial and other information presented in this Official Statement has been provided by the State
from its records, except for information expressly attributed to other sources. The presentation of information,
including tables of receipts from taxes and otherrevenues, is intended to show recent historic information,and it

is not intended to indicate future or continuing trends in the financial position or other affairs of the State. No
representation is made that past experience, as it might be shown by such financial and other information, will

necessarily continue or be repeated in the future.

References to and summaries of provisions of the State Constitution and laws of the State orof any other
documents referred to in this Official Statement are qualified in their entirety by reference to the complete
provisions thereof.

This Official Statement is not to be construed as a contract or agreement between the State and the
purchasers or holders of any of the Bonds.

STATE OF TENNESSEE
By:
Comptroller of the Treasury;

Secretary of the Funding Board of
the State of Tennessee
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APPENDIX A

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Annual Comprehensive Financial Report of the State, including the audited Basic Financial
Statements, forthe fiscalyearended June30,2022, has been filed with the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board
through its Electronic Municipal Market Access (“EMMA”) system (see “Continuing Disclosure” and Appendix
E) and is obtainable from them in accordance with their procedures. A printed version is also available upon
request to the State Funding Board, Cordell Hull State Office Building, 4™ Floor, 425 Rep John Lewis Way North,
Nashville, Tennessee 37243-1402, telephone (615) 401-7872, fax (615) 741-5986. The 2022 Annual
Comprehensive Financial Report and certain prior year Comprehensive Annual Financial Reportss are posted on
the State’s website at http://www.tn.gov/finance/rd-doa/fa-accfin-ar.

The following reportts, each of which are included in the 2022 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report
and have been posted on the State’s website, are incorporated herein by reference:

Auditor’s Report
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Basic Financial Statements:
Government-wide Financial Statements:
Statement of Net Position
Statement of Activities
Fund Financial Statements:
Balance Sheet-Governmental Funds

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances-Governmental
Funds

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities

Statement of Net Position-Proprietary Funds
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position-Proprietary Funds
Statement of Cash Flows-Propriety Funds
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position-Fiduciary Funds
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position-Fiduciary Funds
Notes to the Financial Statements
Required Supplementary Information:
Infrastructure Assets Reported Using the Modified Approach
OPEB Schedule of Changes in the Net/Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios
Schedule of Contributions
OPEB Schedule of the State’s Proportionate Share of the Collective Total OPEB Liability

Schedule of Changes in the State of Tennessee’s Net Pension Liability (Asset) and Related Ratios
Based on Participation in the Closed State and Higher Education Employee Pension Plan of
TCRS

Schedule of Changes in the State of Tennessee’s Net Pension Liability (Asset) and Related Ratios
Based on Participation in the State and Higher Education Employee Retirement Plan of TCRS

Schedule of the State of Tennessee’s Contributions Closed State and Higher Education Employee
Pension Plan

Schedules of the State of Tennessee’s Contributions State and Higher Education Employee
Retirement Plan

Schedule of Changes in the Plan Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios


http://www.tn.gov/finance/rd-doa/fa-accfin-ar

Schedule of Employer Contributions to the State of Tennessee Postemployment Benefit Trust
Schedule of Investment Returns State of Tennessee Postemployment Benefit Trust

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances-Budget and Actual Major
Governmental Funds

Note to RSI
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APPENDIX B
STATISTICAL SECTION

The Annual Comprehensive Financial Report of the State, including selected statistical data (unaudited),
for the fiscal year ended June 30,2022, has been filed with the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board through
its Electronic Municipal Market Access (“EMMA”) system (see “Continuing Disclosure” and Appendix E)and is
obtainable from them in accordance with their procedures. A printed version is also availableupon request to the
State Funding Board, Cordell Hull State Office Building, 4™ Floor, 425 Rep John Lewis Way North, Nashville,
Tennessee 37243-1402, telephone (615) 401-7872, fax (615) 741-5986. The 2022 Annual Comprehensive
Financial Report and certain prioryear Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports are posted on the State’s website
at http://www.tn.gov/finance/rd-doa/fa-accfin-ar.

The following statistical data, allof which is included in the 2022 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report
and has been posted on the State’s website, is incorporated herein by reference:

Financial Trends

Revenue Capacity

Debt Capacity

Demographic and Economic Information

Demographic and Employment Information

Operating Information

Schedule of Fees/Charges, Legislative Appropriations and Debt Service

Student Fees and Charges for Institutions with Tennessee State School Bond Authority Debt
Principal Amount of Debt Outstanding by Institution
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APPENDIX C

FORM OF PROPOSED OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL

The Honorable Governor and Members of
the Funding Board of the State of Tennessee
Nashville, Tennessee 37243

STATE OF TENNESSEE
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS
2021 SERIES A, $510,000,000*

Dear Sirs:

At your request we have examined into the validity of $510,000,000* General Obligation Bonds, 2021
Series A (the “Bonds) of the State of Tennessee (the “State”). The Bonds are dated as of the date hereof, and
mature, are subject to redemption priorto maturity, are payable and bearinterest, all as provided in the resolution
of the Funding Board hereinafter mentioned.

The Bondsrecite thatthey areissued under and pursuant to and in full compliance with the Constitution
and laws of the State, including specifically Title 9, Chapter9, Tennessee Code Annotated, various Public Acts of
the General Assembly of the State of Tennessee, and a resolution adopted by the Funding Board of the State of
Tennessee on April 26, 2023, for public purposes of various State departments and institutionsand to provide for
the payment at maturity of certain of the State’s general obligation bond anticipation notes constituting commercial
paper heretofore issued for public purposes of various State departments and institutions.

We have examined the Constitution and statutes of the State; certified copies of proceedings of the
Funding Board of the State of Tennessee and Public Acts of the General Assembly of the State of Tennessee
authorizingthe issuance of the Bonds, and an executed Bond of each series, and have made such other examination
of law and fact, as we have considered appropriate for purposes of this opinion letter.

Based on the foregoing, we are of the opinion that:

1) The Bondshavebeen authorized and issued in accordance with the Constitutionand lawsof the State
and constitute valid direct general obligations of the State for the payment of the principal of and premium, if any, and
interest on which there is also pledged the full faith and credit of the State. The State has not generally waived immunity
from suit orextended its consentto be sued, and monetary actions againstthe State for breach of contractual obligations
may be heard and determined under current law exclusively in the Tennessee Claims Commission, an administrative
tribunal, where the State may be liable only for actual damages and certain costs.

) Under existing statutes and court decisions, (i) interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income
for federal incometax purposes pursuant to Section 103 ofthe Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”),
and (ii) interest on the Bonds is not treated as a preference item in calculating the alternative minimum tax under the
Code; however, for tax years beginning a fter December 31, 2022, interest on the Bonds is included in the ‘adjusted
financial statement income” of certain corporations thatare subject to the alternative minimum tax under Section 55 of
the code. Inrendering the opinions in this paragraph (2), we haverelied on certain representations, certifications of fact,
and statements of reasonable expectations made by the State and others in connection with the Bonds, and have assumed
compliance by the State with certain ongoing covenants to comply with applicable requirements of the Code to assure
the exclusion of the interest on the Bonds from gross income under Section 103 of the Code. Under the Code,
noncompliance with such requirements may cause the interest onthe Bonds to be included in gross income for federal
income tax purposes retroactive to the date of issuance thereof, irrespective of the date on which such noncompliance
occurs or is discovered.
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4) Under the existing laws of the State, the principal of and interest on the Bonds are exempt from
taxation by the State or by any county, municipality or taxing district of the State, except for inheritance, transfer and

estate taxes and except to the extent included within the measure of franchise and excise taxes.

The opinions expressed in paragraph (1) above are subject to applicable bankruptcy, insolvency,
reorganization, moratorium and other laws heretofore or hereafter enacted affecting creditors’ rights, and are
subject to the application of principles of equity relatingto oraffectingthe enforcementof contractual obligations,
whether such enforceability is considered in a proceeding in equity or at law.

We express no opinion herein asto (i) federal, state or local tax consequences arising with respect to the
Bonds, or the ownership or disposition thereof, except as stated in paragraphs (2)and (3) above, (ii) federal, state
or local tax matters to the extentaffected by any action taken ornot taken in reliance upon an opinion of counsel
other than ourselves, or (iii) the accuracy,adequacy, sufficiency or completeness of the Official Statement dated
777777 ,2023 (or any update or amendment thereof or supplement thereto) relating to the Bonds, or any other
financial or other information which has been or may be supplied to purchasers or prospective purchasers of the
Bonds.

This opinion letter is rendered solely with regard to the matters expressly opined on above and does not
consider or extend to any documents, agreements, representations or other material or matters of any kind not
specifically opined on above. No other opinions are intended nor should they be inferred.

This opinion letter is issued as of the date hereof, and we assume no obligation to update, revise or
supplement this letter to reflect any action hereaftertaken ornottaken,or any facts or circumstances, orchanges

in law or in interpretations thereof, that may hereafter occur, or for any other reason

Very truly yours,



APPENDIX D

BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM

The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”), New York, New York, will actassecurities depository for the
Bonds. The Bonds will be issued as fully-registered bonds registered in the name of Cede & Co. (DTC’s
partnership nominee) orsuch othername as may be requested by anauthorized representative of DTC. One fully-
registered Bond certificate will be issued for each maturity of each series of the Bonds bearing interest at each
interest rate, each in the aggregate principal amount of such maturity bearing interest at such rate, and will be
deposited with DTC.

DTC, the world’s largest depository, is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the New York
Banking Law, a “banking organization” within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of the
FederalReserve System, a “clearing corporation” within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code,
and a “clearing agency” registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934. DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over 3.5 million issues of U.S. and non-U.S. equity issues,
corporate and municipal debt issues, and money market instruments from over 100 countries that DTC’s
participants (“Direct Participants™) deposit with DTC. DTC also facilitates the post-trade settlementamong Direct
Participants of sales and othersecurities transactions in deposited securities through electronic computerized book-
entry transfers and pledges between Direct Participants’ accounts. This eliminates the need forphysical movement
of securities certificates. Direct Participantsinclude both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks,
trust companies, clearing corporations, and certain other organizations. DTC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The
Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation (“DTCC”). DTCC is the holding company for DTC, National Securities
Clearing Corporation and Fixed Income Clearing Corporation, all of which are registered clearingagencies. DTCC
is owned by the users of its regulated subsidiaries. Access to the DTC system is also available to others such as
both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, and clearingcorporations that clear
through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Direct Participant, either directly or indirectly (“Indirect
Participants”). DTC hasa Standard & Poor’s rating of AA+. The DTC Rules applicable to its Participantsare on
file with the Securities and Exchange Commission. More information about DTC can be foundat www.dtcc.com.

Purchases of Bonds under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants, which will
receive a credit for the Bonds on DTC’s records. The ownership interest of each actual purchaser of each Bond
(“Beneficial Owner”) is in turn to be recorded on the Direct and Indirect Participant’srecords. Beneficial Owners
will not receive written confirmation from DTC of their purchase. Beneficial Owners are, however, expected to
receive written confirmations providing details of the transaction,as well as periodic statements of theirholdings,
from the Direct or Indirect Participant through which the Beneficial Owner entered into the transaction. Transfers
of ownership interests in the Bonds are to be accomplished by entries made on the books of Direct and Indirect
Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners. Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing
their ownership interests in Bonds, except in the event that use of the book-entry system for the Bonds is
discontinued.

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Bonds deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are registered in
the name of DTC’s partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name as may be requested by an authorized
representative of DTC. The deposit of the Bonds with DTC and their registration in the name of Cede & Co or
such other nominee do not effect any change in beneficial ownership. DTC has no knowledge of the actual
Beneficial Owners of the Bonds; DTC’s records reflect only the identity of the Direct Participants to whose
accounts such Bonds are credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial Owners. The Direct and Indirect
Participants will remain responsible for keeping account of their holding on behalf of their customers.

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct Participants
to Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed
by arrangements amongthem, subject to any statutory and regulatory requirementsas may be in effect from time
to time. Beneficial Owners of the Bonds may wish to take certain steps to augment the transmission to them of
notices of significant events with respect to the Bonds, such as redemptions, tenders, defaults, and proposed
amendments to the Bond documents. Forexample, Beneficial Owners of the Bonds may wish to ascertain that the
nominee holdingthe Bonds fortheir benefit has agreed to obtain andtransmit notices to Beneficial Owners. Inthe
alternative, Beneficial Owners may wish to provide their names and addresses to the registrar and request that
copies of notices be provided directly to them.



Redemption notices shallbe sentto DTC. Ifless thanall of the Bondsofa maturity are beingredeemed,
DTC’s practiceis to determine by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct Participantin such maturity to be
redeemed.

Neither DTC norCede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to the Bonds
unless authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC’s procedures. Under its usualprocedures, DTC
mails an Omnibus Proxy to the State as soon as possible afterthe record date. The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede
& Co.’s consentingor voting rights to those Direct Participantsto whose accountsthe Bondsare credited on the
record date (identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy).

Principal and interest payments on the Bonds will be made to Cede & Co., or such othernominee as may
be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. DTC’s practice is to credit Direct Participants’ accounts
upon DTC’sreceipt of funds and correspondingdetail information from the State orany Paying Agent, on payable
date in accordance with theirrespective holdings shown on DTC’srecords. Payments by Participants to Beneficial
Owners will be governed by standinginstructions and customary practices, as is the case with securities held for
the accounts of customers in bearer form or registered in “street name”, and will be the responsibility of such
Participantand not of DTC or the State or any Paying Agent, subject to any statutory orregulatory requirements
asmay bein effect from time to time. Payment of principaland interest to Cede & Co. (or such othernominee as
may berequested by an authorized representative of DTC) is the responsibility of the State or any Paying Agent,
disbursement of such payments to Direct Participants will be the responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of such
payments to the Beneficial Owners will be the responsibility of Direct or Indirect Participants.

DTC may discontinue providing its services as securities depository with respect to the Bondsatany time
by giving reasonable notice to the State. Under such circumstances, in the event that a successor securities
depository is not obtained, Bond certificates are required to be printed and delivered.

The State maydecide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry transfers through DTC (ora successor
securities depository). In that event, Bond certificates will be prepared and delivered to DTC.

THE FOREGOING INFORMATION CONCERNING DTC AND DTC’S BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM HAS
BEEN OBTAINED FROM DTC, A SOURCE THAT STATE BELIEVES TO BE RELIABLE, BUT THE STATE
TAKES NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ACCURACY THEREOF. NEITHER THE STATE, THE
UNDERWRITERS, NOR THE PAYING AGENT AND REGISTRAR CAN MAKE ANY ASSURANCE THATDTC
OR THE DTC PARTICIPANTS WILL ACT IN A MANNER DESCRIBED HEREIN, NOR WILL THEY HAVE ANY
RESPONSIBILITY OR OBLIGATION TO THE DTC PARTICIPANTS OR BENEFICIAL OWNERS FOR (1)
SENDING TRANSACTION STATEMENTS; (2) MAINTAINING, SUPERVISING OR REVIEWING, THE
ACCURACY OF, ANY RECORDS MAINTAINED BY DTC OR ANY DTC PARTICIPANT; (3) PAYMENT OR
THE TIMELINESS OF PAYMENT BY DTC, ANY DIRECT DTC PARTICIPANT, OR ANY INDIRECT DIC
PARTICIPANT TO ANY BENEFICIAL OWNER OF ANY AMOUNT DUE TO ANY BENEFICIAL OWNER IN
RESPECT TO THE PRINCIPAL OR REDEMPTION PREMIUM, IF ANY, OR INTEREST ON BONDS; (4)
DELIVERY OR TIMELY DELIVERY BY DTC OR ANY DTC PARTICIPANT TO ANY BENEFICIAL OWNER
OF ANY NOTICE (INCLUDING NOTICE OF REDEMPTION) OR OTHER COMMUNICATIONS TO ANY
BENEFICIAL OWNER WHICH IS REQUIRED OR PERMITTED UNDER THE TERMS OF THE BOND
DOCUMENTS TO BE GIVEN TO BONDHOLDERS; (5) THE SELECTION OF THE BENEFICIAL OWNERS TO
RECEIVE PAYMENT IN THE EVENT OF ANY PARTIAL REDEMPTION OF BONDS; OR (6) ANY ACTION
TAKEN BY DTC OR ITS NOMINEE AS THE REGISTERED OWNER OF THE BONDS.

So long as Cede & Co. is the registered owners of the Bonds, as nominee for DTC, references in the
Official Statement to the Bondholders or registered owners of the Bonds (other than under the caption “Tax
Matters” in the Official Statement) shallmean Cede & Co. or any other DTC nominee, as aforesaid,and shallnot
mean the Beneficial Owners of the Bonds.



APPENDIX E

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING

This Continuing Disclosure Undertaking (the “Undertaking”)is datedand madeasof by the State
of Tennessee (the “State”)in connection with the issuance ofthe State’s$  aggregate principalamountof
General Obligation Bonds, 2023 Series A (the “Bonds”). As authorized by Section 10 of the resolution (the “Bond
Resolution”) of the Funding Board of the State of Tennessee (the “Funding Board”) adopted on April 26, 2023,
authorizing the Bonds, the State agrees as follows:

ARTICLEI
Definitions
Section 1.1. Definitions. The following terms used in this Undertakingshallhave the followingrespective
meanings:

(1) “AnnualFinancial Information” means (i) updated versions of the following financialinformation and
operatingdata contained in, or incorporated by reference pursuant to an Appendix to, the Official Statement with
respect to the State, for each fiscal year of the State:

Special Tax Collections
Total Sales and Use Tax Collections
Allocation of Sales and Use Tax to Debt Service
Outstanding General Obligation Bonded Indebtedness
Long-Term General Obligation Bonded Debt Service by Fiscal Year and Maturity
Maximum and Actual Principal Amounts of Commercial Paper Outstanding
Other Post-Employment Benefits
— Unfunded Actuarial Liability
— Annual Required Contribution
Rainy Day Fund Reserve Balance
Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System
— Statistical data
— Tables
e Debt of Certain Agencies and Authorities
— Tennessee Local Development Authority
— Tennessee State School Bond Authority
— Tennessee Housing Development Agency
e The statistical data incorporated by reference in Appendix B to the Official Statement, to the extentand in
the form presented in the State’s most recent Annual Comprehensive Financial Report

and (ii) the information regarding amendments to this Undertaking required pursuant to Sections 4.2(c)
and (d) of this Undertaking. AnnualFinancial Information shallinclude Audited Financial Statements, if available,
or Unaudited Financial Statements.

The descriptions contained in clause (i) above of financial information and operating data constituting
AnnualFinancial Informationare of general categories ortypes of financialinformationand operatingdata. When
such descriptions include information thatno longer can be generated because the operations to which it related
have been materially changed or discontinued, a statement to that effect shall be provided in lieu of such

information.

(2) “Audited Financial Statements” means the annual financial statements of the State, audited by the
Comptroller of the Treasury, Division of State Audit, as now required by State law (or such other auditor as
hereaftermay berequired or permitted by State law). Audited Financial Statements shallbe prepared in accordance
with GAAP.

(3) “Counsel” means Hawkins Delafield & Wood LLP or other nationally recognized bond counsel or
counsel expert in federal securities laws, in each case acceptable to the State.

(4) “EMMA” means the MSRB’s Electronic Municipal Market Access system or its successor.
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(5) “Financial Obligation” means: (A) debt obligation; (B) derivative instrument entered into in
connection with, or pledged as security or a source of payment for, an existing or planned debt obligation; or (C)
guarantee of (A) of (B) above, but doesnot include municipalsecurities asto which a final officialstatementhas
been provided to the MSRB consistent with the Rule.

(6) “GAAP” means generally accepted accounting principles for governmentalunits as prescribed by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, the Financial Accounting Standards Board, or any successor to the

duties and responsibilities of either of them.

(7) “MSRB” means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board established pursuant to the provisions of
Section 15B(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, orany successorto the MSRB orthe functions
of the MSRB contemplated by this Undertaking.

(8) “Notice Event” means any of the following events with respect to the Bonds:

() principal and interest payment delinquencies;

(i) non-payment related defaults, if material;

(iii) unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties;

(iv) unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties;

(v) substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform;

(vi) adversetax opinions, theissuance by the Internal Revenue Service of proposed or final determinations
of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-TEB) or other material notices or
determinations with respect to the tax status of the Bonds, or other material events a ffecting the tax
status of the Bonds;

(vii) modifications to rights of Bondholders, if material;

(viii) bond calls, if material, and tender offers;

(ix) defeasances;

(x) release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the Bonds, if material;
(xi) rating changes;
(xii) bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership, or similar event of the State;

(Note to clause (xii): For the purposes of the event identified in clause (xii) above, the event is
considered to occur when any of the following occur: the appointment of a receiver, fiscal a gent or
similar officer for the Statein a proceedingunder the U.S. Bankruptcy Codeor in any other proceeding
under state or federal law in which a court or government authority has assumed jurisdiction over
substantially all of the assets or business of'the State, or if such jurisdiction has been assumed by leaving
the existing governing body and officials or officers in possession but subject to the supervision and
orders of a courtor governmental authority, or theentry of an order confirming a plan ofreorganization,
arrangementor liquidationby a courtor governmental authority having supervision or jurisdiction over
substantially all of the assets or business of the State.)

(xiii) the consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving the State or the sale of all or
substantially all the assets of the State, other than in the ordinary course of business, the entry into a
definitive agreement to undertake such action or the termination of a definitive a greement relating to
any such actions, other than pursuant to its terms, if material;

(xiv) appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of name of a trustee, if material;
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(xv) incurrence of a Financial Obligation of the issuer or obligated person, if material, or agreement to
covenants, events of default, remedies, priority rights, or other similarterms of a Financial Obligation

of the State, any of which affect security holders, if material; and

(xvi)default, event of acceleration, termination event, modification of terms, or other similar events under
the terms of a Financial Obligation of the State, any of which reflect financial difficulties.

(9) “Notice Event Notice” means notice of a Notice Event.
(10) “Official Statement” means the Official Statement dated | of the State relating to the Bonds.

(11) “Rule” means Rule 15¢2-12 promulgated by the SEC underthe Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (17
CFR Part 240, §240.15¢2-12), as in effect on the effective date hereof, including any official interpretations
thereof.

(12) “SEC” means the United States Securities and Exchange Commission.

(13) “Unaudited Financial Statements” means the same as Audited Financial Statements, except that they
shallnot have been audited.

ARTICLE II

The Undertaking
Section 2.1. Purpose. This Undertaking is being executed, delivered and made solely to assist the
underwriters of the Bonds in complying with subsection (b)(5) of the Rule.

Section 2.2. Annual Financial Information. (a) The State shall provide Annual Financial Information
with respect to each fiscal year of the State, commencing with the fiscal year ending June 30, 2023, by no later

than 7 months after the end of the respective fiscal year, to the MSRB.

(b) The State shall provide, in a timely manner, notice of any failure of the State to provide the Annual
Financial Information by the date specified in subsection (a) above to the MSRB.

Section 2.3. Audited Financial Statements. If not provided as part of Annual Financial Information by
the date required by Section 2.2(a) hereof because not available, the State shall provide Audited Financial

Statements, when and if available, to the MSRB.

Section 2.4. Notice Events. (a) If a Notice Event occurs, the State shall provide, in a timely mannernot
in excess of ten (10) business days afterthe occurrence of such Notice Event, a Notice Event Notice to the MSRB.

(b) Any such notice of a defeasance of Bonds shall state whetherthe Bonds have been escrowed to maturity
or to an earlier redemption date and the timing of such maturity or redemption.

Section 2.5. AdditionalDisclosure Obligations. The State acknowledges andunderstands that other State
and federal laws, including but not limited to the Securities Act of 1933 and Rule 10b-5 promulgated under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, may apply to the State and that, under some circumstances, additional disclosures
or other action in addition to those required by this Undertaking may be required to enable the State to fully
discharge all of its duties and obligations under such laws.

Section 2.6. Additional Information. Nothing in this Undertaking shall be deemed to prevent the State
from disseminating any otherinformation, using the means of dissemination set forth in this Undertakingor any
othermeans of communication, orincluding any otherinformation in any Annual Financial Information or Notice
Event Notice, in addition to that which is required by this Undertaking. If the State chooses to do so, the State
shall have no obligation under this Undertaking to update such additional information or include it in any future
Annual Financial Information or Notice Event Notice.




ARTICLE III
Operating Rules
Section 3.1. Reference to Other Documents. It shall be sufficient for purposes of Section 2.2 hereof if
the State provides AnnualFinancial Information by specific reference to documents (i) available to the public on
the MSRB Internet Web site (currently, www.emma.msrb.org) or (ii) filed with the SEC. The provisions of this

Section shall not apply to Notice Event Notices pursuant to Section 2.4 hereof.

Section 3.2. Submission of Information. Annual Financial Informationmay be providedin one document
or multiple documents, and at one time or in part from time to time.

Section 3.3. Filing with Certain Dissemination Agents or Conduits. The State may from time to time
designate an agentto acton its behalf in providing or filing notices, documents and information as required of the
State under this Undertaking, and revoke or modify any such designation.

Section 3.4. Transmission of Notices, Documents and Information. (a) Unless otherwise required by the
MSRB, all notices, documents and information provided to the MSRB shall be provided to EMMA, the current
Internet Web address of which is www.emma.msrb.org,

(b) All notices, documents and information provided to the MSRB shall be provided in an electronic
format as prescribed by the MSRB (currently, portable document format (pdf) which must be word-searchable

except fornon-textual elements) and shallbe accompanied by identifyinginformationas prescribed by the MSRB.

Section 3.5. Fiscal Year. (a) The State’s current fiscal yearis July 1 —June 30. The State shallpromptly
notify the MSRB of each change in its fiscal year.

(b) The State shallprovide AnnualFinancial Information at least annually notwithstandingany fiscal year
longer than 12 calendar months.

ARTICLE IV

Effective Date, Termination, Amendment and Enforcement
Section 4.1. Effective Date; Termination. (a) This Undertakingshall be effective upon the issuance of
the Bonds.

(b) The State’s obligations under this Undertaking shall terminate with respect to each Bond upon the
legal defeasance, prior redemption or payment in full of such Bond.

(c) This Undertaking, orany provision hereof, shallbe null and void in the event thatthe State (1) receives
an opinion of Counsel to the effect that those portions of the Rule which require this Undertaking, or such
provision, as the case may be,do not or no longer apply to the Bonds, whether because such portions of the Rule
areinvalid, have been repealed, or otherwise, asshall be specified in such opinion,and (2) delivers copies of such
opinion to the MSRB.

Section 4.2. Amendment. (a) This Undertaking may be amended without the consent of the holders of
the Bonds, if all of the following conditions are satisfied: (1) such amendment is made in connection with a change
in circumstances that arises from a change in legal (including regulatory) requirements,a change in law (including
rules and regulations) or in interpretations thereof, or a change in the identity, nature or status of the State or the
type of business conducted thereby, (2) this Undertaking as so amended would have complied with the
requirements of the Rule as of the date hereof, aftertakinginto account any amendments or interpretations of the
Rule, aswell asany change in circumstances, (3) the State shall have received an opinion of Counselto the same
effect as set forth in clause (2) above, (4) the State shall have received either an opinion of Counsel or a
determination by a person, in each case unaffiliated with the State, to the effect that the amendment does not
materially impairthe interests of the holders of the outstanding Bonds, and (5) the State shallhavedelivered copies
of such opinion(s) and amendment to the MSRB.

(b) This Undertaking may be amended without the consent of the holders of the Bonds if all of the
following conditions are satisfied: (1) an amendment to the Rule is adopted, or a new or modified official
interpretation of the Rule is issued, afterthe effective date hereof which is applicable to this Undertaking, (2) the
State shall havereceived an opinion of Counselto the effect that performance by the State under this Undertaking
as so amended will not result in a violation of the Rule as so amended or officially interpreted and (3) the State
shall have delivered copies of such opinion and amendment to the MSRB.



(c) To the extent any amendment to this Undertaking results in a change in the categories or types of
financial information or operating data provided pursuant to this Undertaking, the first Annual Financial
Information provided thereafter shall include a narrative explanation of the reasons for the amendment and the
impact of the change in the type of operating data or financial information being provided.

(d) Ifan amendment is made pursuant to Section 4.2(a) hereof to the accountingprinciples to be followed
by the State in preparing its financial statements, the Annual Financial Information forthe fiscal yearin which the
change is made shallpresent a comparison between the financialstatements or information prepared on the basis
of the new accounting principles and those prepared on the basis of the former accounting principles. Such
comparison shall include a qualitative and, to the extent reasonably feasible, quantitative discussion of the
differences in the accounting principles and the impact of the change in the accounting principles on the
presentation of the financial information.

Section 4.3. Contract; Benefit: Third-Party Beneficiaries; Enforcement. (a) The provisions of this
Undertakingshall constitute a contract with and inure solely to the benefit of the holders from time to time of the
Bonds, except that beneficial owners of Bonds shall be third-party beneficiaries of this Undertakingand shall be
deemed to be holders of Bonds for purposes of Section 4.3(b) hereof. The provisions of this Undertaking shall

create no rights in any person or entity except as provided in this subsection (a).

(b) The obligations of the State to comply with the provisions of this Undertakingshallbe enforceable by
any holderof outstanding Bonds; however, the holders’ rights to enforce the provisions of this Undertakingshall
be limited solely to a right, by action in mandamus or for specific performance, to compel performance of the
State’s obligations under this Undertaking.

(c) Any failure by the State to perform in accordance with this Undertakingshall not constitute a default
or an event of default underthe Bond Resolution or State law and shall not result in any acceleration of payment
of the Bonds, and the rights and remedies provided by the Bond Resolution and applicable State law upon the
occurrence of such a default or an event of default shall not apply to any such failure.

(d) This Undertakingshall be construed and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State,and any
suits and actions arisingout of this Undertakingshallbe instituted in a court of competent jurisdiction in the State;
provided, however, that to the extent this Undertakingaddresses matters of federal securities laws, including the
Rule, this Undertaking shall be construed in accordance with such federal securities laws and official
interpretations thereof.

Section 4.4. Effective Date. This Undertaking shall be effective upon the issuance and delivery by the
State of the Bonds.

STATE OF TENNESSEE

By:

Sandra Thompson
Assistant Secretary, Funding Board
of the State of Tennessee, and

Director, Division of State
Government Finance, State of

Tennessee
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NOTICE OF SALE

State of Tennessee
General Obligation Bonds

$510,000,000" 2023 Series A

Electronic Bids, as Described Herein
Will Be Accepted Until

9:15 a.m. Central Time™

on ,2023

Subject to change both before the sale date and time, and after award, as provided herein.

Subject to change before the sale date and time as provided herein.




CONTACTS
Issuer

State of Tennessee

Sandra Thompson

Director, Division of State Government Finance
425 Rep. John Lewis Way North

Nashville, TN 37243

Cindy Liddell

Senior Program Accountant, Division of State Government Finance
425 Rep. John Lewis Way North

Nashville, TN 37243

Michael Mercer

Program Accountant, Division of State Government Finance
425 Rep. John Lewis Way North

Nashville, TN 37243

Bond Counsel to the Issuer

Hawkins Delafield & Wood LLP
Steven 1. Turner

7 World Trade Center

250 Greenwich Street

New York, NY 10007

Financial Advisor
PFM Financial Advisors LLC
Lauren Lowe
530 Oak Court Drive, Suite 160
Memphis, TN 38117-3722
BiDCOMPT™/PARITY®
Customer Service

i-Deal Prospectus

Customer Service

(615)747-5369
Fax: (615)741-5986
sandithompson@cot.tn.gov

(615)747-5348
Fax: (615)741-5986
cindy.liddell@cot.tn.gov

(615)736-6056
Fax: (615)741-5986
michael. mercer@cot.tn.gov

(212) 820-9462
Fax: (212)820-9615

sturner@hawkins.com

(901)466-4554
Fax: (901) 682-8386
lowel@pfm.com

(212)849-5021

(212) 849-5024



NOTICE OF SALE

State of Tennessee
General Obligation Bonds
$510,000,000° 2023 Series A

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that electronic bids will be received at the place, on the date and until the time specified
below forthe purchase of all, but not less than all, of the $510,000,000° General Obligation Bonds, 2023 Series A (the “Bonds”),
to be issued by the State of Tennessee (the “State”).

DATE: , ,2023"
TIME: 9:15 a.m. Central Time™
ELECTRONIC BIDS: May be submitted only through PARITY® as described below.

No other form of bid or provider of electronic bidding services willbe accepted.

The Bonds are more particularly described below and in the Preliminary Official Statement dated ;2023
relatingto the Bonds (the “Preliminary Official Statement”), a vailable at the i-Deal Prospectus website, www.i-dealprospectus.con.
For assistance in obtaining the Preliminary Official Statement from this website, contact i-Deal Prospectus' customer service or
PFM Financial Advisors LLC. See the Contacts page of this Notice of Sale.

Prior to the sale date and time, the State reserves the right to change the aggregate or annual principal amounts of the
Bonds or the terms of the Bonds, and to postpone the sale to a later date or time or to cancel the sale. Notice of a change,
postponementor cancellation will be announced via Thomson Municipal News at the website address www.mm3.com not later than
12:00 Noon, Central Time, on the day preceding the bid opening or, in the case ofa cancellation, at any timeprior to the receipt of
bids. If the sale is postponed, a later public sale may be held on such date and at such time as shall be announced at least forty-
eight (48) hours in advance via Thomson Municipal News at the website address www.tm3.com. Consideration of the bids and the
award ofthe Bonds willbe completed within six (6) hours after the bidsare received. The Statealsoreserves theright to adjustthe
principalamount ofthe Bondsoffered and to cancelthe sale of the Bonds after the bids are opened as further described herein under
“ADJUSTMENTS OF AMOUNTS AND MATURITIES AFTER AWARD”.

[Bidding Parameters Tables follow]

Subject to change both before the sale date and time, and after award, as provided herein.
Subject to change before the sale date and time as provided herein.

kK
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$510,000,000 SERIES A BONDS BIDDING PARAMETERS TABLE"

Page Page
Description No. Description No.
DATES REDEMPTION
Dated Date: Delivery Date 4 Optional OnorafterMay 1,2033
Delivery Date: On or about at 100% 4
__________ ,2023 4,9 | Mandatory: Each sinking fund
INTEREST installment date for term
Interest Payment Dates: May 1 and November 1 4 bonds at 100% 4
First Interest Payment: May 1,2024 4
Coupon Multiples: 1/8 or 1/20 of 1% 7 PRICING
Maximum Coupon: 5.50% 7 | Max. Reoffering Price:
Minimum Coupon: 5.00% on and after May 7 Each Maturity: N.A. 7
1,2034 7 Aggregate: 130.0% 7
Maximum TIC: 5.00% Min. Reoffering Price:
PRINCIPAL Each Maturity: 98.5% 7
Adjustments-Increases: 7,8 Aggregate: 100% 7
Each Maturity: +25% 7,8 PROCEDURAL
Aggregate: +15% Bid Submission: PARITY" only 3,7
Adjustments-Decreases: 7,8 | All or None?: Yes 7
Each Maturity: -20% 7,8 | Bid Award Method:  Lowest TIC 7
Aggregate: -15% Bid Confirmation: Fax signed PARITY"
Term Bonds: One or more on or after screen 6
May 1, 2034 (sinking Award of Bid: Within 6 hours 1,7
fund installments must Good Faith Deposit: ~ $5,100,000 8
equal amortization) 4
PRINCIPAL MATURITIES
Year Principal Year Principal
(May 1) Amount™ (May 1) Amount™
2024 NC $25,500,000 2034 T $25,500,000
2025 NC 25,500,000 2035T 25,500,000
2026 NC 25,500,000 2036 T 25,500,000
2027 NC 25,500,000 2037 T 25,500,000
2028 NC 25,500,000 2038 T 25,500,000
2029 NC 25,500,000 2039 T 25,500,000
2030 NC 25,500,000 2040 T 25,500,000
2031 NC 25,500,000 2041 T 25,500,000
2032 NC 25,500,000 2042 T 25,500,000
2033 NC 25,500,000 2043 T 25,500,000
NC: Non-callable.
T:  May be designated as sinking fund installments for term maturity or maturities.

*  If numerical (excluding page numbers) or date references contained in the body of this Notice of Sale conflict with the Bidding
Parameters Table, the body of this Notice of Sale shall control. Consult the body of this Notice of Sale for a detailed explanation of
the items contained in the Bidding Parameters Table, including interpretation of such items and methodologies used to determine

such items.

**  Subject to change both before the sale date and time, and after award, as provided herein.




THE BONDS
General

The Bonds willbe datedasof the Dated Date shown onthe Bidding Parameters Table, willbe issued in denominations of
$5,000 orintegral multiples thereof, and will bear interest from their date attheannualrate or rates specified by the winning bidder,
subject to thelimitations specified below, payable as shown on the Bidding Parameters Table. Interest payable on the Bonds will
be computed onthe basis of a 360-day year of twelve (12) 30-day months. The Bondsmust meet the criteria shown onthe Bidding
Parameters Table on a maturity and aggregate basis.

The Bonds willmature on the monthand day, in the years and in the principal amounts shown on the Bidding Parameters
Table as either serial bonds or as term bonds with sinking fund installments as described under “Designation of Term Bonds;
Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption” below, subject to change beforethe sale date and time as provided above and after award as

provided in “ADJUSTMENTS OF AMOUNTS AND MATURITIES AFTER AWARD” below.

Designation of Term Bonds, Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption

Bidders forthe Bonds may, at their option, combine consecutive principal amounts payable on ora fter the date indicated
on the Bidding Parameters Table as maturities that may be designated as sinking fund installments for one or more term bonds
bearinginterest at the samerate. Eachsuch termbond willbe subjectto mandatory sinking fund redemption commencing on the
principal payment date ofthe first year which has been combined to form such term bond and continuing on the principal payment
date in each yearthereafter until the stated maturity date of such temm bond, which willbe the last year combined to form such term
bond. The amountredeemed in any year willbe equalto the principalamountfor such yearas set forth in theamortization schedule
forsuch Bonds shownin the Bidding Parameters Table, subjectto change before thesale dateand timeas provided above and after
award as provided in “ADJUSTMENTS OF AMOUNTS AND MATURITIES AFTER AWARD” below. Bonds to be redeemed
in any year by mandatory sinking fund redemption willbe redeemed at parand will be selected from amongthe Bonds of the same

series and maturity, by lot.
Optional Redemption

The Bonds maturing on orafter May 1,2034 may be redeemed prior to their respective maturity dates atthe option of the
State onandafter May 1,2033, in whole orin part atany timeat the redemption price of 100% ofthe principal amount of the Bonds
or portions thereofto be redeemed, together with accrued interest thereon to the redemption date. Bonds which are designated to
be term bonds as described in “Designation of Term Bonds; Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption” above shall be subject to
mandatory sinking fund redemption as described therein.

AUTHORITY AND SECURITY

The Bonds are being issued under and pursuant to the Constitution and laws of the State, including Title 9, Chapter9,
Tennessee Code Annotated, allas morefully described in the Preliminary Official Statement relatingto the Bonds. The Bonds will
be direct general obligations of the State forthe paymentof which, as to bothprincipal and interest, the full faith and credit of the
State is pledged. See the Preliminary Official Statement for a description of additional security for the Bonds and other related
matters.

FORM AND PAYMENT

The Bonds will be issued in fully registered book-entry only form,and a bond certificate for eachmaturity of each series
will beissued to The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”), registered in the name ofits nominee, Cede & Co.,and immobilized in
its custody. A book-entry system will be employedto evidence ownership of the Bonds, with transfers of ownership effected on
the records of DTC and its participants pursuant to rules and procedures adopted by DTC and its participants. Principal of, premium,
if any,and intereston the Bonds will be payable by the State to DTC orits nominee as registered owner of the Bonds. Transfer of
principal, premium, if any, and interest payments tothe beneficial owners by participants of DTC will be the responsibility of such
participants and other nominees of beneficial owners. The State will not be responsible or liable for payments by DTC to its
participants or by DTC participants to beneficial owners or for maintaining, supervising or reviewing the records maintained by
DTC, its participants or persons acting through such participants. Beneficial owners will be entitled to receive Bond certificates
only under the limited circumstances described in the Preliminary Official Statement.
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BIDDING PROCEDURE; CONFIRMATION OF BID

Only electronic bids submitted via PARITY® will be accepted. No other provider of electronic bidding services will be
accepted. No bid delivered in person orby facsimile directly to the State will be accepted. Bidders are permitted to submit bids
forthe Bonds duringthe bidding time period, provided they are eligible to bid as described under “ELIGIBILITY TO BID”.

Each electronic bid submitted via PARITY® for the purchase of the Bonds shall be deemed an offer to purchase such
Bonds in response to this Notice of Sale,and shallbe bindingupon the bidderasif made by a signed, sealed bid delivered to the
State. The winning bidder must confirm the details of suchbid by a signed PARITY® Bid Form delivered by fax to (6 15) 741-5986
no laterthan one hourafterbeingnotified by the State of being the winning bidder, the original of which must be received by the
Director of State and Local Finance of the State on the following business day at the address shown on the Contacts page of this
Notice of Sale. Failure to deliver this confirmation does not relieve the bidder of its obligation to complete the purchase of the

Bonds bid for.
ELECTRONIC BIDDING

The use of PARITY® electronic bidding shallbe at the bidder’s risk and expense, and the State shallhave no liability with
respect thereto. The State is using electronic bidding as a communications medium and PARITY®is not acting as the State’s agent.

If any provisions ofthis Notice of Sale conflict with information providedby PARITY®, this Notice of Sale shall control
The Stateis not bound by any advice or determination of PARITY® as to whether any bid complies with the terms of'this Notice of

Sale. The time as maintained by PARITY® shall constitute the official time with respect to all bids submitted.

By submitting a bid for Bonds, a prospective bidder represents and warrants to the State that such bidder’s bid for the
purchase ofsuch Bonds is submitted forand on behalf of such prospective bidder by an officer oragent who is duly authorized to

bind the prospective bidder to a legal, valid and enforceable contract for the purchase of such Bonds.
ELIGIBILITY TO BID

The State does not have a registration requirement for prospective bidders. However, bidders submitting electronic bids
must be contracted customers of the BIDCOMP™ Competitive Bidding System and should promptly contact PARITY® directly
forinformation about PARITY®, and BIDCOMP™ including their rules and fees, and becoming a contracted customer. (See the
Contacts page of this Notice of Sale.) By contracting with BIDCOMP™_ a prospective bidderis not obligated to submit a bid in
connection with the sale.

To the extentanaccepted bid constitutes a contract to acquire or dispose of services, supplies, information technology, or
construction for purpose of Tennessee Code Annotated Section 12-4-119, by submitting a bid each bidder certifies that it (including
in each case its wholly-owned subsidiaries, majority-owned subsidiaries, parent companies, or affiliates, if any) is not currently
engaged in,and will not for the duration of this Agreement engage in, a boycottof Israel. Forthis purpose, (1) “Israel” means the
State ofIsrael and Israeli-controlled territories, and (2) a “boycott of Israel” means engaging in refusals to deal, terminating business
activities, or other commercialactions that are intended to limit commercial relations with Israel, or companies doing business in
or with Israelorauthorized by, licensed by, or organized under the laws ofthe State of Israel to do business, or persons or entities
doingbusiness in Israel, when such actions are taken (i) in compliance with, oradherenceto, calls fora boycott of Israel, or (ii) in
a manner that discriminates on the basis of nationality, national origin, religion, or other unreasonable basis,andisnot based on a
valid business reason.

ESTABLISHED INDUSTRY REPUTATION REQUIRED OF BIDDERS

By submitting a bid for the Bonds, each bidder certifies it has an established industry reputation for underwriting
new issuances of municipal bonds. The State will not accept bids from firms without an established industry reputation for
underwriting new issuances of municipal bonds.

CONTENTS OF BID, INTEREST RATES, BID PRICES AND REOFFERING PRICES

Bidders must bid forallmaturities of the Bonds. Eachbid must specify (1)an annualrate of interest for each maturity of
Bonds, (2) the reoffering price or yield of each such maturity and (3) a dollar purchase price for all of the Bonds.
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Each bid forthe Bonds must meetthe criteria shown on the Bidding Parameters Table. Any number ofinterestrates may
be named, but the Bonds of the same maturity must bear interest at the same single rate.

As promptly as reasonably possible a fter bids forthe Bonds arereceived, the State will notify the winning bidder for such
Bonds thatit is the apparent winner. Upon such notice, such bidder must confirm to the State the initial reoffering prices and
Underwriter’s discounts by maturity for the Bonds bid for. Reoffering prices must meet the criteria shown on the Bidding
Parameters Table. Theinitialreoffering prices and Underwriter’s discount for each maturity confirmed to the State will be used by
the State to calculate the final annual principal amounts and will be included in the final Official Statement. See “ADJUSTMENTS
OF AMOUNTS AND MATURITIES AFTER AWARD” below. The State will not include in the final Official Statement an
“NRO” (“not reoffered”) designation with respect to any maturity of the Bonds.

Reoffering prices forthe Bonds alsomustbe confirmed as describedunder “ESTABLISHMENT OF ISSUE PRICE FOR
THE BONDS” below.

The winning bidder (the “Purchaser’) will be responsible to the State in allrespects forthe accuracy and completeness of
information provided by the Purchaser with respect to such reoffering.

AWARD

The State expects to award the Bonds to the winning bidder within six (6) hours of the bid opening. Bids may not be
withdrawn priorto the award. Unlessall bids forthe Bonds are rejected, the Bonds will be awarded to the bidder therefor whose
bid complies with this Notice of Sale and results in the lowest true interest cost (“TIC”) to the State. The TIC (expressed as an
annual rate) will be determined for each of the Bonds as being twice the semi-annual discount rate, compounded semi-annually,
which, when applied against principal of and interest on the Bonds as due, will equalthe sum of such discounted payments to the
aggregate purchase price for such Bonds, as provided by the respective bidder on the PARITY® Bid Form. The TIC shall be
calculated from the Dated Date ofthe Bonds, which for this purposeshall be the delivery date specified in the Bidding Parameters
Tables. If two or more bidders offer to purchase the Bonds at the same lowest TIC (rounded to six (6) places after the decimal
point), such Bonds may be apportioned betweensuchbidders if it is agreeable to each ofsuch bidders, and if apportionment is not
acceptable to such bidders, the Statereserves the right to award such Bonds to one of such bidders. There will be no auction.

ADJUSTMENTS OF AMOUNTS AND MATURITIES AFTER AWARD

The aggregate principal amount ofthe Bonds, and the principal amount of each maturity thereof, are subjectto adjustment
by the State after the award of such Bonds tothe winning bidder. Changes tobe madea fter theaward willbe communicated to the
winning bidder therefor directly by 10:00 a.m., Central Time, on the day following the sale.

The Statemay increase or decreasetheaggregate principal amount ofthe Bonds, or the aggregate principal amount of any
maturity thereof, by no more than the individual maturity or aggregate principal percentages shown in the Bidding Parameters Table
from theamounts bidon. The State will consult with the winning bidder for the Bonds before adjusting the amount ofany maturity
of such Bonds; however, the State reserves the sole right to make adjustments within the limits described above.

Adjustments within the limits described above will not relieve the Purchaser from its obligation to purchase all of the
Bonds, assuming all other conditions of this Notice of Sale have been satisfied by the State.

In the event thatthe principal amount of any maturity ofthe Bonds is revised after the award, the interest rate and reoffering
price for each maturity and the Underwriter’s discounton the Bonds, as the case may be, shall be held constant. The “Underwriter’s
discount” for the Bonds shall be the difference between the dollar purchaseprice submitted by the bidder for the purchase ofall of
the Bonds andthetotal dollarprice at whichall of the Bonds will be offered to the public, calculated from information provided by
the bidder, divided by thenumber of suchBonds. (The number of Bonds equals the par amount of Bonds divided by 1,000.)

RIGHT OF REJECTION

The State reserves the right, in its discretion, to reject anyand allbids and to waive any irregularity or informality in any
bid.



RIGHT OF CANCELLATION

The winning bidder forthe Bonds willhave the right, at its option, to cancel its obligation to purchaseif the State fails to
deliver such Bonds within 60 days from the date of sale, and in such event the winning bidder will be entitled to the retum of an
amount equal to the good faith deposit but without any additional liability to the State.

GOOD FAITH DEPOSIT

The winning bidder forthe Bonds is required to submit the good faith amountshown in the Bidding Parameters Table (the
“Good Faith Amount”) to the State in the form of a wire transfer in federal funds, as instructed by the State’s Financial Advisor,
not laterthan two hours afterthe verbalaward ismade. Ifsuch wire transfer deposit isnot received by the State by thattime, the
bid of such apparent winning bidder may be rejected and the State may direct the nextlowest bidder for the Bonds to submit a good
faith deposit and thereafter may award the sale of such Bonds to them. Thecoverbiddershallhold its bid constant until two hours
aftertheinitial verbalaward is made or, if earlier, the time theapparent winningbidder’s good faith deposit is received, as advised
by the State’s Financial Advisor.

In the event that the original apparent winning bidder does not comply with the good faith deposit requirements and another
bidder complies with the good faith deposit requirements as described herein, or in the eventnobidder complies with the good faith
deposit requirements as described herein, the original a pparent winning bidder is obliga ted to promptly pay to the State, as liquidated
damages forits failureto timely comply with the temms of this Notice of Sale and ofits bid, anamount equal to the greater of (i) the
difference between the true interest cost ofthe originalapparent winner and oftheultimate winner, or (ii) the Good Faith Amount,
plus in each case reasonable attorney’s fees and expenses. Submission of a bid to purchase Bonds shall constitute
acknowledgementand acceptance of theterms of the good faith depositrequirements, including liquidated damages, as provided
herein.

The good faith deposit so wired will be depositedand held by the Stateuntil the delivery of the Bonds, at which time each
good faith deposit willbe applied againstthe purchase price ofthe Bonds or such good faith deposit will be retained by the State as
partialliquidated damages in the event ofthe failure of the winningbidder to take up and pay for such Bonds in compliance with
the terms of the Notice of Sale and of its bid. No interest on the good faith deposits will be paid by the State. The balance of the
purchase price must be wired in federal funds to the account specified by oron behalf of the Funding Board, simultaneously with
delivery of such Bonds.

ESTABLISHMENT OF ISSUE PRICE FOR THE BONDS

Ifthe State receivesatleast three (3) bona fide bids for the Bonds, theissue price of the Bonds shall be established pursuant
to Treasury Regulation Section 1.148-1(f)(2)(iii) based on the reasonably expected initial offering price to the public as of the sale
date. The Purchaser ofthe Bonds agrees to execute the Issue Price Certificate attached hereto asExhibit Anot laterthan2:00P.M,,
Central Time, on the business day prior to the date of delivery of the Bonds (by delivery of manually signed hard copy, or by
electronic transmission confirmed with manually signed hard copy delivered the following day), with such modifications as may
be appropriate ornecessary in the reasonable judgment of the State or Bond Counsel. The Purchaser of the Bonds agrees to take
such actions, both before and after the award of the Bonds, as shall be necessary to enable it to satisfy the requirements of such

Issue Price Certificate.

Ifthe State doesnotreceiveat leastthree(3) bona fide bidsfor each series of the Bonds, theissue price of the Bonds shall
be established pursuant to Treasury Regulation Section 1.148-1(f)(2)(ii) (the “hold-the-price” rule). The Purchaser of the Bonds
agrees to execute the I[ssue Price Certificate attached hereto as Exhibit B not later than 2:00 P.M., Central Time, on the business
day priorto the date of delivery of the Bonds (by delivery of manually signed hard copy, or by electronic transmission confimed
with manually signed hard copy delivered the following day), with such modifications as may be appropriate or necessary in the
reasonable judgmentofthe State orBond Counsel. The Purchaser of the Bonds agrees to take suchactions, both before and after
the award of the Bonds, as shall be necessary to enable it to satisfy the requirements of such Issue Price Certificate.

In eitherevent, the Purchaser of the Bonds also willbe required to provideto the State and Bond Counsel such additional
information as may be requested by Bond Counsel.



ADDITIONAL RESPONSIBILITIES OF PURCHASER

The Purchaser agrees to make a bona fide public offering of all of the Bonds bid for, and represents that it shall reoffer
such Bonds in compliance with all applicable securities laws of the jurisdictions in which such Bonds are offered.

PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT AND FINAL OFFICIAL STATEMENT

The Preliminary Official Statement comprises the “deemed final” Official Statement for purposes of Rule 15¢2-12 ofthe
Securities and Exchange Commission and, when amended to reflect,among other things, the actualamount ofthe Bonds sold, the
interest rates specified by the winning bidder and the prices or yields at which the winning bidder will reoffer the Bonds to the
public, will constitute a “Final Official Statement” (as defined in Rule 15¢2-12) with respect to the Bonds. No more than seven
business days after the date of the sale, the State will provide without cost to the winning bidder for the Bonds up to 25 copies of
the final Official Statement. If Bonds are awarded to a syndicate, the State will deliver final Official Statements only to the entity
submitting the successful bid, which shall be responsible for distributing copies of the final Official Statement among the
participating underwriters.

The Statewill deliver to the Purchaser ofthe Bonds certificatesof the State, dated the date of delivery ofthe Bonds, stating
thatasofthesaledate and at the time the Bonds are delivered, (i) the information and statements, including financial statements,
of orpertaining to the State contained in the Official Statement were and are correct in allmaterial respects; (ii) insofar as the State
and its affairs, including its financial a ffairs, are concerned, the Official Statement did not and doesnotcontain anuntrue statement
of a material fact or omit to state a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements therein, n the
light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading; and (iii) insofar as the descriptions and statements,
including financial data, of or pertaining to other governmental bodies, nongovernmental bodies, and their respective activities
contained in the Official Statement are concerned, such descriptions, statements, and data have been obtained from sources believed
by the State to be reliable, and the State has no reason to believe that they are untrue or incomplete in any material respect.

DELIVERY AND PAYMENT

Delivery of the Bonds willbe madeby the State to DTC in book-entry only form, on oraboutthe Delivery Date shown in
the Bidding Parameters Tablesor on suchother date agreeduponby the State and the winning bidder. Payment for Bondsmust be
madein Federal Funds or other funds immediately available to the State atthe time of delivery of such Bonds. Any expenses
incurred in providing immediate funds, whether by transfer of Federal Funds or otherwise, willbe borne by the Purchaser. The cost
of printing the Bonds, if any, will be borne by the State.

CUSIP NUMBERS

Itis anticipated that CUSIP numbers will be printed on the Bonds, but neither failure to print such numbers on any Bonds
norany error with respect thereto will constitute cause for a failure orrefusal by the Purchaser to acceptdelivery of and pay for the
Bonds. The policies of the CUSIP Service Bureau will govern the assignment of specific numbers to the Bonds. The State’s
Financial Advisor will timely apply for CUSIP numbers forthe Bonds requiredby MSRB Rule G-34. All expenses in relation to
the printing of CUSIP numbers on the Bonds will be paid for by the State; provided, however, that the CUSIP Service Bureau
charge for the assignment of said numbers will be the responsibility of and will be paid for by the successful bidder.

BLUE SKY

The Statehasnottakenany action relatingto the requirements ofthe securities or “blue sky”’ laws of any jurisdiction with
respect to the offerandsale of theBonds. Certain jurisdictions may have filing requirements which must be satisfied prior to any

offer or sale of the Bonds.
CONTINUING DISCLOSURE

In order to assist bidders in complying with Rule 15¢2-12, the State will execute and deliver a written Continuing
Disclosure Undertaking to provide annual financial information, operating data andnotices of certain events. A description ofthe
Continuing Disclosure Undertaking is set forth in the Preliminary Official Statement and will be set forth in the final Official
Statement. Executionanddelivery ofthe Continuing Disclosure Undertaking will be a condition precedent to the obligation of the
winning bidder to take up and pay for the Bonds.



LEGAL OPINION

The legalopinion of Hawkins Delafield & Wood LLP, New York, New York, Bond Counselto the State, with respect to
the Bonds will be furnished in reasonable quantity to the winning bidder for the Bonds without cost to suchwinningbidder. For
the proposed form of such opinion, see the Preliminary Official Statement.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Additional information may be obtained from either the Director ofthe Division of State Government Finance ofthe State
or the State’s Financial Advisor. See the Contacts page of this Notice of Sale.

STATE OF TENNESSEE
By: Jason E. Mumpower

Comptroller of the Treasury and Secretary of the
State Funding Board, State of Tennessee



EXHIBIT A

STATE OF TENNESSEE
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS
S 12023 SERIES A

ISSUE PRICE CERTIFICATE

[NAME OF ORIGINAL PURCHASER], asthe winning bidder (the “Original Purchaser”), on behalf of
itself and other Underwriters as defined below, in connection with the sale by the State of Tennessee (the “State”) of
its$[  Jaggregate principalamount of General Obligation Bonds, 2023 Series A (the “Bonds”) maturing May
I,[ __ Jto[ ] pursuanttothe Noticeof Saledated ~ /2023,publishedon 2023 hereby
certifies as follows:

1. The Original Purchaser reasonably expected on the date the sale of the Bonds was awarded
to it (the “Sale Date”) to reoffer the Bonds to the Public at the prices and/or yields set forth in
ATTACHMENT I hereto.

2. Attached hereto as ATTACHMENT II is a copy of the bid provided by the Original
Purchaser to purchase the Bonds.

3. The Original Purchaser was not given the opportunity to review other bids prior to
submitting its bid.

4. The bid submitted by the Original Purchaser constituted a firm offer to purchase the Bonds.
5. For purposes of this certificate, the following definitions will apply:

“Public” means any person (including an individual, trust, estate, partnership, association, company or
corporation) other than an Underwriter or a Related Party, as defined below, to an Underwriters;

“Underwriter” means (i) the Original Purchaser, (ii) any person that agrees pursuant to a written contract to
participate in the initial sale of the Bonds to the Public, and (iii) any person that agrees pursuant to a written
contractdirectly orindirectly with the Original Purchaser ora person described in clause (i) of this definition
to participate in the initialsale of the Bonds to the Public, includinga member of a selling group ora party
to a retail distribution agreement participating in the initial sale of the Bonds to the Public;

“Related Party” means any entity if an Underwriter and such entity are subject, directly or indirectly, to
(i) more than 50 percent common ownership of the voting power or the total value of their stock, if both
entities are corporations (including direct ownership by one corporation of another), (ii) more than 50
percent common ownership of their capital interests or profit interests, if both entities are partnerships
(including direct ownership by one partnership of another), or (iii) more than 50 percent common
ownership of the valueof the outstanding stock of the corporation or the capital interests or profit interests
of the partnership, as applicable, if one entity is a corporation and the other entity is a partnership
(including direct ownership of the applicable stock or interests by one entity of the other);

[Balance of Page Intentionally Left Blank]
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We understand that the representations contained herein may be relied upon by the State in making certain
of the representations contained in the Tax Certificate, and we further understand that Hawkins Dela field & Wood
LLP, as bond counsel to the State, may rely upon this certificate, among other things, in providing an opinion with
respect to the exclusion from gross income of interest on the Bonds pursuantto Section 103 of the Internal Revenue
Code 0f 1986, as amended (the “Code”). The undersigned is certifying only as to facts in existence on the date hereof.
Nothingherein represents the undersigned’s interpretation of any laws; in particular the regulations under the Code,
orthe application ofany laws to these facts. Thecertifications contained hereinare notnecessarily based on personal
knowledge, butmay instead be based on either inquiry deemed adequate by the undersigned or institutional knowledge
(or both) regarding the matters set forth herein. Although certain information furnished in this Certificate has been
derived from other Underwriters who may be considered Related Parties to the Original Purchaser and cannot be
independently verified by us, we have no reason to believe it to be untrue in any material respect.

Very truly yours,

[NAME OF ORIGINAL PURCHASER]

By:
Name:
Title:
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Attachment I
REOFFERING PRICES AND YIELDS OF MATURITIES TO THE PUBLIC

[List Maturities, Prices and Yields]
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ATTACHMENT II

COPY OF WINNING BID
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[NAME OF ORIGINAL PURCHASER], as the original purchaser (the “Original Purchaser”) of the $

EXHIBIT B

STATE OF TENNESSEE
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS
] I 12023 SERIES A

ISSUE PRICE CERTIFICATE

aggregate principal amount General Obligation Bonds, 2023 Series A (the “Bonds”) issued by the State of Tennessee (the “Issuer”),

hereby certifies that:

)

(it)

(i)

asof ,2023 (the “Sale Date”), all of each Maturity, as defined below, of the Bonds
has been the subject of a bona fide offering to the Public, as defined below, at the prices (the “Initial
Offering Price”) shown on the final pricing wire in respect of the Bonds dated (the “Final Pricing

Wire”) attached hereto as Schedule A;

as of the Sale Date, except for the Maturities [PLEASE IDENTIFY UNSOLD/UNDERSOLD
MATURITIES] (the “Unsold Maturities”), shown on Schedule B attached hereto, the price at which
the first 10 percent of each Maturity of the Bonds was sold by the Underwriters (which includes the
Original Purchaser) to the Public is set forth on such Schedule B;

following the Sale Date, with respect to each Unsold Maturity, the Underwriters, as defined below, in
compliance with the applicable provisions described in the Noticeof Sale,dated ,2023,
relating to the Bonds (the “Notice of Sale”), have neither offered nor sold the bonds comprising any
such Unsold Maturity to the Public at a price that is higher or yield lower thanthe Initial Offering Price
duringthe period starting onthe Sale Dateandending onthe earlier of the following: (a) the close of the
fifth business day after the Sale Date, or (b) the date on which at least 10 percent of the bonds of the

Unsold Maturity has been sold to the Public at or below the Initial Offering Price.

For purposes of this certificate the following definitions apply:

“Public” means any person (including an individual, trust, estate, partnership, association, company or
corporation) other than an Underwriter or a Related Party, as defined below, to an Underwriter;

“Underwriter” means (i) the “Original Purchaser”, (ii) any person that agrees pursuant to a written
contract to participate in the initial sale of the Bonds to the Public, and (iii) any person that agrees
pursuanttoa written contractdirectly or indirectly with a person described in clause (ii) of this definition
to participate in the initial sale of the Bonds to the Public, including a member of a selling group or a
party to a retail distribution agreement participating in the initial sale of the Bonds to the Public;

“Related Party” means any entity if an Underwriter and such entity are subject, directly orindirectly,
to (i) more than 50 percent common ownership of the voting power or the total value of their stock, if
both entities are corporations (including direct ownership by one corporation of another), (i)) more than
50 percent common ownership oftheir capital interests or profit interests, if both entities are partnerships
(including direct ownership by one partnership of another), or (iii) more than 50 percent common
ownership of the value of the outstanding stock of the corporation or the capital interests or profit
interests ofthe partnership, as applicable, if one entity is a corporation and the other entity is a partnership

(including direct ownership of the applicable stock or interests by one entity of the other);

“Maturity” shall refer to Bonds with the same maturity date, interest rate and credit terms.



[Balance of Page Intentionally Left Blank]



We understand that the representations contained herein may be relied upon by the Issuer in making certain of
the representations contained in the Tax Certificate, and we further understand that Hawkins Delafield & Wood LLP, as bond
counselto thelssuer, may rely uponthis certificate, among other things, in providing an opinion with respectto the exclusion from
gross income of interest on the Bonds pursuant to Section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”).
The undersigned is certifying only as to facts in existence on the date hereof. Nothing herein represents the undersigned’s
interpretation of any laws; in particular the regulations under the Code, or the application of any laws to these facts. The
certifications contained herein are notnecessarily based on personal knowledge, butmay instead bebased on either inquiry deemed
adequate by the undersigned or institutional knowledge (or both) regarding the matters set forth herein. Although certain
information furnished in this Certificate has been derived from other Underwriters and cannot be independently verified by us, we
have no reason to believe it to be untrue in any material respect.

Very truly yours,

[NAME OF ORIGINAL PURCHASER]
By:

Name;
Title:




Schedule A

FINAL PRICING WIRE



Schedule B
MATURITIES ACTUALLY SOLD AS OF THE SALE DATE
[List Maturity and Sale Price]
AND
UNSOLD MATURITIES

[List Maturity]






APPENDIX F

NOTICE OF SALE

Dated September 10,2019

State of Tennessee
General Obligation Bonds

$98,550,000" 2019 Series A
$28,000,000° 2019 Series B (Federally Taxable)

Electronic Bids, as Described Herein
Will Be Accepted Until

9:15 a.m. Central Time"™"
for Series A Bonds

and

9:45 a.m. Central Time"™"
for Series B Bonds

on September 17,2019

* Subject to change both before the sale date and time, and after award, as provided herein.
ok Subject to change before the sale date and time as provided herein.
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CONTACTS
Issuer

State of Tennessee

Sandra Thompson

Director, Office of State and Local Finance
Cordell Hull State Office Building, 4th Floor
425 Fifth Avenue North

Nashville, TN 37243-1402

Cindy Liddell

Program Accountant, Office of State and Local Finance
Cordell Hull State Office Building, 4th Floor

425 Fifth Avenue North

Nashville, TN 37243-1402

Michael Mercer

Program Accountant, Office of State and Local Finance
Cordell Hull State Office Building, 4th Floor

425 Fifth Avenue North

Nashville, TN 37243-1402

Bond Counsel to the Issuer

Hawkins Delafield & Wood LLP
Steven I. Turner

7 World Trade Center

250 Greenwich Street

New York, NY 10007

Financial Advisor

PFM Financial Advisors LLC
Lauren Lowe

530 Oak Court Drive, Suite 160
Memphis, TN 38117-3722

BiDCOMP™/PARITY®

Customer Service

i-Deal Prospectus

Customer Service
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(615)747-5369
Fax: (615)741-5986
sandithompson@cot.tn.gov

(615)747-5348
Fax: (615)741-5986
cindy.liddell@cot.tn.gov

(615)736-6056
Fax: (615)741-5986
michael.mercer@cot.tn.gov

(212) 820-9462
Fax: (212)820-9615

sturner@hawkins.com

(901) 682-8356
Fax: (901) 682-8386
lowel@pfm.com

(212)849-5021

(212) 849-5024



NOTICE OF SALE

Dated September 10,2019

State of Tennessee
General Obligation Bonds
$98,550,000° 2019 Series A

$28,000,000° 2019 Series B (Federally Taxable)

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that electronic bids will be received at the place, on the date and until the
respective times specified below for the purchase of all, but not less than all, of (i) the $98,550,000" General
Obligation Bonds, 2019 Series A (the “Series A Bonds”)and/or (ii) separately, the $28,000,000" General Obligation
Bonds, 2019 Series B (Federally Taxable) (the “Series B Bonds” and, together with the Series A Bonds, the

“Bonds™), to be issued by the State of Tennessee (the “State™).
DATE: Tuesday, September 17,2019™

TIME: Series A Bonds: 9:15 a.m. Central Time"”
Series B Bonds: 9:45 a.m. Central Time""

ELECTRONIC BIDS: May be submitted only through PARITY® as described below.
No other form of bid or provider of electronic bidding services willbe accepted.

The Bonds are more particularly described below and in the Preliminary Official Statement dated
September 10,2019 relating to the Bonds (the “Preliminary Official Statement”), available at the i-Deal Prospectus
website, www.i-dealprospectus.com. For assistance in obtaining the Preliminary Official Statement from this
website, contact i-Deal Prospectus' customer service or PFM Financial Advisors LLC. See the Contacts page ofthis
Notice of Sale.

Prior to the sale date and times, the State reserves the right to change the aggregate or annual principal
amounts of the Bondsorthe terms of the Bonds, and to postpone the sale to a later dateortime orto cancel the sale.
Notice of a change, postponement or cancellation willbe announced via Thomson Municipal News at the website
address www.tm3.comnot laterthan 12:00 Noon, Central Time, onthe day preceding the bid openingor, in the case
of a cancellation, at any time prior to the receiptof bids. Ifthe sale is postponed, a later public sale may be held on
such date andatsuchtime as shallbe announcedatleastforty-eight (48) hours in advance via Thomson Municipal
News at the websiteaddress www.tm3.com. Consideration ofthebids and the award ofthe Bonds willbe completed
within six (6) hours afterthe bids are received. The State also reserves theright to adjust the principalamountof the
Bondsoffered and to cancel the sale of the Bonds after the bids are opened as further described herein under
“ADJUSTMENTS OF AMOUNTS AND MATURITIES AFTER AWARD”.

[Bidding Parameters Tables follow]

Subject to change both before the sale date and time, and after award, as provided herein.
Subject to change before the sale date and time as provided herein.

ok
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http://www.i-dealprospectus.com/

$98,550,000 SERTES A BONDS BIDDING PARAMETERS TABLE"

Page Page
Description No. Description No.
DATES REDEMPTION
Dated Date: Delivery Date 4 Optional On or after September 1,
Delivery Date: On or about 2027 at 100% 4
October 3,2019 4,12 | Mandatory: Each sinking fund
INTEREST installment date for term
Interest Payment Dates: March 1 and September 1 4 bonds at 100% 4
First Interest Payment: March 1,2020 4
Coupon Multiples: 1/8 or 1/20 of 1% 9 PRICING
Maximum Coupon: 5.00% 9 | Max. Reoffering Price:
Minimum Coupon: 5.00% on and after 9 Each Maturity: N.A. 9
September 1,2028 9 Aggregate: 130.0% 9
Maximum TIC: 5.00% Min. Reoffering Price:
PRINCIPAL Each Maturity: 98.5% 9
Adjustments-Increases: 10 Aggregate: 100% 9
Each Maturity: +25% 10 PROCEDURAL
Aggregate: +15% Bid Submission: PARITY® only 3,8
Adjustments-Decreases: 10 | All or None?: Yes 9
Each Maturity: -20% 10 | Bid Award Method:  Lowest TIC 9
Aggregate: -15% Bid Confirmation: Fax signed PARITY"
Term Bonds: One or more on or after screen 8
September 1,2028 Award of Bid: Within 6 hours 1,9
(sinking fund instaliments Good Faith Deposit: ~ $990,000 10
must equalamortization) | 4
PRINCIPAL MATURITIES
Year Principal Year Principal
(September 1) Amount™ (September 1) Amount™
2020 NC $4,925,000 2030 T $4,930,000
2021 NC 4,930,000 2031 T 4,925,000
2022 NC 4,930,000 2032 T 4,925,000
2023 NC 4,930,000 2033 T 4,925,000
2024 NC 4,930,000 2034 T 4,925,000
2025 NC 4,930,000 2035T 4,925,000
2026 NC 4,930,000 2036 T 4,925,000
2027 NC 4,930,000 2037 T 4,925,000
2028 T 4,930,000 2038 T 4,925,000
2029 T 4,930,000 2039 T 4,925,000
NC: Non-callable.
T:  May be designated as sinking fund installments for term maturity or maturities.

*  If numerical (excluding page numbers) or date references contained in the body of this Notice of Sale conflict with the Bidding
Parameters Table, the body of this Notice of Sale shall control. Consult the body of this Notice of Sale for a detailed explanation of
the items contained in the Bidding Parameters Table, including interpretation of such items and methodologies used to determine

such items.

**  Subject to change both before the sale date and time, and after award, as provided herein.
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$28,000,000 SERTES B BONDS BIDDING PARAMETERS TABLE"

Page Page
Description No. Description No.
DATES REDEMPTION
Dated Date: Delivery Date 4 Optional On or after September 1,
Delivery Date: On or about 2029 at 100%; Prior to 4
October 3,2019 4,12 September 1,2029at the
INTEREST Make-Whole

Interest Payment Dates: March 1 and September 1 4 Redemption Price 4

First Interest Payment: March 1,2020 4 Mandatory: Each sinking fund

Coupon Multiples: 1/8,1/20 0r1/100 of 1% 9 installment date for term

Maximum Coupon: 5.00% 9 bonds at 100%

Minimum Coupon: N/A 9

Maximum TIC: 5.00% 9 PRICING

PRINCIPAL Max. Reoffering Price:

Adjustments-Increases: Each Maturity: No Limit 9
Each Maturity: +25% 10 Aggregate: 120.0% 9
Aggregate: +15% 10 | Min. Reoffering Price:

Adjustments-Decreases: Each Maturity: 99.75% 9
Each Maturity: -20% 10 Aggregate: 99.0% 9
Aggregate: -15% 10 PROCEDURAL

Term Bonds: One or more on or after Bid Submission: PARITY® only 3,8

September 1,2030 All or None?: Yes 9
(sinking fund Bid Award Method:  Lowest TIC 9
installments must equal Bid Confirmation: Fax signed PARITY®
amortization) 4 screen 8
Award of Bid: Within 6 hours 1,9
Good Faith Deposit: ~ $280,000 10
PRINCIPAL MATURITIES
Year Principal Year Principal
(September 1) Amount™ (September 1) Amount™
2020 NC $1,400,000 2030 T $1,400,000
2021 NC 1,400,000 2031 T 1,400,000
2022 NC 1,400,000 2032 T 1,400,000
2023 NC 1,400,000 2033 T 1,400,000
2024 NC 1,400,000 2034 T 1,400,000
2025 NC 1,400,000 2035T 1,400,000
2026 NC 1,400,000 2036 T 1,400,000
2027 NC 1,400,000 2037 T 1,400,000
2028 NC 1,400,000 2038 T 1,400,000
2029 NC 1,400,000 2039 T 1,400,000
NC: Non-callable.
T:  May be designated as sinking fund installments for term maturity or maturities.

*  If numerical (excluding page numbers) or date references contained in the body of this Notice of Sale conflict with the Bidding
Parameters Table, the body of this Notice of Sale shall control. Consult the body of this Notice of Sale for a detailed explanation of
the items contained in the Bidding Parameters Table, including interpretation of such items and methodologies used to determine

such items.

** Subject to change both before the sale date and time, and after award, as provided herein.
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THE BONDS

General

The Bonds willbe datedas ofthe Dated Dateshown on therespective Bidding Parameters Tables, will be
issued in denominations of $5,000 or integral multiples thereof, and will bear interest from their date at the annual
rate orrates specified by the winning bidder, subject to the limitations specified below, payable as shown on the
respective Bidding Parameters Table. Interestpayable on the Bonds will be computed on the basis of a 360-day
yearoftwelve (12) 30-daymonths. The Bonds must meet thecriteria shown onthe respective Bidding Parameters

Table on a maturity and aggregate basis.

The Bonds willmature on the month and day, in the years and in the principal amounts shown on the
respective Bidding Parameters Table as either serial bonds or as term bonds with sinking fund installments as
described under “Designation of Term Bonds; Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption” below, subject to change
before thesale date andtimeas provided above and afteraward as provided in “ADJUSTMENTS OF AMOUNTS
AND MATURITIES AFTER AWARD” below.

Designation of Term Bonds; Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption

Bidders forthe Series A Bonds orthe Series B Bonds may, at their option, combine consecutive principal
amounts payable on orafterthe date indicated on the respective Bidding Parameters Table as maturities that may be
designated as sinking fund installments for one or more term bonds bearing interestat the same rate. Eachsuchterm
bond will be subjectto mandatory sinking fund redemption commencing on theprincipalpayment date of the first
yearwhich has been combined to form such tetm bond and continuing on theprincipal payment date in each year
therea fter until the stated maturity date of such term bond, which will be the last year combined to form such term
bond. The amount redeemed in any year will be equalto the principal amount for such year as set forth in the
amortization schedule for such Bonds shown in the respective Bidding Parameters Table, subject to change before
the saledate andtimeas provided aboveand after award as provided in “ADJUSTMENTS OF AMOUNTS AND
MATURITIES AFTER AWARD” below. Bonds to be redeemed in any year by mandatory sinking fund
redemption will be redeemedatparand willbe selected from among the Bonds ofthe sameseries and maturity, by
lot in the case of the Series A Bonds and pro-rata in the case of the Series B Bonds.

Optional Redemption

Series A Bonds. The Series A Bonds maturingon orafter September 1, 2028 may be redeemed prior to
theirrespective maturity dates atthe option ofthe State onand after September 1, 2027, in whole or in part at any
time at the redemption price of 100% of the principal amount of the Series A Bonds or portions thereof to be
redeemed, together with accrued interestthereon to the redemptiondate. Series A Bonds which are designated to be
term bonds as described in “Designation of Term Bonds; Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption” above shall be
subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption as described therein.

Series B Bonds. The Series B Bonds maturingon orafter September 1,2030 may be redeemed prior to
theirrespective maturity dates atthe option ofthe State onand after September 1, 2029, in whole or in part at any
time at the redemption price of 100% of the principal amount of the Series B Bonds or portions thereof to be
redeemed, together with accrued interestthereon to the redemptiondate. Series B Bonds which are designatedto be
term bonds as described in “Designation of Term Bonds; Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption” above shall be
subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption as described therein.

Prior to September 1,2029, the Series B Bonds may beredeemed priorto theirrespective maturity dates, at
the optionof the State, in whole orin partatany time at the Make-Whole Redemption Price (as defined below).

The “Make-Whole Redemption Price” of any Series B Bonds to be redeemed is an amount equal to the
greater of (i) 100% of the principal amount of such Series B Bonds or (ii) the sum of the present value of the
remaining scheduled payments of principaland interestto thematurity date of such Series B Bonds not including
any portionof those payments of interest accrued and unpaid as ofthe date on which such Series B Bonds are to be
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redeemed, discounted on a semiannual basis to the date on which such Series B Bonds are to beredeemed, assuming
a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months, atthe Treasury Rate (as defined below) plus 15 basis points;

plus, in each case, accrued and unpaid interest on such Series B Bonds on such redemption date.

"Treasury Rate" means, with respect to any redemptiondate forany particular Series B Bond, the greater
of:

(1) the yield to maturity as of such redemption date of the United States Treasury
securities with a constant maturity (as compiled and published in the most recent Federal Reserve
Statistical Release H.15 (519) thathas become publicly available at least two business days prior to the
redemption date (excluding inflation indexed securities) (or, if such Statistical Release is no longer
published, any publicly available source of similarmarketdata)) most nearly equal to the period from the
redemption date to maturity; provided, however, that if the period from the redemption date to maturity is
less than one year, the weekly average yield on actually traded United States Treasury securities adjusted to
a constantmaturity ofone year will be used; allas will be determined by an independent accounting firm,
investment banking firm or financial advisor retained by the State at the State’s expense and such
determination shall be conclusive and binding on the owners of the Series B Bonds, or

(i) the rate perannum, expressed as a percentage of the principal amount, equal to the
semiannual equivalentyield to maturity or interpolated maturity ofthe Comparable Treasury Issue (defined
below), assuming thatthe Comparable Treasury Issue is purchased on theredemption date fora price equal
to the Comparable Treasury Price (defined below), as calculated by the Designated Investment Banker
(defined below).

“Comparable Treasury [ssue” means, with respect to any redemption date fora particular Series B
Bond, the United States Treasury security or securities selected by the Designated Investment Banker that has an
actual orinterpolated maturity comparable to the remaining average life of the Series B Bond to be redeemed.

“Comparable Treasury Price” means, with respect to any redemption date fora particular Series B
Bond, (i) if the Designated Investment Banker receives at least four Reference Treasury Dealer Quotations (defined
below), the average of such quotations for such redemption date, a fter excluding the highest and lowest Reference
Treasury Dealer Quotations, or (i) if the Designated Investment Banker obtains fewer than four Reference Treasury
Dealer Quotations, the average of all such quotations.

"Designated Investment Banker" means one ofthe Reference Treasury Dealers (as defined below)
appointed by the State.

"Reference Treasury Dealer" means each of the four firms, specified by the State from time to
time, that are primary United States government securities dealers in the City of New York (each a “Primary
Treasury Dealer”); provided, however, that if any of them ceases to be a Primary Treasury Dealer, the State will
substitute another Primary Treasury Dealer.

"Reference Treasury Dealer Quotations" means, with respect to each Reference Treasury Dealer
and any redemptiondate fora particular Series B Bond, the average, as determined by the Designated Investment
Banker, of thebid and asked prices forthe Comparable Treasury Issue (expressed in eachcase as a percentage of its
principalamount) quoted in writing to the Designated Investment Banker by such Reference Treasury Dealer at
3:30 P.M., New York City time, on the third business day preceding such redemption date.

The redemption price of such Series B Bonds to be redeemed will be determined by an independent
accounting firm, investment banking firm or financial advisorretained by the State to calculate such redemption
price. The State may conclusively rely on the determination of such redemption price by such independent
accounting firm, investment banking firm or financial advisor and will not be liable for such reliance.



AUTHORITY AND SECURITY

The Bonds are beingissued under and pursuantto the Constitutionand laws ofthe State, including Title 9,
Chapter9, Tennessee Code Annotated, allas more fully described in the Preliminary Official Statement relating to
the Bonds. The Bonds will be direct generalobligations of the State for the paymentof which, as to both principal
and interest, the full faithand credit ofthe State is pledged. See the Preliminary Official Statementfora description
of additional security for the Bonds and other related matters.

FORM AND PAYMENT

The Bonds willbe issued in fully registered book-entry only form, and a bond certificate for each maturity
of each series will be issued to The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”), registered in the name of its nominee,
Cede & Co.,and immobilized in its custody. A book-entrysystem will be employed to evidence ownership of the
Bonds, with transfers of ownership effected on the records of DTC and its participants pursuant to rules and
procedures adopted by DTC and its participants. Principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds will be
payable by the State to DTC orits nominee as registered owner of the Bonds. Transfer of principal, premium, if
any, and interest payments to the beneficial owners by participants of DTC will be the responsibility of such
participants and othernominees of beneficial owners. The State will not be responsible or liable for payments by
DTC to its participants orby DTC participants to beneficial owners or for maintaining, supervising or reviewing the
records maintained by DTC, its participants or persons acting through such participants. Beneficial owners will be
entitled to receive Bond certificates only under the limited circumstances described in the Preliminary Official
Statement.

BIDDING PROCEDURE; CONFIRMATION OF BID

Only electronic bids submitted via PARITY® will be accepted. No other provider of electronic bidding
services will be accepted. No bid delivered in personor by facsimile directly to the State will be accepted. Bidders
are permitted to submit bids for (i) the Series A Bonds, and/or (ii) separately the Series B Bonds during the
respective bidding time period, provided they are eligible to bid as described under “ELIGIBILITY TO BID”.

Each electronic bid submitted via PARITY® for the purchase of the Bonds shall be deemed an offer to
purchase such Bonds in responseto this Notice of Sale, and shallbe bindinguponthe bidderas if madeby a signed,
sealed bid delivered to the State. The winning bidder must confirm the details of such bid by a signed PARITY®
Bid Form delivered by fax to (615) 741-5986 no later thanone hour after being notified by the State of being the
winningbidder, the original of which mustbe received by the Director of State and Local Finance ofthe State on the
followingbusiness dayat the address shown on the Contacts page of this Notice of Sale. Failure to deliver this
confirmation does not relieve the bidder of its obligation to complete the purchase of the Bonds bid for.

ELECTRONIC BIDDING

The use of PARITY® electronic bidding shallbe at thebidder’s risk and expense, and the State shall have
no liability with respect thereto. The Stateis using electronic biddingas a communications medium and PARITY®
isnot acting as the State’s agent.

If any provisions ofthis Notice of Sale conflict with information provided by PARITY®, this Notice of Sak
shallcontrol. The Stateisnot bound by any advice or determination of PARITY® as to whether any bid complies
with the terms of this Notice of Sale. The time as maintained by PARITY® shall constitute the official time with
respect to all bids submitted.

By submittinga bid for Bonds, a prospective bidder represents and warrants to the State that such bidder’s
bid forthe purchase ofsuch Bonds is submitted forand on behalf of such prospectivebidder by an officer or agent
who is duly authorized to bind the prospective bidderto a legal, valid and enforceable contract for the purchase of
such Bonds.
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ELIGIBILITY TO BID

The State does not have a registration requirement for prospective bidders. However, bidders submitting
electronic bids must be contracted customers ofthe BIDCOMP™ Competitive Bidding System and should promptly
contact PARITY® directly for informationabout PARITY®, and BIDCOMP™ including their rules and fees, and
becominga contracted customer. (See the Contacts page ofthis Notice of Sale.) By contracting with BIDCOMP™,
a prospective bidder is not obligated to submit a bid in connection with the sale.

ESTABLISHED INDUSTRY REPUTATION REQUIRED OF BIDDERS

By submitting a bid for the Bonds, each bidder certifies ithas an established industry reputation for
underwriting new issuances of municipalbonds. The Statewill not accept bids from firms withoutan established
industry reputation for underwriting new issuances of municipal bonds.

CONTENTS OF BID, INTEREST RATES, BID PRICES AND REOFFERING PRICES

Bidders may bid for (i) the Series A Bonds, and/or (ii) by separate bid, for the Series B Bonds. Bidders
must bid forallmaturities of any Bonds ofa Series Bid for. Eachbid mustspecify (1)anannualrate of interest for
each maturity of Series A Bonds or Series B Bonds bid for, (2) the reoffering price or yield of each such maturity
and (3) a dollar purchase price for all of the Bonds of a Series Bid for.

Each bid forthe Bonds must meet the criteria shown on the respective Bidding Parameters Table. Any
number of interest rates may be named, but the Bonds of the same series and maturity must bear interestatthe same
single rate.

As promptly as reasonably possible after bids forthe respective Bonds are received, the State will notify
the winningbidder for such Bonds thatit is the apparentwinner. Uponsuchnotice, suchbidder must confirmto the
State the initial reoffering prices and Underwriter’s discounts by maturity forthe Bonds bid for. Reoffering prices
must meet the criteria shown on the respective Bidding Parameters Table. The initial reoffering prices and
Underwriter’s discount for each maturity confirmed to the State will be used by the State to calculate the final
annual principal amounts and will be included in the final Official Statement. See “ADJUSTMENTS OF
AMOUNTS AND MATURITIES AFTER AWARD” below. The State will not include in the final Official
Statement an “NRO” (“not reoffered”) designation with respect to any maturity of the Bonds.

Reoffering prices for the Bonds also must be confirmed as described under “ESTABLISHMENT OF
ISSUE PRICE FOR THE SERIES A BONDS” below.

Each winningbidder (a “Purchaser”) will be responsible to the State in all respects for the accuracy and
completeness of information provided by such Purchaser with respect to such reoffering,

AWARD

The State expects to award the Series A Bonds and the Series B Bonds to the respective winning bidder
within six (6) hours of the respective bid opening. Bids may not be withdrawn prior to the award. Unless all bids
for the Series A Bonds or the Series B Bonds are rejected, the respective Bonds will be awarded to the bidder
therefor whose bid complies with this Notice of Sale and results in the lowest true interest cost (“TIC”) to the State.
The TIC (expressedas an annualrate) will be determined for each ofthe Series A Bonds andthe Series B Bonds as
beingtwice the semi-annual discountrate, compounded semi-annually, which, when applied against principal of and
interest on the respective Bonds as due, will equalthe sum ofsuch discounted payments to the aggregate purchase
price for such Bonds, as provided by the respective bidder on the PARITY® Bid Form. The TIC shallbe calculated
from the Dated Date of the Bonds, which for this purpose shall be the delivery date specified in the Bidding
Parameters Tables. If two ormore bidders offerto purchase the Series A Bonds orthe Series B Bonds at the same
lowest TIC (roundedto six (6) places afterthedecimal point), such Bonds may be apportioned between such bidders
if it is agreeable to each of such bidders, and if apportionment is not acceptable to such bidders, the State reserves
the right to award such Bonds to one of such bidders. There will be no auction.
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ADJUSTMENTS OF AMOUNTS AND MATURITIES AFTER AWARD

The aggregateprincipal amountof the Bonds of each series, and the principal amount of each maturity
thereof, are subject toadjustmentby the State afterthe award of such Bonds to the winning bidder. Changes to be
madeafterthe award will be communicated to the winning bidder therefor directly by 10:00a.m., Central Time, on
the day following the sale.

The State may increase or decrease theaggregate principalamount of the Series A Bonds or the Series B
Bonds, orthe aggregate principal amount of any maturity thereof, by no more than the individual maturity or
aggregate principal percentages shownin the respective Bidding Parameters Table from the respectiveamounts bid
on. The State will consult with the winning bidder for the respective Bonds before adjusting the amount of any
maturity of such Bonds; however, the Statereserves the sole right to make adjustments within the limits described
above.

Adjustments within the limits described above will not relieve the Purchasers from their obligation to
purchase all of the respective Bonds, assumingall other conditions of this Notice of Sale have been satisfied by the
State.

Inthe eventthat the principal amount of any maturity of the Series A Bonds or the Series B Bonds is
revised afterthe award, the interest rate and reoffering price for each maturity and the Underwriter’s discounton the
Series A Bonds orthe Series B Bonds, as the case maybe, shallbe held constant. The “Underwriter’s discount” for
each series of the Bonds shall be the difference between the dollar purchase price submitted by the bidder for the
purchase ofallof the Bonds ofsuchseries andthetotaldollarprice atwhich allof the Bonds of such series will be
offeredto thepublic, calculated from information provided by the bidder, divided by the number of such Bonds.
(The number of Bonds equals the par amount of Bonds divided by 1,000.)

RIGHT OF REJECTION

The State reserves the right, in its discretion, to reject any and all bids and to waive any irregularity or
informality in any bid.

RIGHT OF CANCELLATION

The winning bidder forany Bonds willhave theright, atits option, to cancel its obligation to purchase if
the State fails to deliver such Bonds within 60 days from the dateof sale, and in such event the winning bidder will
be entitled to the return ofan amount equal to the good faith deposit but without any additional liability to the State.

GOOD FAITH DEPOSIT

The winningbidder for the Series A Bonds and for the Series B Bonds is required to submit the good faith
amount shown in the respective Bidding Parameters Table (the “Good Faith Amount™) to the State in the form of a
wire transferin federal funds, as instructed by the State’s Financial Advisor, not later than two hours a fter the verbal
award ismade. If suchwire transfer deposit is not received by the State by that time, the bid of such apparent
winningbidder may be rejected and the State may directthe nextlowest bidder(s) for therespective Bonds to submit
a good faith deposit and thereafter may award the sale of such Bonds to them. The cover bidder shall hold its bid
constant untiltwo hours a fter the initial verbalaward is made or, if earlier, the time the apparent winning bidder’s
good faith deposit is received, as advised by the State’s Financial Advisor.

In the event that the original apparent winning bidder does not comply with the good faith deposit
requirements and another bidder complies with the good faith deposit requirements as described herein, or in the
event no bidder complies with the good faith deposit requirements as described herein, the original apparent winning
bidderis obligated to promptly payto the State, as liquidated damages for its failure to timely comply with the terms
of'this Notice of Sale and of'its bid, an amount equal to the greater of (i) the difference between the trueinterestcost
of the original apparent winner and of the ultimate winner, or (ii) the Good Faith Amount, plus in each case
reasonable attorney’s fees and expenses. Submission of a bid to purchase Bonds shall constitute
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acknowledgement and acceptance of the terms of the good faith deposit requirements, including liquidated
damages, as provided herein.

The good faith deposits so wired will be deposited and held by the State untilthe delivery ofthe respective
Bonds, atwhich timeeach good faith deposit willbe applied a gainst the purchase price of the respective Bonds or
such good faith deposit will be retained by the Stateas partial liquidated damages in the event of the failure of the
winningbidderto take up and pay for such Bonds in compliance with the terms ofthe Noticeof Sale and of its bid.
No interest on the good faith deposits will be paid by the State. The balance of the purchase price must be wired in
federal funds to the account specified by or on behalfof the Funding Board, simultaneously with delivery of such
Bonds.

ESTABLISHMENT OF ISSUE PRICE FOR THE SERIES A BONDS

Ifthe State receives atleastthree (3) bona fide bids for the Series A Bonds, the issue price of the Series A
Bondsshallbe established pursuant to Treasury Regulation Section 1.148-1(f)(2)(iii) based on the reasonably
expected initial offering price to the public as of the sale date. The Purchaser of the Series A Bonds agrees to
executethe Issue Price Certificate attached hereto as Exhibit A not later than 2:00 P.M., Central Time, on the
business day priorto thedateof delivery ofthe Series A Bonds (by delivery of manually signed hard copy, or by
electronic transmission confirmed with manually signed hard copy delivered the following day), with such
modifications as may be appropriate ornecessary in the reasonable judgment of the State or Bond Counsel. The
Purchaser of the Series A Bonds agrees to take such actions, both before and a fterthe award of the Series A Bonds,

as shall be necessary to enable it to satisfy the requirements of such Issue Price Certificate.

Ifthe State doesnotreceiveatleastthree (3) bona fidebids for each series of the Series A Bonds, the issue
price of the Series A Bonds shallbe established pursuantto Treasury Regulation Section 1.148-1(f)(2)(ii) (the “hold-
the-price” rule). The Purchaser of the Series A Bonds agrees to execute the Issue Price Certificate attached hereto as
Exhibit B not laterthan2:00 P.M., Central Time, on the business day prior to the date of delivery of the Series A
Bonds (by delivery of manually signed hard copy, orby electronic transmission confirmed with manually signed
hard copy delivered the following day), with such modifications as may be appropriate or necessary in the
reasonable judgment of the State or Bond Counsel. The Purchaser of the Series A Bonds agrees to take such
actions, bothbefore and after the award of the Series A Bonds, as shall be necessary to enable it to satisfy the
requirements of such Issue Price Certificate.

In either event, the Purchaser of the Series A Bonds also will be required to provide to the State and Bond
Counsel such additional information as may be requested by Bond Counsel.

ADDITIONAL RESPONSIBILITIES OF PURCHASERS

Each Purchaseragrees tomake a bona fide public offeringof all of the Bonds bid for, and represents that it
shallreoffer such Bonds in compliance with allapplicable securities laws of the jurisdictions in which such Bonds
are offered.

PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT AND FINAL OFFICIAL STATEMENT

The Preliminary Official Statement comprises the “deemed final” Official Statement for purposes of
Rule 15¢2-12 ofthe Securities and Exchange Commissionand, when amended to reflect, among other things, the
actualamount ofthe Bonds sold, the interest rates specified by the winning bidders and the prices oryields at which
the winning bidders will reoffer the Bonds to the public, will constitute a “Final Official Statement” (as defined in
Rule 15¢2-12) with respect to the Bonds. No more thanseven business days afterthe date ofthe sale, the State will
provide without cost to the winning bidder for the Series A Bonds up to 25 copies of the final Official Statement and
to the winningbidder forthe Series B Bondsupto 25 copies ofthe final Official Statement. If Bonds are awarded
to a syndicate, the State will deliver final Official Statements only to theentity submitting the successful bid, which
shallbe responsible for distributing copies of the final Official Statement among the participating underwriters.



The State will deliver to the Purchasers of the Bonds certificates ofthe State, dated the date of delivery of
the Bonds, stating that as of thesale date and atthe time the Bonds are delivered, (i) the information and statements,
including financial statements, of or pertaining to the State contained in the Official Statement were and are correct
in allmaterialrespects; (ii) insofar as the State and its affairs, including its financial affairs, are concerned, the
Official Statementdid notand does not contain anuntrue statement ofa material fact or omit to state a material fact
required to be stated therein ornecessary to make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under
which they were made, notmisleading; and (iii) insofaras thedescriptions and statements, including financial data,
of orpertainingto other governmental bodies, nongovernmental bodies, and their respective activities contained in
the Official Statement are concerned, such descriptions, statements, and data have been obtained from sources
believed by the State tobe reliable, and the State has noreasonto believe that they are untrue or incomplete in any

material respect.
DELIVERY AND PAYMENT

Delivery of the Bonds willbe made by the State to DTC in book-entry only form, on orabout the Delivery
Date shownin the Bidding Parameters Tables oron such other date agreed upon by the State and the respective
winningbidder. Paymentfor Bonds mustbe made in Federal Funds or other funds immediately available to the
State atthe time of delivery of such Bonds. Any expenses incurred in providing immediate funds, whether by
transfer of Federal Funds or otherwise, will be borne by the Purchaser. The cost of printing the Bonds, if any, will
be borne by the State.

CUSIP NUMBERS

Itis anticipated that CUSIP numbers will be printed on the Bonds, butneither failure to printsuchnumbers
on any Bonds norany error with respectthereto will constitute cause for a failure or refusal by the Purchasers to
acceptdeliveryofand pay for the respective Bonds. The policies of the CUSIP Service Bureau will govern the
assignmentof specific numbers to the Bonds. The State’s Financial Advisor will timely apply for CUSIP numbers
forthe Bonds required by MSRB Rule G-34 but therespective Purchasers shall be responsible for the payment of
the CUSIP Service Bureau charge fortheassignment of said numbers. All expenses in relation to the printing of
CUSIP numbers on the Bonds will be paid for by the State.

BLUE SKY

The State hasnot taken any action relating to the requirements ofthe securities or “blue sky” laws of any
jurisdiction with respect to theofferand sale of theBonds. Certain jurisdictions may have filing requirements which

must be satisfied prior to any offer or sale of the Bonds.
CONTINUING DISCLOSURE

In order to assist bidders in complying with Rule 15¢2-12, the State will execute and deliver a written
Continuing Disclosure Undertaking to provide annual financial information, operating data and notices of certain
events. Adescriptionofthe Continuing Disclosure Undertaking is set forth in the Preliminary Official Statement
and will be set forth in the final Official Statement. Execution and delivery of the Continuing Disclosure
Undertaking will be a condition precedent to the obligation ofthe winning bidderto take upand pay for the Bonds.

LEGAL OPINION

The legalopinion of Hawkins Delafield & Wood LLP, New York, New York, Bond Counsel to the State,
with respect to the Bonds will be furnished in reasonable quantity to the winning bidders for the Bonds without cost

to such winning bidders. For the proposed form of such opinion, see the Preliminary Official Statement.



ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Additional information may be obtained from either the Director of the Office of State and Local Finance
of the State or the State’s Financial Advisor. See the Contacts page of this Notice of Sale.

STATE OF TENNESSEE

By: Justin P. Wilson
Comptroller of the Treasury and Secretary of the
State Funding Board, State of Tennessee
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EXHIBIT A

STATE OF TENNESSEE
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS
. | SERIES 2019A

ISSUE PRICE CERTIFICATE
[October 3,2019]

[NAME OF ORIGINAL PURCHASER], as the winning bidder (the “Original Purchaser”), on behalf of
itself and other Underwriters as defined below, in connection with the sale by the State of Tennessee (the “State”) of
its$[  Jaggregate principalamount of General Obligation Bonds, 2019 Series A (the “Bonds”) maturing
September1,[  Jto[  ],pursuantto theNotice of Sale dated September 10, 2019, published on September

10,2019, hereby certifies as follows:

1. The Original Purchaser reasonably expected on the date the sale of the Bonds was
awarded to it (the “Sale Date”) to reoffer the Bonds to the Public at the prices and/or yields set forth in
ATTACHMENT I hereto.

2. Attached hereto as ATTACHMENT II is a copy of the bid provided by the Original
Purchaser to purchase the Bonds.

3. The Original Purchaser was not given the opportunity to review other bids prior to
submitting its bid.

4, The bid submitted by the Original Purchaser constituted a firm offer to purchase the
Bonds.

5. For purposes of this certificate, the following definitions will apply:

“Public” means any person (including anindividual, trust, estate, partnership, association, company or
corporation) other than an Underwriter or a Related Party, as defined below, to an Underwriters;

“Underwriter” means (i) the Original Purchaser, (ii) any personthatagrees pursuantto a written contract
to participate in the initial sale ofthe Bonds to the Public, and (iii) any person that agrees pursuant to a
written contract directly or indirectly with the Original Purchaser ora persondescribed in clause (ii) of this
definition to participatein the initial sale of the Bonds to the Public, includinga member of a selling group
or a party to a retail distribution agreement participating in the initial sale of the Bonds to the Public;

“Related Party”’ means any entity if an Underwriter and such entity are subject, directly or indirectly, to
(1) more than 50 percent common ownership of the voting power or the total value of their stock, if both
entities are corporations (including direct ownership by one corporation of another), (ii) more than 50
percent common ownership of their capital interests or profit interests, if both entities are partnerships
(including direct ownership by one partnership of another), or (iii) more than 50 percent common
ownership of the value of the outstanding stock of the corporation or the capital interests or profit interests
of the partnership, as applicable, if one entity is a corporation and the other entity is a partnership
(including direct ownership of the applicable stock or interests by one entity of the other);

[Balance of Page Intentionally Left Blank]
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We understand thatthe representationscontained herein may be relied upon by the State in making certain
of the representations contained in the Tax Certificate, and we furtherunderstandthat Hawkins Delafield & Wood
LLP,asbond counselto the State, may rely uponthis certificate, among other things, in providing an opinion with
respect to the exclusion from gross income ofintereston the Bonds pursuantto Section 103 ofthe Internal Revenue
Code 0f 1986, as amended (the “Code’). The undersigned is certifying only as to facts in existence on the date
hereof. Nothingherein represents the undersigned’s interpretation ofany laws; in particular the regulations under
the Code, orthe application ofanylaws to these facts. The certifications contained herein arenotnecessarily based
on personal knowledge, but may instead be based on either inquiry deemed adequate by the undersigned or
institutional knowledge (or both) regarding thematters set forth herein. Although certain information furnished in
this Certificate has been derived from other Underwriters who may be considered Related Parties to the Original
Purchaserand cannot be independently verified by us, we haveno reason to believe it to be untrue in any material
respect.

Very truly yours,

[NAME OF ORIGINAL PURCHASER]

By:
Name:
Title:
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Attachment I
REOFFERING PRICES AND YIELDS OF MATURITIES TO THE PUBLIC

[List Maturities, Prices and Yields]
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ATTACHMENT II

COPY OF WINNING BID
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EXHIBIT B

STATE OF TENNESSEE
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS
] I ] SERIES 2019A

ISSUE PRICE CERTIFICATE
[October 3,2019]

[NAME OF ORIGINAL PURCHASER], as the original purchaser (the “Original Purchaser”) of
the§ ~ aggregateprincipalamount General Obligation Bonds, 2019 Series A (the “Bonds”) issued by the
State of Tennessee (the “Issuer”), hereby certifies that:

W)

(if)

(iii)

asof September 17,2019 (the “Sale Date”), allof each Maturity, as defined below, of the
Bondshasbeen the subject ofa bona fide offeringto the Public, as defined below, at the
prices (the “Initial Offering Price’”) shown on the final pricing wire in respect of the

Bonds dated (the “Final Pricing Wire”) attached hereto as Schedule A;

as of the Sale Date, except for the Maturities [PLEASE IDENTIFY
UNSOLD/UNDERSOLD MATURITIES] (the “Unsold Maturities”), shown on
Schedule B attached hereto, the price atwhich thefirst 10 percentof each Maturity ofthe
Bonds was sold by the Underwriters (which includes the Original Purchaser) to the

Public is set forth on such Schedule B;

following the Sale Date, with respect to each Unsold Maturity, the Underwriters, as
defined below, in compliance with the applicable provisions described in the Notice of
Sale,dated 2019, relating to the Bonds (the “Notice of Sale”), have
neither offered norsold thebonds comprising any such Unsold Maturity to the Public ata
price that is higher oryield lower thanthe Initial Offering Price during the period starting
on the Sale Date and ending on the earlier of the following: (a) the close of the fifth
business day afterthe Sale Date, or (b) the date on whichat least 10 percentof the bonds

ofthe Unsold Maturity has been sold to the Public at or below the Initial Offering Price.

For purposes of this certificate the following definitions apply:

“Public” means any person (including an individual, trust, estate, partnership,
association, company or corporation) other than an Underwriter or a Related Party, as
defined below, to an Underwriter;

“Underwriter” means (i) the “Original Purchaser”, (ii) any person that agrees pursuant
to a written contract to participate in the initial sale of the Bonds to the Public, and
(ii)) any person that agrees pursuant to a written contract directly or indirectly with a
person described in clause (ii) of this definition to participate in the initial sale of the
Bonds to the Public, including a member of a selling group or a party to a retail
distribution agreement participating in the initial sale of the Bonds to the Public;

“Related Party” means any entity if an Underwriter and such entity aresubject, directly
or indirectly, to (i) more than 50 percentcommon ownership of the voting power or the
totalvalue oftheirstock, if both entities are corporations (including direct ownership by
one corporation ofanother), (ii) more than 50 percent common ownership oftheir capital
interests or profit interests, if both entities are partnerships (including direct ownership by
one partnership ofanother), or (iii) more than 50 percentcommon ownership of the value
of the outstanding stock ofthe corporation or the capital interests or profit interests ofthe
partnership, as applicable, if one entity is a corporation and the other entity is a
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partnership (including direct ownership ofthe applicable stock orinterests by one entity
of the other);

“Maturity” shallrefer to Bonds with the same maturity date, interest rate and credit
terms.

[Balance of Page Intentionally Left Blank]

F-B-2



Weunderstand that the representations contained herein may be relied upon by the Issuer in
making certain ofthe representations contained in the Tax Certificate, and we further understand that Hawkins
Delafield & Wood LLP, as bond counsel to the Issuer, may rely upon this certificate, among other things, in
providing an opinion with respect to the exclusion from gross income of interest on the Bonds pursuant to
Section 103 of theInternal Revenue Code 01986, as amended (the “Code”). The undersignedis certifyingonly as
to facts in existence on the date hereof. Nothing herein represents the undersigned’s interpretation of any laws; in
particulartheregulations underthe Code, orthe application of any laws to these facts. The certifications contained
herein are not necessarily based on personal knowledge, but may instead be based on either inquiry deemed
adequate by the undersigned or institutional knowledge (or both) regarding the matters set forth herein. Although
certain information furnished in this Certificate has been derived from other Underwriters and cannot be

independently verified by us, we have no reason to believe it to be untrue in any material respect.
Very truly yours,

[NAME OF ORIGINAL PURCHASER]

By:
Name:
Title:
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Schedule A

FINAL PRICING WIRE
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Schedule B
MATURITIES ACTUALLY SOLD AS OF THE SALE DATE
[List Maturity and Sale Price]
AND
UNSOLD MATURITIES

[List Maturity]

F-B-5



STATE OF TENNESSEE
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS
$167,755,000
2021 SERIES A

BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT

June 23, 2021

The Funding Board of the State of Tennessee
Nashville, Tennessee

Ladies and Gentlemen:

FHN Financial Capital Markets (the “Representative”), on behalf of itself and the other
underwriters listed in Appendix I attached hereto (collectively, the “Underwriters™), hereby offers to enter
into this Bond Purchase Agreement (the “Purchase Agreement”) with the State of Tennessee (the “Issuer”™)
for the purchase by the Underwriters and the sale by the Issuer of the Issuer’s general obligation bonds
specified below. This offer is made subject to acceptance thereof by the Issuer on or before 11:59 p.m.,
prevailing time in Nashville, Tennessee, on the date hereof, and, upon such acceptance, evidenced by the
signature of a duly authorized officer of the Issuer in the space provided below, this Purchase Agreement
shall be in full force and effect in accordance with its terms and shall be a valid contractual obligation of
the Issuer and binding upon the Underwriters.

A. Purchase Price.

1.

Upon the terms and conditions and upon the basis of the representations and warranties
herein set forth, the Underwriters hereby agree to purchase from the Issuer, and the Issuer
hereby agrees to sell to the Underwriters all, but not less than all, of the Issuer's General
Obligation Bonds, 2021 Series A, in the original aggregate principal amount of
$167,755,000.00 (the “Bonds™), at an aggregate purchase price of $210,996,294.61 (the
“Purchase Price”), representing the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds, plus a
reoffering premium of $43,374,134.40, less Underwriters' discount of $132,839.79. The
Bonds shall mature on the dates and shall bear interest from their dated date at the rates
and shall be subject to redemption prior to maturity as set forth in the Official Statement
(hereinafter defined) and on Appendix II attached hereto. The Bonds shall be payable at
the times and in the manner, and shall otherwise have the terms and provisions, set forth in
the Official Statement.

If the Issuer accepts this offer and if the Underwriters fail (other than for a reason permitted
hereunder) to accept and pay for the Bonds upon tender thereof by the Issuer in compliance
with the provisions of this Purchase Agreement at the Closing (as defined below), the
parties hereby agree that the damages to the Issuer shall be fixed at one percent (1%) of the
aggregate principal amount of the Bonds, and, upon such failure of the Underwriters to
accept and pay for the Bonds, the Underwriters shall be obligated to pay to the Issuer such
amount as and for full liquidated damages for such failure and for any and all defaults
hereunder on the part of the Underwriters. Upon such payment, the Underwriters shall be
fully released and discharged of all claims, rights and damages for such failure and for any
and all such defaults. In no event shall the Issuer be entitled to damages of any nature other
than the liquidated damages herein specified for such failure.



B. Delivery of and Payment for the Bonds.

L.

At or prior to 11:30 a.m., prevailing time in Nashville, Tennessee on July 13, 2021, the
date of delivery and payment for the Bonds (the “Closing Date”), or at such other time or
date as shall have been mutually agreed upon by the Issuer and the Representative, the
Issuer will deliver or cause to be delivered to the Representative, the Bonds, qualified for
book-entry delivery through The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”) in New York, New
York, in definitive form, duly executed by officers of the Issuer designated in the
Resolution (as defined herein), together with the other documents hereinafter mentioned;
and, subject to the conditions contained herein, the Representative will accept such delivery
and pay the Purchase Price by wire transfer of immediately available funds payable to the
order of the Issuer.

The Issuer and the Representative agree that there shall be a preliminary closing held at the
Division of State Government Finance, 425 Rep. John Lewis Way, N., 4th Floor, Nashville,
Tennessee, commencing at least 10 hours prior to the Closing Date, or at such other time
or place as the Issuer and the Representative shall agree.

Delivery of the definitive Bonds as aforesaid shall be made at the offices of DTC in New
York, New York, or at such other location as may be designated by the Representative at
least one business day prior to the Closing Date. Payment for the Bonds shall be made as
set forth in Section B.1. hereof. The delivery of the other documents shall be made at the
Division of State Government Finance or at the offices of the Attorney General of the Issuer
("Counsel to the Issuer"), John Sevier Building, 425 Rep. John Lewis Way, N., Nashville,
Tennessee. Such payment and the related delivery are herein called the “Closing.” The
Bonds will be delivered as fully-registered bonds, bearing proper CUSIP numbers, and
registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, which will act as securities
depository for the Bonds.

After execution by the Issuer, the Bonds shall be held in safe custody at DTC. The Issuer
shall release or authorize the release of the Bonds from safe custody at the Closing upon
receipt of payment for the Bonds as aforesaid.

C. Official Statement.

L.

Prior to the date hereof, the Issuer has provided to the Underwriters for their review the
preliminary official statement dated June 14, 2021 (the “Preliminary Official Statement”).
The Issuer hereby represents and warrants that the Preliminary Official Statement
previously furnished to the Representative was “deemed final” by the Issuer as of its date
for purposes of Rule 15c¢2-12 (“Rule 15¢2-12) promulgated by the Securities and
Exchange Commission of the United States (the “SEC”) under the Securities Exchange
Act 0f 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”) except for the omission of such information
as is permitted in Rule 15¢2-12. The Issuer hereby consents to and confirms the prior use
by the Underwriters of the Preliminary Official Statement delivered to the Underwriters
and made available on the Internet at www.munios.com in connection with the public
offering of the Bonds by the Underwriters, and further confirms the authority of the
Underwriters to use, and consents to the use of, a final Official Statement (in printed or
electronic form) with respect to the Bonds, to be dated the date hereof, and any amendments
or supplements thereto that shall be approved by the Issuer (as so amended and
supplemented, the “Official Statement”) in connection with the public offering and sale of
the Bonds.



2. The Issuer shall provide, or cause to be provided, to the Representative as soon as
practicable after the acceptance of this Purchase Agreement and in any event no later than
seven (7) business days after the date of this Purchase Agreement or three (3) business days
prior to Closing, whichever comes first, five (5) executed counterparts of the Official
Statement and five (5) conformed copies of the final Official Statement (or such lesser
amount which the Representative agrees will be sufficient to permit the Underwriters to
comply with Rule 15¢2-12 and other applicable rules of the SEC and the Municipal
Securities Rulemaking Board (the “MSRB”)). The Issuer shall further cause the Official
Statement to be posted on www.munios.com for the longer of thirty (30) days or until the
End of the Underwriting Period as defined herein.

3. The Issuer hereby authorizes the Representative to file, and the Representative hereby
agrees to file, the Official Statement with the MSRB through the operation of the Electronic
Municipal Market Access system ("EMMA") within one (1) business day after receipt from
the Issuer, but by no later than the Closing Date, in such manner and accompanied by such
forms as are required by the MSRB, in accordance with applicable MSRB Rules, and shall
maintain such books and records as required by MSRB Rules with respect to filing of the
Official Statement.

Amendments to Official Statement. The Issuer covenants with the Underwriters to notify promptly
the Representative if, during the Update Period (as defined in H.3. herein), any event shall occur
that would cause the Official Statement to contain, or information shall come to the attention of the
Issuer that is reasonably likely to cause the Official Statement (whether or not previously
supplemented or amended) to contain, any untrue statement of a material fact or to omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which
they were made, not misleading, and if in the opinion of the Representative such event requires the
preparation and distribution of a supplement or amendment to the Official Statement, to prepare
and furnish to the Representative, at the Issuer’s expense, such number of copies of the supplement
or amendment to the Official Statement, in form and substance mutually agreed upon by the Issuer
and approved by the Representative, as the Representative may reasonably request to comply with
Rule 15¢2-12 and if such notification shall be given subsequent to the Closing Date, such additional
legal opinions, certificates, instruments, and other documents as the Underwriters may reasonably
deem necessary to evidence the truth and accuracy of any such supplement or amendment to the
Official Statement.

Public Offering and Issue Price.

1. The Representative confirms that the Underwriters have offered the Bonds to the public on
or before the date of this Purchase Agreement, in a bona fide public offering, at the offering
price or prices (the “initial offering price”), or at the corresponding yield or yields, set forth
in Appendix II attached hereto, except as set forth therein, and the Underwriters intend to
continue to make an initial public offering of all the Bonds at a price not in excess of the
initial offering price; provided, however, subject to compliance with the rules governing
the establishment of issue price as set forth in this Purchase Agreement, that the
Underwriters may change such initial offering price or prices as they deem necessary in
connection with the offering of the Bonds without any requirement of prior notice, and may
offer and sell the Bonds to certain institutions (including dealers depositing the Bonds into
investment trusts) at prices lower than those stated in the Official Statement. The
Underwriters also reserve the right to: (i) over-allot or effect transactions that stabilize or
maintain the market price of any series of the Bonds at levels above those that might
otherwise prevail in the open market and (ii) discontinue such stabilizing, if commenced,
at any time without prior notice.



The Representative, on behalf of the Underwriters, agrees to assist the Issuer in establishing
the issue price of the Bonds and shall execute and deliver to the Issuer at Closing an “issue
price” or similar certificate, together with the supporting pricing wires or equivalent
communications (if applicable), substantially in the form attached hereto as Appendix IV,
with such modifications as may be appropriate or necessary, in the reasonable judgment of
the Representative, the Issuer and Bond Counsel, to accurately reflect, as applicable, the
sales price or prices or the initial offering price or prices to the public of the Bonds. All
actions to be taken by the Issuer under this section to establish the issue price of the Bonds
may be taken on behalf of the Issuer by the Issuer’s municipal advisor and any notice or
report to be provided to the Issuer may be provided to the Issuer’s municipal advisor.

Except as otherwise set forth in Appendix IV attached hereto, the Issuer will treat the first
price at which at least 10% of each maturity of the Bonds (the “10% test”) is sold to the
public as the issue price of that maturity. At or promptly after the execution of this
Purchase Agreement, the Representative shall report to the Issuer the price or prices at
which the Underwriters have sold to the public each maturity of Bonds. For purposes of
this Section, if Bonds mature on the same date but have different interest rates, each
separate CUSIP number within that maturity will be treated as a separate maturity of the
Bonds.

Appendix II sets forth, as of the date of this Purchase Agreement, the maturities, if any, of
the Bonds for which the 10% test has not been satisfied (the “Undersold Maturities”) and
for which the Issuer and the Representative, on behalf of the Underwriters, agree that the
restrictions set forth in the next sentence shall apply, which will allow the Issuer to treat
the initial offering price to the public of each such maturity as of the sale date as the issue
price of that maturity (the “hold-the-offering-price rule””). So long as the hold-the-offering-
price rule remains applicable to any maturity of the Bonds, the underwriters (as defined in
paragraph 7(ii) of this Section E) will neither offer nor sell Undersold Maturities to any
person at a price that is higher than the initial offering price to the public during the period
starting on the sale date and ending on the earlier of the following:

(1) the close of the fifth (5") business day after the sale date; or

(i1) the date on which the underwriters (as defined in paragraph 7(ii) of this
Section E) have sold at least 10% of that maturity of the Bonds to the
public at a price that is no higher than the initial offering price to the public.

The Representative will advise the Issuer promptly after the close of the fifth (5th) business

day after the sale date whether the underwriters (as defined in paragraph 7(ii) of this Section E)
have sold 10% of that maturity of the Bonds to the public at a price that is no higher than the initial
offering price to the public.

The Representative will note whether a Bond maturity is an Undersold Maturity and subject

to the restrictions regarding its offer and sale price on the final pricing wire for the Bonds.

The Representative confirms that either (a) it will hold any Undersold Maturity or (b) as
follows:

(1) any agreement among underwriters, any selling group agreement and each third-
party distribution agreement (to which the Representative is a party) relating to the
initial sale of the Bonds to the public, together with the related pricing wires,
contains or will contain language obligating each Underwriter, each dealer who is



a member of the selling group and each broker-dealer that is a party to such third-
party distribution agreement, as applicable:

(A) to comply with the hold-the-offering-price rule if and for so long as
directed by the Representative and as set forth in the related pricing wires, and

(B) to promptly notify the Representative of any sales of Bonds that, to its
knowledge, are made to a purchaser who is a related party to an underwriter
participating in the initial sale of the Bonds to the public (each such term being
used as defined in paragraph 7 of this Section E), and

(C) to acknowledge that, unless otherwise advised by the Underwriter,
dealer or broker-dealer, the Representative shall assume that each order submitted
by the Underwriter, dealer or broker-dealer is a sale to the public.

(i1) any agreement among underwriters or selling group agreement relating to the
initial sale of the Bonds to the public, together with the related pricing wires,
contains or will contain language obligating each Underwriter or selling group
dealer that is a party to a third-party distribution agreement to be employed in
connection with the initial sale of the Bonds to the public to require each broker-
dealer that is a party to such third-party distribution agreement to comply with the
hold-the-offering-price rule, if applicable, if and for so long as directed by the
Representative or the Underwriter or the dealer and as set forth in the related
pricing wires.

The Issuer acknowledges that, in making the representations set forth in this Section E, the
Representative will rely on (i) the agreement of each Underwriter to comply with the
requirements for establishing issue price of the Bonds, including, but not limited to, its
agreement to comply with the hold-the-offering-price rule, if applicable to the Bonds, as
set forth in an agreement among underwriters and the related pricing wires, (ii) in the event
a selling group has been created in connection with the initial sale of the Bonds to the
public, the agreement of each dealer who is a member of the selling group to comply with
the requirements for establishing issue price of the Bonds, including, but not limited to, its
agreement to comply with the hold-the-offering-price rule, if applicable to the Bonds, as
set forth in a selling group agreement and the related pricing wires, and (iii) in the event
that an Underwriter or dealer who is a member of the selling group is a party to a third-
party distribution agreement that was employed in connection with the initial sale of the
Bonds to the public, the agreement of each broker-dealer that is a party to such agreement
to comply with the requirements for establishing issue price of the Bonds, including, but
not limited to, its agreement to comply with the hold-the-offering-price rule, if applicable
to the Bonds, as set forth in the third-party distribution agreement and the related pricing
wires. The Issuer further acknowledges that each Underwriter shall be solely liable for its
failure to comply with its agreement regarding the requirements for establishing the issue
price of the Bonds, including, but not limited to, its agreement to comply with the hold-
the-offering-price rule, if applicable to the Bonds, and that no Underwriter shall be liable
for the failure of any other Underwriter, or of any dealer who is a member of a selling
group, or of any broker-dealer that is a party to a third-party distribution agreement, to
comply with its corresponding agreement to comply with the requirements for establishing
issue price of the Bonds, including, but not limited to, its agreement to comply with the
hold-the-offering-price rule, if applicable to the Bonds.



The foregoing notwithstanding, each underwriter (as defined in paragraph 7(ii) of this
Section E) that has been allotted an Undersold Maturity will confirm to the Representative
that it has complied with the hold-the-offering-price rule.

The Underwriters acknowledge that sales of any Bonds to any person that is a related party
to an underwriter participating in the initial sale of the Bonds to the public (each such term
being used as defined below) shall not constitute sales to the public for purposes of this
section. Further, for purposes of this paragraph 7:

6))] “public” means any person other than an underwriter or a related party,

(i1) “underwriter” means (A) any person that agrees pursuant to a written contract with
the Issuer (or with the lead underwriter to form an underwriting syndicate) to
participate in the initial sale of the Bonds to the public and (B) any person that
agrees pursuant to a written contract directly or indirectly with a person described
in clause (A) to participate in the initial sale of the Bonds to the public (including
a member of a selling group or a party to a third-party distribution agreement
participating in the initial sale of the Bonds to the public),

(ii1) a purchaser of any of the Bonds is a “related party” to an underwriter if the
underwriter and the purchaser are subject, directly or indirectly, to (A) more than
50% common ownership of the voting power or the total value of their stock, if
both entities are corporations (including direct ownership by one corporation of
another), (B) more than 50% common ownership of their capital interests or profits
interests, if both entities are partnerships (including direct ownership by one
partnership of another), or (C) more than 50% common ownership of the value of
the outstanding stock of the corporation or the capital interests or profit interests
of the partnership, as applicable, if one entity is a corporation and the other entity
is a partnership (including direct ownership of the applicable stock or interests by
one entity of the other), and

(iv) “sale date” means the date of execution of this Purchase Agreement by all parties.

End of Underwriting Period. For purposes of this Purchase Agreement, the “End of the

Underwriting Period” shall mean the date on which the “end of the underwriting period” for the
Bonds has occurred under Rule 15¢2-12. The Representative shall notify the Issuer when the “end
of the underwriting period” for the Bonds has occurred under Rule 15¢2-12 with respect to the
unsold balance of Bonds that are held by any of the Underwriters for sale to the public within the
meaning of Rule 15¢2-12.

Plan of Financing.

L.

The Bonds shall be as described in, and shall be issued under and secured pursuant to the
provisions of, a resolution adopted by the Funding Board of the Issuer on May 24, 2021,
including as a part thereof a Series Certificate (collectively, the “Resolution”), substantially
in the form delivered to the Representative, with only such changes to the Resolution as
shall be mutually agreed upon between the Issuer and the Representative prior to Closing.

The net proceeds from the sale of the Bonds will be applied to the: (i) retirement at maturity
of a portion of the Issuer's outstanding general obligation commercial paper issued to fund
certain capital projects of the Issuer; (ii) refunding of the Issuer's outstanding general
obligation bonds listed on Appendix III hereof (collectively, the "Refunded Bonds") and
(ii1) payment of certain costs of issuance of the Bonds.



In connection with the refunding of the Refunded Bonds, the Issuer will enter into a
Refunding Trust Agreement, dated as of the Closing Date (the “Refunding Trust
Agreement”), with U.S. Bank National Association, Nashville, Tennessee, as refunding
trustee, for the benefit of the holders of the Refunded Bonds.

Representations and Warranties of the Issuer.

The Issuer hereby agrees with, and makes the following representations and warranties to the
Underwriters, as of the date hereof and as of the Closing Date, which representations and warranties
shall survive the Closing:

L.

The Issuer is authorized by the Constitution and statutes of the Issuer: (i) to issue the Bonds
for the purposes set forth in the Resolution, (ii) to secure the Bonds in the manner
contemplated in the Resolution, and (iii) to execute, deliver and perform its obligations
under the Bonds, the Resolution, the Official Statement, the Continuing Disclosure
Undertaking, to be dated the Closing Date, in substantially the form attached as Appendix
E to the Official Statement (the “Continuing Disclosure Undertaking”), the Refunding
Trust Agreement and this Purchase Agreement.

The Issuer, has, and at the Closing Date will have, full legal right, power, and authority
pursuant to the Resolution to execute and deliver the Purchase Agreement, the Continuing
Disclosure Undertaking and the Refunding Trust Agreement, to issue, sell, and deliver the
Bonds as provided herein, and to carry out and to consummate the transactions
contemplated by this Purchase Agreement, the Resolution, the Continuing Disclosure
Undertaking, the Refunding Trust Agreement, and the Official Statement.

On and as of the date hereof and, unless an event of the nature described in Section K
hereof subsequently occurs, at all times during the period from the date hereof to and
including the date which is twenty-five (25) days following the End of the Underwriting
Period (the “Update Period”), the information in the Official Statement with respect to the
Issuer and its affairs does not and will not contain any untrue statement of a material fact
or omit to state a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the
statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not
misleading.

The Bonds are issued under and pursuant to and in full compliance with the Constitution
and laws of the Issuer, including specifically Title 9, Chapter 9, Tennessee Code Annotated
(the "Act"), various Public Acts of the General Assembly of the Issuer, and the Resolution.

By official action of the Issuer prior to or concurrently with the acceptance hereof, the
Issuer has duly authorized and approved the distribution of the Preliminary Official
Statement and the execution, delivery, and distribution of the Official Statement, and has
duly authorized and approved the issuance and sale of the Bonds upon the terms set forth
herein and in the Resolution and the Official Statement, and the execution and delivery of,
and the performance by the Issuer of the obligations on its part contained in, the Bonds, the
Resolution, the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking, the Refunding Trust Agreement and
this Purchase Agreement.

The Issuer is not in breach of or in default under the Act or any applicable law or
administrative regulation of the Issuer or the United States or any applicable judgment or
decree or any loan agreement, note, resolution, agreement, or other instrument to which the
Issuer is a party or is otherwise subject or by which it or its properties may be bound, that
is material to the issuance, payment or security for the Bonds (a "Material Adverse Effect").



10.

The issuance and sale of the Bonds upon the terms set forth herein and in the Resolution
and the Official Statement, and the execution and delivery by the Issuer of the Resolution,
the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking, the Refunding Trust Agreement and this Purchase
Agreement, and its compliance with the provisions of each thereof, will not conflict with
or constitute a material breach of or default under the Act or any law, administrative
regulation, judgment, decree, indenture, loan agreement, note, resolution, agreement, or
other instrument to which the Issuer is a party or is otherwise subject, except for such
conflicts, breaches and/or defaults as would not, individually or in the aggregate, result in
a Material Adverse Effect.

All approvals, consents, and orders of any governmental authority, board, agency, or
commission having jurisdiction that would constitute a condition precedent to the
performance by the Issuer of its obligations under this Purchase Agreement, the issuance
of the Bonds, and the execution, delivery and performance by the Issuer of the Resolution,
the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking, this Purchase Agreement, and the Refunding Trust
Agreement, have been obtained or will be obtained prior to the Closing.

The Bonds, when issued, authenticated, and delivered in accordance with the Resolution
and sold to the Underwriters as provided herein, will be the valid contractual general
obligations of the Issuer issued in conformity with and entitled to the benefit and security
of the Resolution and for the payment of which, as to both principal and interest, the full
faith and credit of the Issuer is pledged; and the Bonds shall constitute a charge and lien
upon the entire fees, taxes and other revenues and funds allocated to the general fund, the
debt service fund, and the highway fund and, if necessary, upon the first such fees, taxes,
revenues and funds thereafter received and allocated to such funds, except only such fees,
taxes, revenues and funds as may be otherwise legally restricted and subject to the pledge
of Special Taxes (as defined in the Official Statement) to the payment of certain bonds of
the Issuer outstanding on July 1, 2013.

The Resolution has been duly adopted by the Issuer. The terms and provisions of the
Resolution comply in all respects with the requirements of the Act, and the Resolution and,
when executed and delivered by the parties thereto, the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking
and the Refunding Trust Agreement will constitute the valid contractual obligations of the
Issuer, subject to applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium and other
laws heretofore or hereafter enacted affecting creditors' rights, and to the application of
principles of equity relating to or affecting the enforcement of contractual obligations,
whether such enforceability is considered in a proceeding in equity or at law; and, further,
the Issuer has not waived immunity from suit or extended its consent to be sued, and
monetary actions against the Issuer for breach of contractual obligations may be heard and
determined under current law exclusively in the Tennessee Claims Commission, an
administrative tribunal, where the Issuer may be liable only for actual damages and certain
costs.

This Purchase Agreement has been duly authorized, executed and delivered, and
constitutes a valid contractual obligation of the Issuer, subject to applicable bankruptcy,
insolvency, reorganization, moratorium and other laws heretofore or hereafter enacted
affecting creditors' rights, and to the application of principles of equity relating to or
affecting the enforcement of contractual obligations, whether such enforceability is
considered in a proceeding in equity or at law; and, further, the Issuer has not waived
immunity from suit or extended its consent to be sued, and monetary actions against the
Issuer for breach of contractual obligations may be heard and determined under current law
exclusively in the Tennessee Claims Commission, an administrative tribunal, where the
Issuer may be liable only for actual damages and certain costs.



11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

There is no action, suit, proceeding, inquiry, or investigation, at law or in equity, before or
by any court, public board, or body, pending or, to the knowledge of the Issuer, threatened
against the Issuer, affecting the existence of the Issuer or the titles of its officers to their
respective offices or seeking to prohibit, restrain, or enjoin the issuance, sale, or delivery
of the Bonds or the collection of the revenues or assets of the Issuer pledged or to be
pledged to pay the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds, or the pledge
thereof, or in any way contesting or affecting the validity of the Bonds, the Resolution, the
Continuing Disclosure Undertaking, the Refunding Trust Agreement or this Purchase
Agreement or contesting in any way the completeness or accuracy of the Preliminary
Official Statement or the Official Statement, or any amendment or supplement thereto, or
contesting the power or authority of the Issuer to issue the Bonds or to execute and deliver
the Resolution, the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking, the Refunding Trust Agreement or
this Purchase Agreement, or wherein an unfavorable decision, ruling, or finding would
materially adversely affect the validity of the Bonds, the Resolution, the Continuing
Disclosure Undertaking, the Refunding Trust Agreement or this Purchase Agreement.

The proceeds received from the sale of the Bonds shall be used in accordance with the Act
and the Resolution and as set forth herein and in the Preliminary Official Statement and
the Official Statement.

Any certificate signed by an authorized officer of the Issuer and delivered to the
Representative shall be deemed a representation and warranty of the Issuer to the
Underwriters as to the accuracy in material respects of the statements made therein.

The Issuer has entered or will enter into, in accordance with Rule 15¢2-12, the Continuing
Disclosure Undertaking in substantially the form set forth in Appendix E to the Preliminary
Official Statement and to the Final Official Statement for the benefit of bondholders to
provide to the MSRB through EMMA and to the appropriate state information depository,
if any: (a) certain annual financial information, including audited financial statements and
operating data, as described in Appendix E to the Official Statement, and (b) timely notice
(not in excess of ten business days after the occurrence of the event) of any of the events
identified in Rule 15¢2-12 with respect to the Bonds.

Except as otherwise provided in the Preliminary Official Statement and Official Statement,
the Issuer has complied in all material respects during the preceding five years with all
previous undertakings in its written continuing disclosure undertakings, contracts and
agreements under Rule 15c2-12.

The Preliminary Official Statement, as supplemented and amended through the date hereof,
did not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements therein, in the light of the
circumstances under which they were made, not misleading.

At the time of the Issuer’s acceptance hereof and (unless the Official Statement is amended
or supplemented pursuant to Section D of this Purchase Agreement) at all times subsequent
thereto during the period up to and including the Closing Date, the Official Statement does
not and will not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state any material
fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements therein, in the light
of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading.

If the Official Statement is supplemented or amended pursuant to Section D of this
Purchase Agreement, at the time of each supplement or amendment thereto and (unless
subsequently again supplemented or amended pursuant to such paragraph) at all times



19.

20.

subsequent thereto during the period up to and including the Closing Date, the Official
Statement as so supplemented or amended will not contain any untrue statement of a
material fact or omit to state any material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to
make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which made, not
misleading.

The financial statements of, and other financial information regarding, the Issuer in the
Preliminary Official Statement and in the Official Statement fairly present the financial
position and results of the Issuer as of the dates and for the periods therein set forth. The
financial statements of the Issuer have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles consistently applied, and except as noted in the Preliminary Official
Statement and in the Official Statement, the other historical financial information set forth
in the Preliminary Official Statement and in the Official Statement has been presented on
a basis consistent with that of the Issuer’s audited financial statements included in the
Preliminary Official Statement and in the Official Statement. Prior to the Closing, the
Issuer will not take any action within or under its control that will cause any adverse change
of a material nature in such financial position, results of operations or condition, financial
or otherwise, of the Issuer. Except as described in the Preliminary Official Statement and
in the Official Statement, the Issuer is not a party to any litigation or other proceeding
pending or, to its knowledge, threatened which, if decided adversely to the Issuer would
have a material adverse effect on the financial condition of the Issuer.

The Issuer will not, prior to the Closing Date, offer or issue any bonds, notes or other
obligations for borrowed money or incur any material liabilities, direct or contingent,
except in the ordinary course of business, without the prior approval of the Underwriters;
provided, however, upon notice to the Underwriters, the Issuer may issue commercial paper
from time to time without the prior approval of the Underwriters.

Covenants of the Issuer. The Issuer hereby covenants with the Underwriters that:

L.

The Issuer shall not supplement or amend the Official Statement or cause the Official
Statement to be supplemented or amended prior to the end of the Update Period without
the prior written consent of the Representative, which will not be unreasonably withheld.

The Issuer shall not amend, terminate, or rescind, and will not agree to any amendment,
termination, or rescission of the Resolution or this Purchase Agreement without the prior
written consent of the Representative prior to the Closing Date, which will not be
unreasonably withheld.

The Issuer shall promptly advise the Representative by written notice of any matter arising
or discovered after the date of this Purchase Agreement and prior to the end of the Update
Period that if existing or known at the date hereof would render any of the representations
or warranties set forth herein to be untrue or misleading or might adversely affect the
correctness or completeness of any statement of material fact regarding the Issuer
contained in the Official Statement; or any developments that affect the accuracy and
completeness of the key representations (within the meaning of Rule 15¢2-12) regarding
the Issuer contained in the Official Statement that may occur during the Update Period.

The Issuer will furnish such information and execute such instruments and take such action
in cooperation with the Underwriters, at no expense to the Issuer, as the Underwriters may
reasonably request (a) to (1) qualify the Bonds for offer and sale under the Blue Sky or
other securities laws and regulations of such states and other jurisdictions in the United
States as the Underwriter may designate and (2) determine the eligibility of the Bonds for



investment under the laws of such states and other jurisdictions, and (b) to continue such
qualifications in effect so long as required for the distribution of the Bonds (provided,
however, that the Issuer will not be required to qualify as a foreign corporation or to file
any general or special consents to service of process under the laws of any jurisdiction) and
will advise the Underwriters immediately of receipt by the Issuer of any written notification
with respect to the suspension of the qualification of the Bonds for sale in any jurisdiction
or the initiation or threat of any proceeding for that purpose.

The Issuer shall not voluntarily undertake any course of action inconsistent with
satisfaction of the requirements applicable to the Issuer as set forth in this Purchase
Agreement.

The Issuer shall not knowingly take or omit to take any action that, under existing law, may
adversely affect the exemption from federal or state income taxation of the Bonds and the
income therefrom.

The Issuer will use the proceeds of the Bonds in accordance with the Resolution and the
Act.

Certain Conditions to Underwriters’ Obligations. The Underwriters have entered into this Purchase

Agreement in reliance upon the representations, warranties, and agreements of the Issuer contained
herein and upon the accuracy of the statements to be contained in the documents and instruments
to be delivered at the Closing. Accordingly, the Underwriters’ obligations under this Purchase
Agreement to purchase, accept delivery of, and pay for the Bonds are subject to the performance
by the Issuer of its obligations hereunder required to be performed at or prior to the Closing Date,
and to the following additional conditions precedent:

L.

On the Closing Date, the representations and warranties of the Issuer contained herein shall
be true, complete, and correct as if made on and as of the Closing Date; the Official
Statement shall have been executed and delivered by the Issuer; the Resolution, the
Continuing Disclosure Undertaking and the Refunding Trust Agreement shall have been
duly executed and delivered by the appropriate parties thereto, shall be in full force and
effect, and shall not have been amended, modified, or supplemented, except as may have
been agreed to in writing by the Representative; the proceeds of the sale of the Bonds shall
have been paid to the Issuer for deposit for use as described in the Official Statement and
in the Resolution; and the Issuer shall have adopted and there shall be in full force and
effect such resolutions as, in the opinions of Hawkins Delafield & Wood LLP, Bond
Counsel, and Bass, Berry & Sims PLC, counsel for the Underwriters, shall be necessary in
connection with the transactions contemplated hereby.

At or prior to the Closing, the Representative shall receive the following:

a) The unqualified approving opinion of Bond Counsel, addressed to the Issuer, dated
the Closing Date and in substantially the form attached as Appendix C to the
Official Statement with only such changes thereto as are satisfactory to the
Representative, and a letter of such Bond Counsel, dated the Closing Date and
addressed to the Underwriters, to the effect that their opinion addressed to the
Issuer may be relied upon by the Underwriters to the same extent as if such opinion
was addressed to them;

b) A supplementary opinion of Bond Counsel, dated the Closing Date, addressed to
the Underwriters and the Issuer, to the effect that: (i) this Purchase Agreement has
been duly authorized, executed and delivered by the Issuer, and constitutes a valid



d)

contractual agreement of the Issuer, subject to sovereign immunity, applicable
bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium and other laws heretofore or
hereafter enacted affecting creditors’ rights, and the application of principles of
equity relating to or affecting the enforcement of contractual obligations, whether
such enforceability is considered in a proceeding in equity or at law; (ii) no
approval or other action is required to be obtained by the Issuer from any
governmental authority or agency in connection with the issuance and sale of the
Bonds, the adoption of the Resolution, or the execution by the Issuer of this
Purchase Agreement, the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking, the Refunding Trust
Agreement or the Official Statement that has not already been obtained or taken,
except that the offer and sale of the Bonds in certain jurisdictions may be subject
to compliance with the provisions of the securities or blue sky laws of such
jurisdictions (as to which no opinion need be expressed); (iii) the statements
contained in the Official Statement under the captions "THE BONDS" (other than
information relating to The Depository Trust Company and its book-entry only
system), "APPLICATION OF BOND PROCEEDS AND PLAN OF
REFUNDING," "SECURITY FOR THE BONDS," and "TAX MATTERS" fairly
summarize the provisions of the documents or matters of law indicated therein,
and the statements contained in the Official Statement describing the Resolution
fairly summarize the provisions of such document purported to be summarized,
and (iv) the Bonds are not subject to the registration requirements of the Securities
Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"), and the Resolution is exempt from
qualification as an indenture pursuant to the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as
amended (the "Trust Indenture Act");

A certificate of Counsel to the Issuer, dated the Closing Date, and in form and
substance satisfactory to the Representative, to the effect that: there is no action,
suit, or proceeding or investigation at law or in equity before or by any court, public
board, or body pending, or, to the knowledge of such counsel, threatened against
or affecting the Issuer to restrain or enjoin the issuance or delivery of any of the
Bonds or the security pledged under the Resolution, or in any way contesting or
affecting the power of the Issuer relating to the issuance or validity of the Bonds
or any provision of the Resolution, or the execution, delivery, and performance by
the Issuer of the Resolution, the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking, the
Refunding Trust Agreement, or this Purchase Agreement or materially adversely
affecting the financial condition of the Issuer;

An opinion of Counsel to the Issuer addressed to the Issuer to the effect that: (i)
the Issuer has full legal right, power, and authority to adopt the Resolution and to
execute and deliver the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking, the Refunding Trust
Agreement, the Bonds and this Purchase Agreement, and to issue the Bonds and
apply the proceeds thereof pursuant to the Resolution; (ii) the Issuer has duly
authorized, executed, and delivered the Resolution, the Continuing Disclosure
Undertaking, the Refunding Trust Agreement, the Bonds and this Purchase
Agreement and, assuming due authorization, execution, and delivery by the other
parties thereto where required, each constitutes a valid contractual agreement of
the Issuer, subject to sovereign immunity, applicable bankruptcy, insolvency,
reorganization, moratorium and other laws heretofore or hereafter enacted
affecting creditors' rights, and to the application of principles of equity relating to
or affecting the enforcement of contractual obligations, whether such
enforceability is considered in a proceeding in equity or at law; and, further, the
Issuer has not waived immunity from suit or extended its consent to be sued, and
monetary actions against the Issuer for breach of contractual obligations may be



heard and determined under current law exclusively in the Tennessee Claims
Commission, an administrative tribunal, where the Issuer may be liable only for
actual damages and certain costs, (iii) compliance with the provisions of the
Resolution, the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking, the Refunding Trust
Agreement, the Bonds and this Purchase Agreement will not conflict with or
constitute a violation or breach of or default under any existing law or
administrative rule or regulation, or, to the best of the knowledge of such counsel,
any court order or decree, or any agreement, contract, or other instrument to which
the Issuer is a party or is otherwise subject or bound; (iv) the distribution of the
Preliminary Official Statement and the execution, delivery, and distribution of the
Official Statement have been duly authorized by the Issuer; (v) no approval or
other action is required to be obtained by the Issuer from any governmental
authority or agency in connection with the issuance and sale of the Bonds, or the
execution by the Issuer of this Purchase Agreement, the Resolution, the Bonds, the
Continuing Disclosure Undertaking, the Refunding Trust Agreement or the
Official Statement which has not already been obtained or taken, except that the
offer and sale of the Bonds in certain jurisdictions may be subject to compliance
with the provisions of the securities or blue sky laws of such jurisdictions (as to
which no opinion need be expressed); (vi) the Official Statement has been duly
executed and delivered by the Issuer; (vii) the execution and delivery of this
Purchase Agreement, the Bonds, the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking, the
Refunding Trust Agreement, and the Official Statement were duly authorized
pursuant to the Resolution at one or more meetings of the Issuer that were called
and held pursuant to all applicable laws and regulations, and with all public notice
required by all applicable laws and regulations and at which a quorum was present
and acting throughout; and (viii) the representations and warranties of the Issuer
as set forth in this Purchase Agreement are, as to all matters of law, true and
accurate on and as of the Closing Date as if made on the Closing Date;

The opinion of counsel to the Underwriters, dated the Closing Date, to the effect
that (i) the Bonds are exempt from registration under the Securities Act, and the
Resolution is exempt from qualification under the Trust Indenture Act; (ii) without
having undertaken to determine independently, or to assume responsibility for, the
accuracy, completeness or fairness thereof, and based solely on their participation
in meetings and telephone conferences at which representatives of the Issuer,
Issuer's Counsel, Bond Counsel, and the Representative were at various times
present, nothing has come to their attention that would lead them to believe that
the information and statements in the Preliminary Official Statement, as of the date
thereof and as of the date of pricing of the Bonds, or the Official Statement, as of
the date thereof and as of the Closing Date (excluding therefrom information
regarding DTC, the Book-Entry System, the financial statements and statistical
data included in the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official Statement, as
to which no view need be expressed) contain an untrue statement of a material fact
or omit to state a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make
the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were
made, not misleading; and (iii) the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking of the
Issuer complies in all material respects with the requirements of Section (b)(5)(i)
of Rule 15¢2-12;

A certificate dated the Closing Date by the Secretary or Assistant Secretary to the
Funding Board of the Issuer to the effect that: (i) the representations and warranties
of the Issuer contained herein are true and correct on and as of the Closing Date
(except to the extent the same relate to an earlier date) with the same effect as if
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made on the Closing Date; and (ii) the Issuer has complied with all agreements and
satisfied all the conditions on its part to be performed or satisfied with respect to
the Bonds at or prior to the Closing;

A certificate dated the Closing Date by the Secretary or Assistant Secretary to the
Funding Board of the Issuer to the effect that: no event affecting the Issuer has
occurred since the date of the Official Statement that would cause it to contain any
untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make
the statements and information therein with respect to the Issuer not misleading in
any material respect;

A certificate of an officer of the Issuer, acceptable to the Representative, dated the
Closing Date, to the effect that the Bonds have been executed in accordance with
the Resolution by duly authorized officers or signatories of the Issuer; and an
incumbency certificate of the Issuer, in form and content acceptable to the
Representative and Bond Counsel, dated the Closing Date, with respect to the
officers or other signatories of the Issuer who have executed and delivered the
Bonds and all other financing documents to be signed by the Issuer;

Evidence satisfactory to the Representative that the Bonds have been rated not less
than “Aaa”, “AAA” and “AAA” respectively, by Moody’s Investors Service, Inc.
("Moody's"), Standard & Poor’s Ratings Service ("S&P") and Fitch Ratings
("Fitch"), which ratings remain in effect on the Closing Date;

Copies of the Resolution certified by the Secretary or Assistant Secretary to the
Funding Board as having been duly adopted by the Funding Board and as being in
full force and effect, with such changes or amendments as may have been approved
by the Representative;

Executed counterparts of the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking, the Refunding
Trust Agreement, this Purchase Agreement, and the tax certificate for the Bonds
executed by the parties thereto, or copies thereof certified by the Secretary or
Assistant Secretary of the Funding Board;

The Preliminary Official Statement and an executed Official Statement, together
with any supplements or amendments thereto in the event either has been
supplemented or amended, in the case of the Official Statement executed on behalf
of the Issuer by a duly authorized officer thereof;

Specimen of the Bonds;

The verification report prepared by Samuel Klein and Company, Certified Public
Accountants, described in the Official Statement under the caption “Verification
Agent”; and

Such additional legal opinions, signatures, other certificates and other instruments
and documents, including but not limited to a comfort letter addressed to the
Underwriters by the Issuer’s auditors, as the Underwriters may reasonably request
to evidence the truth, accuracy and completeness, as of the date of this Purchase
Agreement and as of the date of Closing, of the representations and warranties of
the Issuer contained in this Purchase Agreement and of the statements and
information contained in the Official Statement and the due performance or



satisfaction by the Issuer at or prior to Closing of all agreements then to be
performed and of all conditions then to be satisfied by the Issuer.

If the Issuer shall be unable to satisfy the conditions to the obligations of the Underwriters contained
in this Purchase Agreement, or if the obligations of the Underwriters shall be terminated for any
reason permitted by this Purchase Agreement, this Purchase Agreement shall terminate and neither
the Underwriters nor the Issuer shall have any further obligations hereunder, except as provided in
Section L. hereof. However, the Representative may in its discretion waive one or more of the
conditions imposed by this Purchase Agreement for the protection of the Underwriters and proceed
with the Closing.

Termination. The Underwriters shall have the right to terminate this Purchase Agreement by
notification to the Issuer from the Underwriters at the election of the Underwriters to do so if, after
the execution hereof and prior to the Closing:

1. An event shall occur which makes untrue or incorrect in any material respect, as of the time
of such event, any statement or information contained in the Official Statement or which
is not reflected in the Official Statement but should be reflected therein in order to make
the statements contained therein in the light of the circumstances under which they were
made not misleading in any material respect and, in either such event, (a) the Issuer refuses
to permit the Official Statement to be supplemented to supply such statement or
information in a manner satisfactory to the Underwriter or (b) the effect of the Official
Statement, as so supplemented, in the reasonable judgment of the Underwriters, would
materially adversely affect the market price or marketability of the Bonds or the ability of
the Underwriters to enforce contracts for the sale, at the contemplated offering prices (or
yields), of the Bonds; or

2. Legislation shall be introduced in, enacted by, reported out of committee, or recommended
for passage by the Issuer, either House of the Congress, or recommended to the Congress
or otherwise endorsed for passage (by press release, other form of notice or otherwise) by
the President of the United States, the Treasury Department of the United States, the
Internal Revenue Service or the Chairman or ranking minority member of the Committee
on Finance of the United States Senate or the Committee on Ways and Means of the United
States House of Representatives (including sponsorship or co-sponsorship), or legislation
is proposed for consideration by either such committee or by the staff of such committee
or presented as an option for consideration by either such committee or by the staff of such
committee or by the staff of the Joint Committee on Taxation of the Congress of the United
States, or a bill to amend the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (which, if enacted, would be
effective as of a date prior to the Closing) shall be filed in either House, or a decision by a
court of competent jurisdiction shall be rendered, or a regulation or filing shall be issued
or proposed by or on behalf of the Department of the Treasury or the Internal Revenue
Service of the United States, or other agency of the federal government, or a release or
official statement shall be issued by the President, the Department of the Treasury or the
Internal Revenue Service of the United States, in any such case with respect to or affecting
(directly or indirectly) the federal or state taxation of interest received on obligations of the
general character of any of the Bonds which, in the reasonable judgment of the
Underwriters, materially adversely affects the market price or marketability of the Bonds
or the ability of the Underwriters to enforce contracts for the sale, at the contemplated
offering prices (or yields), of the Bonds; or

3. A stop order, ruling, regulation, proposed regulation or statement by or on behalf of the
SEC or any other governmental agency having jurisdiction of the subject matter shall be
issued or made to the effect that the issuance, offering, sale or distribution of obligations



of the general character of the Bonds (including any related underlying obligations) is in
violation or would be in violation of any provisions of the Securities Act, the Exchange
Act or the Trust Indenture Act; or

Legislation introduced in or enacted (or resolution passed) by the Congress or an order,
decree, or injunction issued by any court of competent jurisdiction, or an order, ruling,
regulation (final, temporary, or proposed), press release or other form of notice issued or
made by or on behalf of the SEC, or any other governmental agency having jurisdiction of
the subject matter, to the effect that obligations of the general character of the Bonds,
including any or all underlying arrangements, are not exempt from registration under or
other requirements of the Securities Act, or that the Resolution is not exempt from
qualification under or other requirements of the Trust Indenture Act, or that the issuance,
offering, or sale of obligations of the general character of the Bonds, including any or all
underlying arrangements, as contemplated hereby or by the Official Statement or
otherwise, is or would be in violation of the federal securities law as amended and then in
effect; or

There shall have occurred (1) any outbreak or escalation of hostilities, declaration by the
United States of a national or international emergency or war, (2) any other calamity or
crisis in the financial markets of the United States or elsewhere, (3) a downgrade of the
sovereign debt rating of the United States by any major credit rating agency or payment
default on United States Treasury obligations, or (4) a default with respect to the debt
obligations of, or the institution of proceedings under any federal bankruptcy laws by or
against, any state of the United States or any city, county or other political subdivision
located in the United States having a population of over 1,000,000, the effect of which on
financial markets is such as to, in the reasonable judgment of the Underwriters, materially
adversely affect the market price or marketability of the Bonds or the ability of the
Underwriters to enforce contracts for the sale, at the contemplated offering prices (or
yields) of the Bonds; or

There shall have occurred a general suspension of trading, minimum or maximum prices
for trading shall have been fixed and be in force or maximum ranges or prices for securities
shall have been required on the New York Stock Exchange or other national stock
exchange whether by virtue of a determination by that Exchange or by order of the SEC or
any other governmental agency having jurisdiction or any national securities exchange
shall have: (i) imposed additional material restrictions not in force as of the date hereof
with respect to trading in securities generally, or to the Bonds or similar obligations; or (ii)
materially increased restrictions now in force with respect to the extension of credit by or
the charge to the net capital requirements of underwriters or broker-dealers such as to, in
the reasonable judgment of the Underwriters, materially adversely affect the market price
or marketability of the Bonds or the ability of the Underwriters to enforce contracts for the
sale, at the contemplated offering prices (or yields) of the Bonds; or

A general banking moratorium shall have been declared by federal, New York or
Tennessee state authorities or a major financial crisis or a material disruption in commercial
banking or securities settlement or clearances services shall have occurred such as to, in
the reasonable judgment of the Underwriters, materially adversely affect the market price
or marketability of the Bonds or the ability of the Underwriters to enforce contracts for the
sale, at the contemplated offering prices (or yields) of the Bonds; or

A downgrading or suspension of any rating (without regard to credit enhancement) by
Moody's, S&P or Fitch of any debt securities issued by the Issuer, or there shall have been
any official statement as to a possible downgrading (such as being placed on "credit watch"



or "negative outlook" or any similar qualification) of any rating by Moody's, S&P or Fitch
of any debt securities issued by the Issuer, including the Bonds.

L. Payment of Expenses.

L.

The Underwriters shall be under no obligation to pay, and the Issuer shall pay from
available funds or from the proceeds of the Bonds or from other funds of the Issuer, certain
expenses set forth in this Section that are incidental to the performance of the Issuer’s
obligations hereunder, including but not limited to: all expenses in connection with the
printing of the Preliminary Official Statement, the Official Statement, and any amendment
or supplement to either thereof; all expenses in connection with the printing, issuance, and
delivery of the Bonds; the fees and disbursements of Bond Counsel, Issuer’s Counsel and
auditors; the fees and disbursements of the refunding trustee; all expenses in connection
with obtaining a rating or ratings for the Bonds; all expenses, if any, of the Issuer in
connection with the preparation, printing, execution, and delivery, and any recording or
filing fees required of the Resolution, the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking, and the
Refunding Trust Agreement; any recording or filing fees required by this Purchase
Agreement (excluding the costs of qualifying the Bonds for sale in various states); the
Issuer’s administrative fees, fees relating to the verification report; rating agency fees, and
all other expenses and costs of the Issuer incident to its obligations in connection with the
authorization, issuance, sale, and distribution of the Bonds. Expenses of the Underwriters,
including fees and expenses of Underwriters’ counsel and the fees of Digital Assurance
Certification, L.L.C. for a continuing disclosure undertaking compliance review, shall be
paid or reimbursed through the expense component of the Underwriters’ discount.

The Representative shall pay (from the expense component of the Underwriters’ discount)
the costs of qualifying the Bonds for sale in various states chosen by the Representative,
all advertising expenses in connection with the public offering of the Bonds, and all other
expenses incurred by it or the other Underwriters in connection with the public offering
and distribution of the Bonds, including the fees and disbursements of their counsel and
the cost of obtaining CUSIP numbers.

The Issuer shall pay for expenses (which may be included in the expense component of the
Underwriters' discount) incurred on behalf of Issuer's employees which are directly related
to the offering of the Bonds, including, but not limited to, meals, transportation and lodging
of those employees.

M. Indemnity and Contribution.

L.

The Issuer agrees, to the extent permitted by law, and without any representation as to the
extent permitted by law, to indemnify and hold harmless the Underwriters, any member,
officer, official, employee, counsel, consultant and agent of the Underwriters, and each
person, if any, who controls the Underwriters within the meaning of the Securities Act or
Exchange Act (the "Indemnitees") against any and all losses, claims, damages, liabilities
or expenses (or actions in respect thereof) (each, a "Claim") that are caused by, arise out of
or are based upon any untrue statement or misleading statement or alleged untrue statement
or alleged misleading statement of a material fact relating to the Issuer made, provided or
certified by the Issuer or any agent thereof and contained in the Preliminary Official
Statement or the Official Statement, or caused by, arising out of or based upon any
omission or alleged omission from the Preliminary Official Statement or the Official
Statement of any material fact relating to the Issuer necessary in order to make the
statements made therein in the light of the circumstances under which they were made not



misleading, except with respect to matters described in paragraph 2 below. In case any
action shall be brought against any person indemnified pursuant to this Section and in
respect of which indemnity may be sought against the Issuer, such person shall promptly
notify the Issuer in writing, and the Issuer shall promptly assume the defense thereof,
including the employment of counsel reasonably satisfactory to such person, and the
payment of all expenses, provided that the Issuer shall have the right to negotiate and
consent to settlement and such person shall cooperate with the Issuer in such defense. Such
person shall have the right to employ separate counsel in any such action and to participate
in the defense thereof, but the fees and expenses of such counsel shall be at the expense of
such person unless the employment of such counsel has been specifically authorized by the
Issuer. The Issuer shall not be liable for any settlement of any such action effected without
its consent, but if settled with the consent of the Issuer or if there be a final judgment for
the plaintiff in any such action, with or without consent, the Issuer shall indemnify and
hold harmless such party from and against any loss or liability by reason of such settlement
or judgment. Notwithstanding anything above to the contrary, the Issuer shall not consent
to any settlement under which an indemnified party admits guilt to any allegation without
the consent of such person.

Each Underwriter severally and not jointly agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the
Issuer, each of its officials, directors, officers and employees, and each person who controls
the Issuer within the meaning of either the Securities Act or the Exchange Act, to the same
extent as the foregoing indemnity from the Issuer to each Underwriter, but only with
reference to written information furnished by the Underwriters to the Issuer or information
provided by the Underwriters specifically for inclusion in the Preliminary Official
Statement or the Official Statement (or in any amendment or supplement thereto).

Blue Sky Qualification. The Issuer agrees to cooperate with the Underwriters and their counsel in

any endeavor to qualify the Bonds for offering and sale under the securities or blue sky laws of
such jurisdictions of the United States as the Representative may request; provided that the Issuer
shall not be required to qualify as a foreign corporation in, or submit to the jurisdiction of, any other

state.

The Issuer consents to the use of the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official

Statement by the Representative in obtaining such qualification.

No Advisory or Fiduciary Role.

1.

The Issuer acknowledges and agrees that (i) the purchase and sale of the Bonds pursuant
to this Purchase Agreement is an arm's-length commercial transaction between the Issuer
and the Underwriters, (ii) in connection therewith and with the discussions, undertakings
and procedures leading up to the consummation of such transaction, the Underwriters are
and have been acting solely as principals and are not acting as the agent, advisor (including,
without limitation, a Municipal Advisor (as such term is defined in Section 975(e) of the
Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act)) or fiduciary of the Issuer,
(iii) the Underwriters have not assumed an advisory or fiduciary responsibility in favor of
the Issuer with respect to the offering contemplated hereby or the discussions, undertakings
and procedures leading thereto (irrespective of whether the Underwriters have provided
other services or are currently providing other services to the Issuer on other matters) and
the Underwriters have no obligation to the Issuer with respect to the offering contemplated
hereby other than those arising out of their role as Underwriters pursuant to the terms of
this Purchase Agreement, (iv) the Issuer has consulted its own legal, financial and other
advisors to the extent it has deemed appropriate, and (v) the Underwriters have financial
and other interests that differ from those of the Issuer.



2. The Issuer and the Underwriters represent and warrant, respectively, that no finder or other
agent has been employed by either the Issuer or the Underwriters in connection with this
transaction.

Notices. All notices provided for in this Purchase Agreement shall be made in writing either by
actual delivery of the notice into the hands of the parties entitled thereto, by confirmed facsimile
transmission, or by sending the notice by air courier or mailing by certified or registered mail,
return receipt requested, in the United States mail to the address as stated below (or at such other
address as may have been designated by written notice) of the party entitled thereto. The notice
shall be deemed to be received in case of actual delivery on the date of its actual receipt by the
party entitled thereto, in case of delivery by facsimile, on the date receipt is confirmed, in case of
delivery by air courier on the date of delivery, and in case of mailing on the date of receipt by
United States mail, postage prepaid.

All communications hereunder, except as herein otherwise specifically provided, shall be in writing
and mailed or delivered to the Issuer and to the Underwriters at the following addresses:

The Funding Board of the State of Tennessee

Cordell Hull Building

425 Rep. John Lewis Way N., 4th Floor

Nashville, Tennessee 37243

Attention: Director of the Division of State Government Finance
Facsimile: 615-741-5986

FHN Financial Capital Markets

845 Crossover Lane, Suite 150
Memphis, TN 38117

Attention: Municipal Underwriting Desk
Facsimile: 877-838-0057

Governing Law. This Purchase Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with
the laws of the Issuer.

Counterparts. This Purchase Agreement may be executed in counterparts with the same force and
effect as if all signatures appeared on a single instrument.

Miscellaneous. This Purchase Agreement is made solely for the benefit of the signatories hereto
(including the successors or assigns of the Underwriters) and no other person shall acquire or have
any right hereunder or by virtue hereof. The term “successor” shall not include any holder of any
Bonds merely by virtue of such holding. All representations, warranties, agreements, and
indemnities contained in this Purchase Agreement shall remain operative and in full force and
effect, regardless of delivery of and payment for the Bonds and any termination of this Purchase
Agreement.

[signature page follows]



ACCEPTED:

FUNDING BOARD OF THE
STATE OF TENNESSEE

By:

Titie: Comptroller of the Treasury;
Secretary of the Funding Board of the
State of Tennessee

Very truly yours,

FHN FINANCIAL CAPITAL MARKETS, on
behalf of itself and as Representative of the
other WT isted in Appendix [ her

By:

Nkﬁne; David Cisaijie”
Tithe; _ S ior-Vice President




Very truly yours,

FHN FINANCIAL CAPITAL MARKETS, on
behalf of itself and as Representative of the
other Underwriters listed in Appendix I hereto

By:

Name:
Title:

STAT T TENNE -E
N L. W

Title: Complroller of the Treasury;
Secrefary of the Funding Board|of the
State of Tennessee
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UNDERWRITERS

Representative and Senior Manager
FHN Financial Capital Markets
Co-Managers

Loop Capital Markets LLC

Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC

PNC Capital Markets LLC

Raymond James & Associates, Inc.
Wells Fargo Bank, National Association
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STATE OF TENNESSEE
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS
$167,755,000
2021 SERIES A

Maturity
Date Amount Rate Yield Price

11/1/2022  $17,030,000 5000%  0.120% 106336
11/1/2023 10,185,000 5000%  0.200%  111.008
11/1/2024 10,355,000 5000%  0.300%  115.421
11/1/2025 10,485,000 5000%  0.440%  119.401
11/1/2026 10,505,000 5000%  0.560%  123.153
11/12027 10,575,000 5000%  0.690% 126525
11/1/2028 10,645,000 5.000%  0.780%  129.887
11/1/2029 10,775,000 5000%  0.890%  132.811
11/12030 10,855,000 5.000%  0.980%  135.648
11/1/2031 10,940,000 5.000% 1.060% 138347
11/1/2032 11,035,000 5.000% 1.110%  137.760
11/1/2033 4,930,000 5.000% 1.160%  137.177
11/1/2034 4,930,000 5.000% 1.180%  136.944
11/1/2035 4,930,000 5.000% 1200%  136.712
11/1/2036 4,930,000 5.000% 1.230% 136365
11/1/2037 4,930,000 4.000% 1.350%  125.400
11/1/2038 4,930,000 4.000% 1.380%  125.073
11/1/2039 4,930,000 4.000% 1.410% 124747
11/1/2040 4,930,000 4.000% 1.440%  124.422
11/1/2041 4,930,000 4.000% 1.470% 124098
$167,755,000

ool oo oo ONONIONNQ!

C = Priced to call date of November 1, 2031.

Optional Redemption.

At the option of the Issuer, the Bonds maturing on or after November 1, 2032 are subject to
redemption prior to their respective stated maturities, from any monies that are available to the Issuer for
such purpose, at any time on and after November 1, 2031 as a whole, or in part from time to time in any
order of maturity determined by the Issuer, at a redemption price of par, together with accrued interest to
the redemption date.



Establishment of Issue Price — Satisfaction of 10% Test.

There are no Undersold Maturities.
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REFUNDED BONDS
Outstanding
Principal Eedemption Redemption

Series Maturity Date Amoumnt Date Price CUSIP No.
2011B 812022 5 7.085.000 §/1/2021 100% 8803415D0
8/1/2023 125,000 §/1/2021 100% 8803415E3
812024 180,000 8/1/2021 100% 8803418F3
8/1/2023 185,000 §/1/2021 100% 8803418G3

§ 7.575.000
2012B 10/1/2022 5 7.000,000 7/26/2021 100% 830341TF4
10/1/2023 7,000,000 7/26/2021 100% 880341TG2
10/1/2024 7,000,000 7/26/2021 100% 880341THO
10/1/2023 1.000.000 1/26/2021 100% 880341116
10/1/2026 7,000,000 1/26/2021 100% 880341TKS
10/1/2027 7,000,000 7/26/2021 100% 880341TL1
10/1/2028 1,000,000 7/26/2021 100% 880341TMO
10/1/2029 7,000,000 1/26/2021 100% 880341TNT
10/1/2030 1.000.000 1/26/2021 100% 880341TP2
10/1/2031 7,000,000 7/26/2021 100% 830341TQ0
10/1/2032 7,000,000 7/26/2021 100% 830341TRS

§ 77,000,000

Total Refunded Bonds 5§ 84.3573.000
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STATE OF TENNESSEE
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS
$167,755,000
2021 SERIES A

ISSUE PRICE CERTIFICATE

The undersigned, as the duly authorized representative of FHN Financial Capital Markets (the
“Representative”), on behalf of itself and the underwriters listed in the Bond Purchase Agreement (together,
the “Underwriting Group”), with respect to the above-referenced bonds (the “Bonds™), issued by the State
of Tennessee (the “Issuer”) hereby certifies, based upon the information available to it, as follows:

1. Sale of the General Rule Maturities. As of the date of this Certificate, for the General Rule
Maturities, the first price at which at least 10% of such Maturity was sold to the Public is
the respective price listed in Schedule A.

2. Initial Offering Price of the Hold-the-Offering-Price-Maturities.

(a) The Underwriters offered the Hold-the-Offering-Price Maturities to the Public for
purchase at the respective initial offering prices listed in Schedule A (the “Initial Offering Prices”)
on or before the Sale Date. A copy of the pricing wire or equivalent communication for the Bonds
is attached to this Certificate as Schedule B.

(b) As set forth in the Bond Purchase Agreement, the Representative, on behalf of the
members of the Underwriting Group, has agreed in writing that, (i) for each Maturity of the Hold-
the-Offering-Price Maturities, the Underwriters would neither offer nor sell any of the unsold
Bonds of such Maturity to any person at a price that is higher than the Initial Offering Price for
such Maturity during the Holding Period for such Maturity (the “hold-the-offering-price rule”), and
(i1) any selling group agreement shall contain the agreement of each dealer who is a member of the
selling group, and any third-party distribution agreement shall contain the agreement of each
broker-dealer who is a party to the third-party distribution agreement, to comply with the hold-the-
offering-price rule. No information has come to the attention of the Representative, after due
inquiry, that any underwriter has offered or sold any unsold Bonds of any Maturity of the Bonds at
a price that is higher than the respective Initial Offering Price for that Maturity of the Bonds during
the Holding Period.

3. Defined Terms.

(a) General Rule Maturities means those Maturities of the Bonds shown in Schedule A
hereto as the “General Rule Maturities.”

(b) Hold-the-Offering-Price Maturities means those Maturities of the Bonds shown in
Schedule A hereto as the “Hold-the-Offering-Price Maturities.”

(c) Holding Period means, with respect to a Hold-the-Offering-Price Maturity, the period
starting on the Sale Date and ending on the earlier of (i) the close of the fifth business day after the
Sale Date, or (ii) the date on which the Underwriters have sold at least 10% of such Hold-the-



Offering-Price Maturity to the Public at prices that are no higher than the Initial Offering Price for
such Hold-the-Offering-Price Maturity.

(d) Maturity means Bonds with the same credit and payment terms. Bonds with different
maturity dates, or Bonds with the same maturity date but different stated interest rates, are treated
as separate maturities.

(e) Public means any person (including an individual, trust, estate, partnership, association,
company, or corporation) other than an Underwriter or a related party to an Underwriter. The term
“related party” for purposes of this Certificate generally means any two or more persons who have
greater than 50 percent common ownership, directly or indirectly.

(f) Sale Date means the first day on which there is a binding contract in writing for the sale
of a Maturity of the Bonds. The Sale Date of the Bonds is June 23, 2021.

(g) Underwriter means (i) any person that agrees pursuant to a written contract with the
Issuer (or with the lead underwriter to form an underwriting syndicate) to participate in the initial
sale of the Bonds to the Public, and (ii) any person that agrees pursuant to a written contract directly
or indirectly with a person described in clause (i) of this paragraph to participate in the initial sale
of the Bonds to the Public (including a member of a selling group or a party to a third-party
distribution agreement participating in the initial sale of the Bonds to the Public).

The representations set forth in this certificate are limited to factual matters only. Nothing in this

certificate represents the Underwriter(s) interpretation of any laws, including specifically Sections 103 and
148 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the Treasury Regulations thereunder. The
undersigned understands that the foregoing information will be relied upon by the Issuer with respect to
certain of the representations set forth in the Tax Certificate and with respect to compliance with the federal
income tax rules affecting the Bonds, and by Hawkins Delafield & Wood LLP in connection with rendering
its opinion that the interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes,
the preparation of the Internal Revenue Service Form 8038-G, and other federal income tax advice that it
may give to the Issuer from time to time relating to the Bonds. Notwithstanding anything set forth herein,
the Representative is not engaged in the practice of law and makes no representation as to the legal
sufficiency of the factual matters set forth herein. Except as expressly set forth above, the certifications set
forth herein may not be relied upon or used by any third party or for any other purpose.

Dated:

July 13,2021

FHN FINANCIAL CAPITAL MARKETS, as Representative

By:

Name:




Schedule A to Issue Price Certificate

Sale Prices

Maturity
Date Amount Rate Yield Price
11/1/2022 $17,030,000 5.000% 0.120% 106.336
11/1/2023 10,185,000 5.000% 0.200% 111.008
11/1/2024 10,355,000 5.000% 0.300% 115.421
11/1/2025 10,485,000 5.000% 0.440% 119.401
11/1/2026 10,505,000 5.000% 0.560% 123.153
11/1/2027 10,575,000 5.000% 0.690% 126.525
11/1/2028 10,645,000 5.000% 0.780% 129.887
11/1/2029 10,775,000 5.000% 0.890% 132.811
11/1/2030 10,855,000 5.000% 0.980% 135.648
11/1/2031 10,940,000 5.000% 1.060% 138.347
11/1/2032 11,035,000 5.000% 1.110% 137.760 C
11/1/2033 4,930,000 5.000% 1.160% 137.177 C
11/1/2034 4,930,000 5.000% 1.180% 136.944 C
11/1/2035 4,930,000 5.000% 1.200% 136.712 C
11/1/2036 4,930,000 5.000% 1.230% 136.365 C
11/1/2037 4,930,000 4.000% 1.350% 125400 C
11/1/2038 4,930,000 4.000% 1.380% 125.073 C
11/1/2039 4,930,000 4.000% 1.410% 124747 C
11/1/2040 4,930,000 4.000% 1.440% 124422 C
11/1/2041 4,930,000 4.000% 1.470% 124.098 C

$167,755,000

C = Priced to call date of November 1, 2031.

General Rule Maturities

Not Applicable

X Maturities Listed Below

All Maturities of the Bonds are General Rule Maturities.

Hold-the-Offering-Price Rule Maturities

X Not Applicable

Maturities Listed Below

30677920.7



CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING

This Continuing Disclosure Undertaking (the “Undertaking”) is dated and made
as of July 13, 2021, by the State of Tennessee (the “State™) in connection with the issuance of the
State’s $167,755,000 aggregate principal amount of General Obligation Bonds, 2021 Series A
and $490,910,000 aggregate principal amount of General Obligation Bonds, 2021 Refunding
Series B (Federally Taxable) (collectively, the “Bonds™). As authorized by Section 10 of the
resolution (the “Bond Resolution™) of the Funding Board of the State of Tennessee (the “Funding
Board”) adopted on May 24, 2021, authorizing the Bonds, the State agrees as follows:

ARTICLE I

Definitions

Section 1.1.  Definitions. The following terms used in this Undertaking shall
have the following respective meanings:

(D “Annual Financial Information” means (i) updated versions of the
following financial information and operating data contained in, or incorporated by reference
pursuant to an Appendix to, the Official Statement with respect to the State, for each fiscal year
of the State:

Special Tax Collections
Total Sales and Use Tax Collections
Allocation of Sales and Use Tax to Debt Service
Outstanding General Obligation Bonded Indebtedness
Long-Term General Obligation Bonded Debt Service by Fiscal
Year and Maturity
E Maximum and Actual Principal Amounts of Commercial Paper
Outstanding
° Other Post-Employment Benefits
— Unfunded Actuarial Liability
— Annual Required Contribution
. Rainy Day Fund Reserve Balance
° Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System
— Statistical data
— Tables
o Debt of Certain Agencies and Authorities
— Tennessee Local Development Authority
— Tennessee State School Bond Authority
— Tennessee Housing Development Agency
— State Veterans’ Homes Board
o The statistical data incorporated by reference in Appendix B to the
Official Statement, to the extent and in the form presented in the
State’s most recent Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

e o o 9 o

3598542.2 045079 AGMT



and (ii) the information regarding amendments to this Undertaking required pursuant to
Sections 4.2(c) and (d) of this Undertaking. Annual Financial Information shall include Audited
Financial Statements, if available, or Unaudited Financial Statements.

The descriptions contained in clause (i) above of financial information and
operating data constituting Annual Financial Information are of general categories or types of
financial information and operating data. When such descriptions include information that no
longer can be generated because the operations to which it related have been materially changed
or discontinued, a statement to that effect shall be provided in lieu of such information.

) “Audited Financial Statements” means the annual financial statements of
the State, audited by the Comptroller of the Treasury, Division of State Audit, as now required
by State law (or such other auditor as hereafter may be required or permitted by State law).
Audited Financial Statements shall be prepared in accordance with GAAP.

3) “Counsel” means Hawkins Delaficld & Wood LLP or other nationally
recognized bond counsel or counsel expert in federal securities laws, in each case acceptable to
the State.

4 “EMMA” means the MSRB’s Electronic Municipal Market Access system
or its successor.

(5) Financial Obligation” means: (A) debt obligation; (B) derivative
instrument entered into in connection with, or pledged as security or a source of payment for, an
existing or planned debt obligation; or (C) guarantee of (A) of (B) above, but does not include
municipal securities as to which a final official statement has been provided to the MSRB
consistent with the Rule.

(6) “GAAP” means generally accepted accounting principles for
governmental units as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, the
Financial Accounting Standards Board, or any successor to the duties and responsibilities of
either of them.

@) “MSRB” means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board established
pursuant to the provisions of Section 15B(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended, or any successor to the MSRB or the functions of the MSRB contemplated by this
Undertaking.

8) “Notice Event” means any of the following events with respect to the
Bonds:

(1) principal and interest payment delinquencies;
(i)  non-payment related defaults, if material;

(iii) unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial
difficulties;
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(iv)

)
(vi)

(vii)
(viii)

(ix)

(xi)
(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial
difficulties;

substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform;

adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of
proposed or final determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue
(IRS Form 5701-TEB) or other material notices or determinations with
respect to the tax status of the Bonds, or other material events affecting the
tax status of the Bonds;

modifications to rights of Bondholders, if material;
bond calls, if material, and tender offers;
defeasances;

release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the Bonds,
if material;

rating changes:
bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the State;

(Note to clause (xii): For the purposes of the event identified in
clause (xii) above, the event is considered to occur when any of the
following occur: the appointment of a receiver, fiscal agent or similar
officer for the State in a proceeding under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code or in
any other proceeding under state or federal law in which a court or
government authority has assumed jurisdiction over substantially all of the
assets or business of the State, or if such jurisdiction has been assumed by
leaving the existing governing body and officials or officers in possession
but subject to the supervision and orders of a court or governmental
authority, or the entry of an order confirming a plan of reorganization,
arrangement or liquidation by a court or governmental authority having
supervision or jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business
of the State.)

the consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving the
State or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the State, other
than in the ordinary course of business, the entry into a definitive
agreement to undertake such action or the termination of a definitive
agreement relating to any such actions, other than pursuant to its terms, if
material;

appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of name of
a trustee, if material;
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(xv) incurrence of a Financial Obligation of the issuer or obligated person, if
material, or agreement to covenants, events of default, remedies, priority
rights, or other similar terms of a Financial Obligation of the State, any of
which affect security holders, if material; and

(xvi) default, event of acceleration, termination event, modification of terms, or
other similar events under the terms of a Financial Obligation of the State,
any of which reflect financial difficulties.

9) “Notice Event Notice” means notice of a Notice Event.

(10) “Official Statement” means the Official Statement dated June 23, 2021, of
the State relating to the Bonds.

(11)  “Rule” means Rule 15¢2-12 promulgated by the SEC under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (17 CFR Part 240, §240.15¢2-12), as in effect on the effective date hereof,
including any official interpretations thereof.

(12) “SEC” means the United States Securities and Exchange Commission.

(13) “Unaudited Financial Statements” means the same as Audited Financial
Statements, except that they shall not have been audited.

ARTICLE 11

The Undertaking

Section 2.1.  Purpose. This Undertaking is being exccuted, delivered and made
solely to assist the underwriters of the Bonds in complying with subsection (b)(5) of the Rule.

Section 2.2.  Annual Financial Information. (a) The State shall provide Annual
Financial Information with respect to each fiscal year of the State, commencing with the fiscal
year ending June 30, 2021, by no later than 7 months after the end of the respective fiscal year, to
the MSRB.

(b) The State shall provide, in a timely manner, notice of any failure of the
State to provide the Annual Financial Information by the date specified in subsection (a) above
to the MSRB.

Section 2.3.  Audited Financial Statements. If not provided as part of Annual
Financial Information by the date required by Section 2.2(a) hereof because not available, the
State shall provide Audited Financial Statements, when and if available, to the MSRB.

Section2.4. Notice Events. (a) If a Notice Event occurs, the State shall
provide, in a timely manner not in excess of ten (10) business days after the occurrence of such
Notice Event, a Notice Event Notice to the MSRB.
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(b) Any such notice of a defeasance of Bonds shall state whether the Bonds
have been escrowed to maturity or to an earlier redemption date and the timing of such maturity
or redemption.

Section 2.5.  Additional Disclosure Obligations. The State acknowledges and
understands that other State and federal laws, including but not limited to the Securities Act
of 1933 and Rule 10b-5 promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, may apply to
the State and that, under some circumstances, additional disclosures or other action in addition to
those required by this Undertaking may be required to enable the State to fully discharge all of
its duties and obligations under such laws.

Section 2.6.  Additional Information. Nothing in this Undertaking shall be
deemed to prevent the State from disseminating any other information, using the means of
dissemination set forth in this Undertaking or any other means of communication, or including
any other information in any Annual Financial Information or Notice Event Notice, in addition to
that which is required by this Undertaking. If the State chooses to do so, the State shall have no
obligation under this Undertaking to update such additional information or include it in any
future Annual Financial Information or Notice Event Notice.

ARTICLE III

Operating Rules

Section 3.1.  Reference to Other Documents. It shall be sufficient for purposes
of Section 2.2 hereof if the State provides Annual Financial Information by specific reference to
documents (i) available to the public on the MSRB Internet Web site (currently,
www.emma.msrb.org) or (ii) filed with the SEC. The provisions of this Section shall not apply
to Notice Event Notices pursuant to Section 2.4 hereof.

Section 3.2. Submission of Information. Annual Financial Information may be
provided in one document or multiple documents, and at one time or in part from time to time.

Section 3.3.  Filing with Certain Dissemination Agents or Conduits. The State
may from time to time designate an agent to act on its behalf in providing or filing notices,
documents and information as required of the State under this Undertaking, and revoke or
modify any such designation.

Section 3.4. Transmission of Notices, Documents and Information. (a) Unless
otherwise required by the MSRB, all notices, documents and information provided to the MSRB
shall be provided to EMMA, the current Internet Web address of which is www.emma.msrb.org.

(b) All notices, documents and information provided to the MSRB shall be
provided in an electronic format as prescribed by the MSRB (currently, portable document
format (pdf) which must be word-searchable except for non-textual elements) and shall be
accompanied by identifying information as prescribed by the MSRB.

Section 3.5.  Fiscal Year. (a) The State’s current fiscal year is July 1 — June 30.
The State shall promptly notify the MSRB of each change in its fiscal year.
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(b) The State shall provide Annual Financial Information at least annually
notwithstanding any fiscal year longer than 12 calendar months.

ARTICLE IV

Effective Date, Termination, Amendment and Enforcement

Section 4.1.  Effective Date; Termination. (a) This Undertaking shall be
effective upon the issuance of the Bonds.

(b) The State’s obligations under this Undertaking shall terminate with respect
to each Bond upon the legal defeasance, prior redemption or payment in full of such Bond.

(c) This Undertaking, or any provision hereof, shall be null and void in the
event that the State (1) receives an opinion of Counsel to the effect that those portions of the
Rule which require this Undertaking, or such provision, as the case may be, do not or no longer
apply to the Bonds, whether because such portions of the Rule are invalid, have been repealed, or
otherwise, as shall be specified in such opinion, and (2) delivers copies of such opinion to the
MSRB.

Section 4.2. Amendment. (a) This Undertaking may be amended without the
consent of the holders of the Bonds, if all of the following conditions are satisfied: (1) such
amendment is made in connection with a change in circumstances that arises from a change in
legal (including regulatory) requirements, a change in law (including rules and regulations) or in
interpretations thereof, or a change in the identity, nature or status of the State or the type of
business conducted thereby, (2) this Undertaking as so amended would have complied with the
requirements of the Rule as of the date hereof, after taking into account any amendments or
interpretations of the Rule, as well as any change in circumstances, (3) the State shall have
received an opinion of Counsel to the same effect as set forth in clause (2) above, (4) the State
shall have received either an opinion of Counsel or a determination by a person, in each case
unaffiliated with the State, to the effect that the amendment does not materially impair the
interests of the holders of the outstanding Bonds, and (5) the State shall have delivered copies of
such opinion(s) and amendment to the MSRB.

(b) This Undertaking may be amended without the consent of the holders of
the Bonds if all of the following conditions are satisfied: (1) an amendment to the Rule is
adopted, or a new or modified official interpretation of the Rule is issued, after the effective date
hereof which is applicable to this Undertaking, (2) the State shall have received an opinion of
Counsel to the effect that performance by the State under this Undertaking as so amended will
not result in a violation of the Rule as so amended or officially interpreted and (3) the State shall
have delivered copies of such opinion and amendment to the MSRB.

(c) To the extent any amendment to this Undertaking results in a change in
the categories or types of financial information or operating data provided pursuant to this
Undertaking, the first Annual Financial Information provided thereafter shall include a narrative
explanation of the reasons for the amendment and the impact of the change in the type of
operating data or financial information being provided.
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(d) If an amendment is made pursuant to Section 4.2(a) hereof to the
accounting principles to be followed by the State in preparing its financial statements, the
Annual Financial Information for the fiscal year in which the change is made shall present a
comparison between the financial statements or information prepared on the basis of the new
accounting principles and those prepared on the basis of the former accounting principles. Such
comparison shall include a qualitative and, to the extent reasonably feasible, quantitative
discussion of the differences in the accounting principles and the impact of the change in the
accounting principles on the presentation of the financial information.

Section 4.3.  Contract; Benefit; Third-Party Beneficiaries: Enforcement. (a) The
provisions of this Undertaking shall constitute a contract with and inure solely to the benefit of
the holders from time to time of the Bonds, except that beneficial owners of Bonds shall be third-
party beneficiaries of this Undertaking and shall be deemed to be holders of Bonds for purposes
of Section 4.3(b) hereof. The provisions of this Undertaking shall create no rights in any person
or entity except as provided in this subsection (a).

b) The obligations of the State to comply with the provisions of this
Undertaking shall be enforceable by any holder of outstanding Bonds; however, the holders’
rights to enforce the provisions of this Undertaking shall be limited solely to a right, by action in
mandamus or for specific performance, to compel performance of the State’s obligations under
this Undertaking.

(© Any failure by the State to perform in accordance with this Undertaking
shall not constitute a default or an event of default under the Bond Resolution or State law and
shall not result in any acceleration of payment of the Bonds, and the rights and remedies
provided by the Bond Resolution and applicable State law upon the occurrence of such a default
or an event of default shall not apply to any such failure.

(d) This Undertaking shall be construed and interpreted in accordance with
the laws of the State, and any suits and actions arising out of this Undertaking shall be instituted
in a court of competent jurisdiction in the State; provided, however, that to the extent this
Undertaking addresses matters of federal securities laws, including the Rule, this Undertaking
shall be construed in accordance with such federal securities laws and official interpretations
thereof.

Section 4.4. Effective Date. This Undertaking shall be effective upon the
issuance and delivery by the State of the Bonds.

STATE OF TENNESSEE

s Jhorgoen.

Sandra Thompson
Assistant Secretary, Fundlng Board
of the State of Tennessee, and
Director, Division of State Government
Finance, State of Tennessee
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pfm

530 Oak Court Dr.
Suite 160

Memphis, TN 38117
901.682.8356

pfm.com

April 12, 2023

Sandra W. Thompson, CCTS

Director

Comptroller of the Treasury

Division of State Government Finance
425 Rep. John Lewis Way N.
Nashville, TN 37243

Dear Ms. Thompson:

PFM, as Financial Advisor to the State of Tennessee (“State”), is recommending the
State execute a competitive sale for its upcoming General Obligation Bonds 2023 Series
A (“2023 Series A Bonds”) which is tentatively scheduled to price in July 2023. The 2023
Series A Bonds will be issued primarily to provide funding of the State’s $500,000,000
grant to the Sports Authority of the Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson
County. PFM has prepared our bond sale recommendation understanding the State’s
2023 Series A Bonds and all authorizations, either by the State or by the Metropolitan
Government of Nashville and Davidson County, will have been obtained prior to the
issuance of the 2023 Series A Bonds.

Basis for Recommendation

Competitive bond sales can offer several advantages over negotiated sales. A
competitive sale typically assures the lowest interest rates. While underwriting firms may
attempt to secure the best interest rates for the issuer, different firms have different
perceptions of the market and cater to various investor requirements. This is evidenced
by the fact that there are seldom two identical bids submitted at a competitive sale. In
addition, interest rate differentials more than 1/4% (0.25%) between low and high bidders
in a competitive sale are not uncommon.

Despite the advantages of competitive sales, some bond structures and certain market
factors create conditions in which a negotiated sale may be the preferred sale method.
The State should select a method of sale based on a thorough analysis of the relevant
rating, security and structure pertaining to the proposed bond issue. The following table
outlines the general conditions favoring each method of sale.
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Attributes Competitive Sale Negotiated Sale Relevance to the State
(GO Credit)
Issuer
The State’s 2023 Series A Bonds
will provide grant funding and fund
Type of Broad-based, general- | Special-purpose, other capital projects for the State
Organization purpose government independent authority and are securitized by the State’s
General Obligation credit. These
factors imply a Competitive Sale.
Frequency of Regular borrower in New or infrequent issuer | The State is a known borrower in
Issuance public market of debt the municipal markets.
The State has received favorable
Market Active se.cond.ary Little or no inst[tutional investor interest on prigr sales.
Awareness market with wide base, but growing dealer | The State also has active

investor base

interest

communication with the investing
community.

Credit Quality

The State has the highest credit of
Aaa/AAA/AAA and is expected to

Rating A” or better Below single “A be received favorably in the
competitive market.
. The 2023 Series A Bonds will be
Pledged General Obligation Project supported securitized by the State’s General
Revenues revenues

Obligation pledge.

Security Structure

Conventional

resolution and
cashflow; rate
covenant and

Unusual or weak
covenants; subordinated
debt

The State will issue under a
conventional bond resolution.

coverage
. The State has stable ratings of
Trend Stable Improving or under stress Aaa/AAA/AAA.
Market Conditions
Interest rates have been volatile
Stable, predictable Volatile or declining el e et b ) el s b.Ut .
Interest Rates have recently began decreasing in
market market .
response to the bank failure scare
in March 2023.
Strong investor The State has a history of strong
Demand Qemgnd, good Oversold market, heavy inve§tor demand and th.e.flight to
liquidity, light forward | supply quality should be beneficial for the
calendar State.
Debt Structure
Tax Status Tax-exempt, no Taxable 2023 Series A Bonds will be

concerns

issued tax-exempt.

Debt Instrument

Traditional serial and
term, full-coupon
bonds

Aggressive use of
innovative bond
structuring, derivative
products, swaps, or
variable-rate debt
instruments

The State plans to sell traditional
serial and/or term bonds.
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Market Timing

Many proponents of negotiated sales argue that a negotiated sale provides greater
flexibility in the timing of the bond’s offering. In either method of sale, the issuer selects
a tentative pricing date and retains the flexibility to change this date, if needed. In a
competitive bond sale, the State’s Notice of Sale will allow the State to cancel or change
the pricing date until noon on the day preceding the competitive sale. Given either sale
methodology, the process of marketing the bonds should begin one or two weeks prior
to the pricing date. Should the municipal market become unsettled or volatile, the State

can postpone the bond pricing until a more favorable market exists.

PFM is closely monitoring the municipal market as it relates to investor preferences and
interest rates to strike a balance between the State’s financial objectives and investor
preferences.

PFM’s Pricing Group

PFM possesses industry-leading expertise and experience regarding both competitive
and negotiated bond sales. PFM has a dedicated, in-house bond Pricing Group which
has been consulted in our evaluation and recommendation of a competitive bond sale to
the State. PFM will also rely on our Pricing Group to evaluate the bond sale parameters
to be included in the Notice of Sale.

Debt Management Policy Consideration
A competitive sale process seeks to achieve broad market participation and access,
while following the State’s Debt Management Policy.

Market Supply

Through Quarter 1 of 2023, municipal supply is down compared to Quarter 1 of 2022, in
both par amount and number of issues (see Appendix A). During 2023, there have been
no series of bonds with a par amount over $100 million sold competitively in the State of
Tennessee. Municipal bond supply is expected to remain low for the next few months.
However, there will be bond redemptions occurring in May which will create a supply-
demand opportunity for the State’s 2023 Series A Bonds.

Recommendation

Considering the above, PFM continues to believe that the competitive sale process is
optimal for the State’s 2023 Series A bond issue. We believe that the competitive sale
process will encourage the underwriters that the State already works with to offer their
best price, while also providing other investment banking firms the opportunity to
demonstrate their interest in the State of Tennessee. We would also recommend the
authorizing resolution associated with the State’s 2023 Series A Bonds include the
flexibility of a negotiated sale as well. This will allow the Comptroller’s Office to adjust the
sale methodology without seeking additional State Funding Board authorization.
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| would be happy to provide additional insight or to discuss further. Please call if you
have any questions (901) 466-4554.

We appreciate the opportunity to serve the State and value our relationship. We look
forward to successful financings in the future.

Sincerely,

oo

Lauren S. Lowe
Managing Director
PFM Financial Advisors LLC
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Appendix A
Cumulative YTD Supply - Total
8 12 16 20 24 28 32 36 40 44 48
Week
2023 AMT 2023 Taxable 2023 Tax-Exempt — e====2022 Total
Cumulative YTD Supply - Tax-Exempt
9 13 17 21 25 29 33 37 41 45 49 53

Week

2023 Tax-Exempt — e==2022 Tax-Exempt
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